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 1           (Proceedings commenced at 6:12 p.m.)
 2                     HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and
 3      gentlemen, I'm Phillip Carson, the hearing
 4      officer for purposes of the 2010 rate hearing.
 5      And we were last here last Thursday on
 6      September 30th.  Would any attorneys
 7      representing intervenors please announce their
 8      appearances and that of the intervenors.
 9                     MR. ZAKOURA:  Good evening.
10      James P. Zakoura on behalf of the large volume
11      collector and water users.
12                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, sir.
13                     MR. FLAHERTY:  James G. Flaherty,
14      Ottawa, Kansas, appearing on behalf of the
15      intervenor Suburban Water Company.
16                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
17                     MR. YARNELL:  Rick Yarnell.
18                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
19      Mr. Yarnell.  Ms. Peters.
20                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you, Your
21      Honor.  And my name is Kathy Peters representing
22      the BPU in this matter.  And I'd like to also
23      let the record reflect that two of the
24      consulting engineers -- three of the consulting
25      engineers from Black & Veatch are present in
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 1      the -- in the audience, Arnold White, Bob Brady
 2      and Craig Brown and that Ed Overcast is present
 3      on the telephone and that Mike Gorman is also
 4      present in the audience representing the large
 5      power group.  And I think that's everyone in the
 6      room who's representing an intervenor, correct?
 7               Thank you very much.  Ladies and
 8      gentlemen, I'd like to go over a few things with
 9      you, and then we will turn this matter over to
10      you.  The hearing to date summary I've given you
11      a few times, I'd like to give it to you again in
12      brief one time so it will catch us up with where
13      we are at this point.
14               As you know, under the Unified
15      Government charter ordinance and the procedures
16      governing the rate process, the BPU has to
17      publish notice of a public hearing for a utility
18      rate increase at least 90 days before the
19      hearing commences.  Notice was published in
20      February.  The public hearing commenced on May
21      3rd.  There were public hearing sessions on May
22      3rd and 4th.  And at that time, the BPU staff
23      and consultants presented staff's
24      recommendations for adjustments to the rates.
25      There were then opportunities for public
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 1      comments at each of those public hearing
 2      sessions.  And the hearing officer then closed
 3      the public portion of the hearing and opened the
 4      technical portion of the hearing, which is still
 5      presently underway.
 6               During the technical portion, there's
 7      technical evidence from the BPU staff and
 8      consultants and from the intervenors if any
 9      parties filed a petition to intervene before the
10      deadline has passed.  You had three timely
11      petitions to intervene.  One from an individual,
12      one from a wholesale water customer, and one
13      from a group of large power customers.  And as
14      you know, all of those intervenors are
15      represented before you this evening.
16               On May 4th, the BPU staff presented its
17      prefiled technical testimony.  Individual
18      intervenor filed its testimony.  The group of
19      large power customers asked for additional time
20      to file their testimony, and this was granted
21      for this -- for this customer and the wholesale
22      water customer.
23               You had -- you resumed the technical
24      portion on June 16th and you had a presentation
25      by the BPU staff and by Jim Zakoura on behalf of
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 1      the large power customer group and by the
 2      individual intervenors.  And this followed a
 3      period where these people had talked to each
 4      other about recommendations that could be agreed
 5      upon to give you for 2010 rate increases.  And
 6      the results of the discussions to date were then
 7      presented to the board.
 8               And on June 16th, you approved the
 9      implementation of rate increases in 2010 that
10      were effective July 1, 2010, as recommended by
11      this group with a 7 percent increase in revenues
12      from electric base rates and an 8 percent
13      increase in revenues from water base rates.  As
14      we told you at that time, adjustments had been
15      made in the energy rate component to back out
16      the known contractual fixed power costs, to take
17      those out of the base rate increase so that you
18      had just the 7 percent in revenues from electric
19      base rates and that those additional ERC costs
20      would not be recovered through the ERC.
21               At that time, you directed that the
22      electric rate increase be implemented on an
23      across the board basis and that the water rate
24      increase be implemented as set out in the water
25      cost of service study which had been the
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 1      recommendation.  You also approved provisional
 2      increases for 2011, '12 and '13 in the
 3      percentages indicated in the cost of service
 4      studies.  And those were 7 percent for electric
 5      each year and for water 8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
 6      percent for 2012 and 7 1/2 percent for 2013.
 7               You set deadlines for the filing of
 8      technical testimony.  You directed that the
 9      intervenors should file their technical
10      testimony by August 16th and that the BPU staff
11      file rebuttal testimony by September 7th.  And
12      you indicated that you expected to make a final
13      decision in late September or early October.
14      And you said you wanted all of the evidence in
15      by the end of September.  That was done.
16               Prior to those filings, you heard from
17      a group of the large power customers.  They
18      asked for the opportunity to address you.  And
19      the hearing was reopened on August 4th, at which
20      time you heard from those large pow customers.
21      And you also I believe had a few people make
22      comments during the public portion of that
23      meeting.  But the comments from the large power
24      customers were part of the rate hearing.
25               Rate hearing was then continued.  And,
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 1      as I said, the intervenors filed their testimony
 2      by September 7th to the extent that they had
 3      technical testimony -- sorry, by August 16th.
 4      They filed their testimony by August 16th.  BPU
 5      staff filed its testimony on August 7th except
 6      for a small amount of testimony -- additional
 7      studies that they requested a few additional
 8      days to file, and that was filed on
 9      September 10th.
10               You subsequently received written
11      comments from Suburban Water Company, the
12      wholesale intervenor.  And on September 30th,
13      last Thursday, you held again another public
14      hearing where you received a presentation for
15      each of the large power group, from the Suburban
16      Water Company, the wholesale customer, and from
17      the BPU staff and its consulting engineers.  And
18      you had the opportunity at that time to ask
19      questions of everyone.
20               And you have also received hard copies
21      of all of the rate proceedings.  You've received
22      hard copies of all of the trial -- sorry, of all
23      of the hearing transcripts.  You've got copies
24      of all of the exhibits that have been filed.
25      You've had the opportunity to review the things
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 1      that were said when you weren't here such as
 2      public comments received on the 3rd and 4th and
 3      other matters.
 4               I thought it would be a good idea
 5      before we go through what your decisions are
 6      though to say something that we haven't yet said
 7      in these proceedings, and that is to refresh
 8      everyone's memory about what the charter
 9      ordinance says you are to do in the way of
10      setting rates.  And I have given you and have
11      given to each of the intervenors a copy of page
12      1 and page 11 of the charter ordinance which was
13      adopted by the Unified Government relating to
14      BPU.  And this basically lifts from the statutes
15      which have governed BPU the rate setting
16      proceedings and requirements and put them in the
17      form of a single utility rather than a separate
18      electric division and a water division.
19               So if you look at page 11, section 20,
20      item A tells you what your responsibilities are.
21      And I'll just read that into the record.
22               The board shall fix reasonable rates
23      for utility services and products furnished to
24      its consumers which, 1, will secure an income
25      sufficient to pay all salaries and wages of all
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 1      officers and employees of any utility.  2, will
 2      cover the cost of all materials and supplies
 3      used in the operation of any utility.  3, will
 4      cover the cost of all repairs of any utility.
 5               4, will cover all miscellaneous
 6      expenses of any utility.  5, will pay
 7      contractual and other financial obligations of
 8      the board or the Unified Government incurred for
 9      the purpose of purchasing, improving or
10      extending any utility, including multi-year
11      obligations directly or indirectly related to
12      the payment of the principal of and interest
13      upon revenue bonds, and will provide a sinking
14      fund sufficient to pay the principal of and the
15      interest on such indebtedness at maturity.  And,
16      6, will cover the cost of all repairs and
17      renewals of any utility and all material used,
18      together with a reasonable allowance for
19      emergency and unforeseen expenses.
20               Some of the evidence that was presented
21      to you on September 30th related solely to KCC
22      regulated utilities.  You are not regulated by
23      the KCC, and those statutes do not govern you.
24      It is section 20 that governs your rate setting
25      requirements.
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 1               Now, you heard from a lot of people
 2      about issues that were before you.  And I'd like
 3      to just summarize what I believe to be the
 4      decisions that are before you.  I have given you
 5      a handout which itemizes what I believe to be
 6      these issues.  And, of course, these are all
 7      policy matters for your consideration.
 8               And I'll go through these and then we
 9      will leave it to you to discuss and make
10      whatever decisions you wish to this evening, or
11      if you wish to delay any decisions to do that as
12      well.  And you can certainly feel free to ask
13      questions of me, of any of the other
14      intervenors' counsel and of any of the
15      intervenors' engineering consultants who are
16      present today by phone or in person.
17               It appears to us that the matters
18      requiring decisions are, first, whether you want
19      to approve a multi-year plan, approving rate
20      increases for 2012 and '13 as well as 2011 or to
21      approve a rate increase for 2011 and to defer
22      decision on 2012 and '13 increases.
23               Second, whether to approve the cost of
24      service and cost allocation methodologies
25      recommended by Black & Veatch in its electric
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 1      and water cost service studies and of course --
 2      or to consider some of the other methodologies
 3      that were presented to you during testimony.
 4               3, a determination of the percentage of
 5      electric base rate increases as of the following
 6      dates, and '12 and '13 would be if the board
 7      approves going forward with a multi year plan.
 8      And, of course, you've been presented a number
 9      of options for your consideration during the
10      testimony that was presented to you.
11               4, approval of the electric base rate
12      increases for the customer classes, based on the
13      overall increase percentages approved by the
14      board.  Now, the BPU staff does have tables for
15      you for the different options the BPU staff
16      presented based on the Black & Veatch
17      methodology.  If you wish to choose a different
18      option or a different methodology, we'd have to
19      come back to you with comparable -- comparable
20      tables.
21               But the overall recommendation is that
22      since you did a 7 percent across the board
23      increase for 2010, as Black & Veatch said,
24      they've recommended modifying and leveling out
25      the amount of the increase over the system
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 1      average.  Rather than front loading it in 2010,
 2      you did a system average in 2010.  And Black &
 3      Veatch's current recommendation to you is that
 4      no customer be increased over 120 percent over
 5      the system average.
 6               And that -- that smooths out that
 7      increase over the four year period rather than
 8      front loading it.  And that was -- that was
 9      presented to you during testimony and on the
10      30th.  But the schedules that the staff has for
11      the different options have that approach of
12      recognizing that you had an across the board
13      increase and that you are not front loading the
14      increases for the customer classes but smoothing
15      them out over the four year period for electric.
16               The fifth decision would be a
17      determination of the percentage of water base
18      rate increases as of the following dates.  And,
19      again, 2012 and '13 would be if the Board
20      approves going forward with a multi year plan.
21               The sixth issue would be the approval
22      of water rates for customer classes, based on
23      the overall increases percentages approved by
24      the Board.  And, again, in the testimony, there
25      were -- there were customer class and size of
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 1      meter tables for the different options presented
 2      by the BPU.  And those will be available for
 3      your review depending on the decision that you
 4      make on the revenue increase amount.  If you
 5      wish some other approach, we would have to come
 6      back to you with other tables.  And the staff
 7      would be prepared to give you those tables once
 8      you make a decision on your revenue increase.
 9      No point in giving you a table until you decide
10      what you want to do with the percentage of the
11      overall revenue increase.
12               Seventh would be approval of an energy
13      rate component rider, either as recommended by
14      BPU staff or modified to reflect the intervenor
15      comments.  And the BPU staff has provided the
16      form of the ERC rider that's recommended by
17      staff.  That's been also provided to the
18      intervenors in the audience.
19               Eight is approval of the environmental
20      surcharge rider, either as recommended by BPU
21      staff or modified to reflect intervenor
22      comments.  And, again, you've been provided the
23      form of the ESC rider recommended by staff as a
24      handout.  I will point out that the production
25      capacity allocation formula percentages
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 1      contained in the ESC rider are based on the
 2      Black & Veatch cost of service study and cost
 3      allocation methodology.  If you wish to change
 4      from the Black & Veatch cost of service
 5      allocation methodology, we would change those
 6      production capacity allocation formulas.
 7               Ninth is something that is a joint
 8      recommendation from all.  A is that you approve
 9      that joint recommendation that no change be made
10      at this time to the on-peak period for the
11      billing demand measurement time and that such
12      on-peak period continue its current time frame,
13      10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., until additional study
14      of this issue can be undertaken.
15               Now, we can't tell you that any
16      recommendation for change would come back to you
17      after that additional study, but it's going to
18      be a year or so.  We don't want to reopen a rate
19      hearing just to make a change in that.  So we're
20      secondly recommending that you hold open in this
21      rate proceeding the issue of that on peak period
22      for the billing determinant measurement time.
23      And that would be subject to further action by
24      you after that further study's received.  So
25      that's the one issue that there's a joint
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 1      recommendation that you hold open.
 2               Tenth is a decision on the rachet to be
 3      used for winter demand building.  And the BPU
 4      staff recommends that a 70 percent rachet
 5      continue to be used for winter demand billing.
 6               And, finally, a discussion of the
 7      future review of financial performance and
 8      progress of the BPU toward meeting the financial
 9      goals and a determination of whether you now
10      wish to give a direction to staff, as a part of
11      that ongoing review and evaluation of collection
12      revenues under whatever rates you approve, and
13      of the operating and capital expenditures that
14      the staff would provide you an analysis of
15      whether the financial metrics in the rate plan
16      have been met or exceeded to give you a basis to
17      consider whether you might have a downward
18      adjustment to rates in a future year.
19               I might point out, that might also tell
20      you that you needed to consider a further rate
21      increase, which would have required a rate
22      hearing.  But at any rate, the question before
23      you is do you want staff to come back to you
24      with this analysis on an ongoing basis as
25      performance comes in.


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 16


 1               And, finally, two housekeeping matters.
 2      And that is on the last page, 12, you should
 3      give a direction to Black & Veatch after you've
 4      made your decisions that they prepare a final
 5      rate manual based on the rate increase decisions
 6      that are made by the Board and the decisions on
 7      the Black & Veatch proposed rate design.  And,
 8      finally, that you give a direction to me once
 9      you've made your decisions to prepare a written
10      order for the Board that you can then sign that
11      would set out your decisions, the basis for the
12      decisions as you've indicated during your
13      proceedings tonight and the directions that are
14      made by the board.  So that's -- that's a
15      summary of where we are.  And with that, we'll
16      turn it over to you.
17                     MR. MILAN:  Based on the review
18      from counsel on matters to be required in
19      decision, I make a motion to approve the Black &
20      Veatch cost of service study and cost allocation
21      as presented from Black & Veatch.  That's the
22      first option I have before me.
23                     MS. COLUMBO:  I'll second that
24      motion.
25                     MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?
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 1                     MR. ALVEY:  I just want to
 2      clarify.  So we're working with matter 1.
 3                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Actually, matter
 4      2, the motion to approve the cost of service and
 5      the cost allocation methodologies recommended by
 6      Black & Veatch in its electric and water cost of
 7      service studies.  I imagine we have to have a
 8      second motion on the multi year --
 9                     MS. PETERS:  Yes.
10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  -- so I think --
11      is that correct, Bob, that your motion is for
12      the Black & Veatch study?
13                     MR. MILAN:  Right.
14                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And that's what I
15      second.
16                     MR. ALVEY:  Okay.
17                     MR. MILAN:  Before we take a roll
18      call vote on that, let me have a little few
19      moments.
20                     MR. EIDSON:  I can barely hear
21      you, sir.
22                     MR. MILAN:  I said let me have a
23      few moments please.  This is a difficult
24      decision when we're talking about the
25      responsibility of a financial obligation that
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 1      this Board has under consideration of customers
 2      big and small.  The decision was not an easy one
 3      because what the Board was presented with were
 4      many pieces of documentation.
 5               I have before me the report from the
 6      intervenors I've studied quite well.  I have
 7      recommendation from the staff presented quite
 8      well.  I have charts and diagrams to compare
 9      each of the ratings with other community areas
10      around Kansas City and surrounding territories.
11      I have before me the testimony taken by the
12      court reporter here, very costly, very time
13      consuming.
14               And, finally, I have the final
15      conclusion recommended from Black & Veatch based
16      on my motion to consider the (inaubidle) that
17      we've had with the staff, going over all the
18      options that we have, we have a reasonable
19      increase, so to speak, that best serves the
20      community, our customers, Kansas City, Kansas
21      and Wyandotte County.
22               This document was the final document I
23      received from the consulting engineers, Black &
24      Veatch, which clearly states the risks, the
25      rationale, the purpose of the rate increase that
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 1      we're proposing tonight.  I would like to say to
 2      my board members -- this is my independent
 3      statement, my independent judgment, I'm just
 4      sharing with you some of what 19 years have
 5      taught me.
 6               I think the Board has been very, very
 7      reasonable in the last 19 years in terms of rate
 8      increase.  I think were too small.  I've
 9      expressed that many times.  And we needed to
10      probably have small rate increases from 2006 and
11      before in order to not reach this same point.
12      But under the circumstances, under the
13      circumstances, based on cost allocation, cost of
14      service study and all the other components that
15      go with that rate increase design, this is why I
16      make my comments.  Thank you very much.
17                     MR. PETTEY:  Do you at this time
18      just want to vote on the electric or do you want
19      to add the cost of service for water also?
20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Well, I think in
21      this recommendation, it says that it's electric
22      and water.
23                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  I just wanted
24      to make -- I mean, that's what it was, but the
25      way we talked -- make that understood.  Any
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 1      other discussion?
 2               I guess we give a roll call, please, to
 3      see what happens there.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Yes.  Roll call.
 5      Loretta Colombel.
 6                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
 7                     MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.
 8                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
 9                     MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.
10                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
11                     MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.
12                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
13                     MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,
14      Senior.
15                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
16                     MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.
17                     MR. PETTEY:  I'll make it
18      unanimous.  Aye.
19                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
20                     MR. PETTEY:  Thank you.  Rob.
21                     MR. MILAN:  And we have another
22      item here that probably should be up front, make
23      sure that (inaudible) information.  The issue is
24      making sure that our plan it can be deferred
25      from '12, '13 based on what the recommendations
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 1      made of counsel here.  Do you get that?
 2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Are you making a
 3      motion to approve the multi year plan?
 4                     MR. MILAN:  Right, right.
 5                     MS. COLOMBEL:  For the rate
 6      increases for 2012 and 2013?
 7                     MR. MILAN:  Right.
 8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  As well as this
 9      one -- the present year that we're in?
10                     MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.
11      Absolutely.
12                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second your
13      motion.
14                     MR. MILAN:  Make sure it's clear.
15                     MR. ALVEY:  I think we say we
16      wish to approve a multi year plan to approve
17      rate increases for 2011, 2012, 2013.
18                     MR. MILAN:  Precisely.
19                     MS. GONZALEZ:  And we're talking
20      water and electric.  Is that your intent,
21      Mr. Milan?
22                     MR. MILAN:  That's correct.
23                     MR. EIDSON:  And that is based on
24      the Black & Veatch study that was presented to
25      us.
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 1                     MR. MILAN:  Yes.  Absolutely.
 2                     MR. ALVEY:  Second.
 3                     MR. PETTEY:  Loretta already
 4      seconded.
 5                     MR. ALVEY:  Sorry.
 6                     MS. COLOMBEL:  That's okay.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other
 8      discussion?  Roll call, please.
 9                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.  Loretta
10      Columbel.
11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
12                     MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.
13                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
14                     MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.
15                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
16                     MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.
17                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
18                     MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,
19      Senior.
20                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
21                     MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.
22                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we --
25      Mr. Pettey, do we also need an approval on the
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 1      customer classes or do we go now to the energy
 2      rate component and the energy surcharge?
 3                     MR. MILAN:  That's important.
 4                     MS. PETERS:  Mrs. Columbel, I
 5      think you should take up a decision on each of
 6      these items in order.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  So we were looking
 8      at No. 7.  Now --
 9                     MS. PETERS:  Actually, I think
10      we're looking at No. 3.
11                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.
12                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And the motion
13      would be that the percentage of the electric
14      base rate increase as the following dates in
15      accordance with the Black & Veatch study?
16                     MR. MILAN:  You make a motion?
17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  No.  I'm asking
18      Kathy if that's the proper --
19                     MS. PETERS:  Excuse me just a
20      second.  I would suggest to you that you just
21      include in your motion the percentages that you
22      wish to increase.  Now, the Black & Veatch study
23      called for on the electric side 7 percent
24      January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012,
25      7 percent January 1, 2013.  And I would ask you,
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 1      is that the import of your motion?
 2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.
 3                     MR. MILAN:  Right.
 4                     MR. EIDSON:  On what class of
 5      service?
 6                     MR. ALVEY:  We're not talking
 7      about --
 8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  We're just on No.
 9      3.
10                     MR. EIDSON:  I understand that.
11                     MR. ALVEY:  It's the electric
12      base rate.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Right.  So that my
14      motion was that it would be the 7 percent in
15      January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012, and
16      7 percent as of January 1, 2013, and that would
17      be the electric only.
18                     MR. ALVEY:  Base rate, not
19      according to class.
20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  And that is
21      in the form of a motion, please.
22                     MR. MILAN:  Second the motion.
23                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other
24      discussion?  Roll call, please.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
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 1      Columbel.
 2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
 3                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
 4                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
 5                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
 6                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
 7                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 8                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 9                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
10                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
11                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
12                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
13                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
14                     MR. ALVEY:  I think on No. 4 --
15                     MS. PETERS:  No. 4, we have --
16                     MR. ALVEY:  An adjustment to the
17      original.
18                     MS. PETERS:  As I indicated, we
19      had handouts based on what option you chose or
20      if you chose some other one.  And Lori has the
21      Black & Veatch recommendations for the rate
22      increases for the customer classes based on the
23      7 percent overall base rate increase.
24                     MR. ALVEY:  This is -- and so,
25      Kathy, if I may ask, to be clear, this is with
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 1      there not being an adjustment greater than
 2      120 percent of the average system?
 3                     MS. PETERS:  I would ask Craig to
 4      answer that question.  Craig Brown.
 5                     MR. BROWN:  That is correct.  I
 6      believe it's actually -- I think it was
 7      8.5 percent actually in 2011, but it's like
 8      121 percent, approximately 120 percent of the
 9      system average.
10                     MR. EIDSON:  Craig, I have a
11      question.
12                     MR. BROWN:  Sure.
13                     MR. EIDSON:  Why would we not
14      have a rate increase for USD 500 schools?  We're
15      at 0 percent in '11, 0 percent in '12.  I
16      mean --
17                     MR. BROWN:  The initial reasoning
18      was for -- in our original recommendations, it
19      was recommended they should have 0 percent in
20      the first year and I believe the second year and
21      then increase to 3 percent in '12 and 5 percent
22      I believe in '13, approximately.  When they got
23      a 7 percent across the board in July 2010, it
24      was determined, in collaboration with the staff
25      as well, that they should have 0 percent because
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 1      they weren't going to get up to 7 percent until
 2      about the third year.
 3                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  I remember
 4      that discussion.
 5                     MR. EIDSON:  I'm not so sure I'm
 6      in agreement with that, but at this point, I
 7      don't know what we would do about it.
 8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I think --
 9                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, they had a 7,
10      but it was going to be 0.
11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  It was going to be
12      a 5 and 3.
13                     MR. EIDSON:  Everybody got a 7.
14                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, but I mean,
15      they were really going to --
16                     MR. BROWN:  I can clarify that.
17      They were 0, 3 in 2011 and 5 in 2012 and 7 in
18      2013 was the original plan.
19                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah.
20                     MR. EIDSON:  That's what I'm
21      looking at.
22                     MR. BROWN:  And approximately 7
23      in 2010 by the time you get a 0 and 3 and a 5,
24      be about the same spot by the end.
25                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.
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 1                     MR. ALVEY:  I make a motion to
 2      approve the electric base rate increases for the
 3      customer classes based on the table presented by
 4      staff.
 5                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second the
 6      motion.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  Roll call pending
 8      any other discussion.  Roll call, please.
 9                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
10      Columbel.
11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
12                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
13                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
14                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
15                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
16                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
17                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
18                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
19                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
20                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
21                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
22                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
23                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  No. 5.
24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we have a
25      determination for the water percentage?  Just
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 1      another clarification.
 2                     MS. PETERS:  The cost of service
 3      study indicated that water would be 8 percent in
 4      2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in
 5      2013.
 6                     MR. EIDSON:  Say that one more
 7      time, Kathy, I'm sorry.
 8                     MS. PETERS:  The cost of service
 9      study indicated for water an 8 percent increase
10      in 2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012, and 7 1/2
11      percent in 2013.
12                     MR. EIDSON:  Thank you.
13                     MR. MILAN:  Those percentages
14      were included in the item No. 2.  She's just
15      verifying what those are.
16                     MS. PETERS:  No.  We want a
17      separate motion on those.
18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  But we do need a
19      separate motion.  Are you making a motion?
20                     MR. MILAN:  Yes.  I make a motion
21      to accept item 4 --
22                     MR. EIDSON:  5.
23                     MR. MILAN:  Item 5 as presented.
24                     MR. EIDSON:  Second.
25                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 30


 1      discussion?
 2                     MS. PETERS:  Again, I would like
 3      to clarify that motion.  You are moving that the
 4      water increase be 8 1/2 percent in 2011 --
 5                     MS. GONZALEZ:  8.
 6                     MR. EIDSON:  8.
 7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  8 percent 2011.
 8                     MS. PETERS:  Sorry.  Good thing I
 9      clarified that.  8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
10      percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in 2013.
11                     MR. MILAN:  That's correct.
12                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Roll call,
13      please.
14                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
15      Colombel.
16                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
17                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
18                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
19                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
20                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
21                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
22                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
24                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
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 1                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 3                     MS. PETERS:  And we have asked
 4      Loretta to hand out a schedule of the water
 5      rates for the customer classes based on that
 6      overall increase.  Again, we had the different
 7      options that have been presented to the Board.
 8      This is the one contained in the original cost
 9      of service report.
10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll make a motion
11      to approve the water rates for customer classes
12      based on the average increase percentage that
13      has been presented.
14                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I second.
15                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Any
16      discussion on that?  Motion by Ms. Columbel,
17      second by Ms. Gonzales to approve as presented
18      to us.  Roll call, please.
19                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
20      Colombel.
21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
22                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
23                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
24                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
25                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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 1                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 2                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 3                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 4                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 5                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 6                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 7                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 8                     MR. ALVEY:  I'd like to make a
 9      motion for approval of the energy rate component
10      rider as recommended by BPU staff.
11                     MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.
12                     MR. PETTEY:  Got a motion by
13      Mr. Alvey and second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
14      the rate.  Any discussion on that?  Let's roll
15      call, please.
16                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
17      Colombel.
18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
19                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
20                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
21                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
22                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
24                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
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 1                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 3                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 5                     MR. PETTEY:  Next is the ERC --
 6                     MS. PETERS:  ESC.
 7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Environmental
 8      surcharge rider.
 9                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, I'm sorry.
10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Motion to approve
11      the environmental surcharge rider recommended by
12      staff.
13                     MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.
14                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
15      Ms. Columbel, second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
16      the environmental surcharge rider.  Any
17      discussion?  Roll call, please.
18                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
19      Colombel.
20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
21                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
22                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
24                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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 1                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 3                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 5                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 6                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I guess I have a
 8      question on No. 9.  Is the recommended --
 9      recommendation by staff and intervenors, is this
10      the one that Lori presented to us last week that
11      we would hold where we are; is that correct?
12                     MS. PETERS:  Yes, ma'am.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.  Motion to
14      approve.
15                     MR. EIDSON:  Second.
16                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
17      Ms. Gonzales, second by Mr. Eidson to approve
18      staff recommendations on the on-peak period.
19      Roll call, please.
20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
21      Colombel.
22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 10 is the BPU
10      staff recommendation that a 7 percent ratchet
11      continue to be used for winter demand billing.
12                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I move to approve
13      that we use the 7 percent rachet continuing for
14      winter demand.
15                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
16                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
17      Ms. Gonzales, second by Ms. Colombel to approve
18      the 7 percent rachet for winter demand billing.
19      Any other discussion?  Roll call, please.
20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
21      Colombel.
22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 11 is a
10      discussion of further review of the financial
11      performance and progress of the BPU toward
12      meeting our financial goals.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think this
14      is very key, Mr. Pettey.
15                     MR. MILAN:  This is very
16      important.  This should be explained really
17      clearly.
18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think
19      Ms. Gonzales has stated this all along that as
20      we go through this process and we do have these
21      increases that we are watched very closely what
22      we're doing with our expenditures and with
23      capital improvements.
24                     MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.
25                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So do we need this


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 37


 1      in a form of a motion as to an exact time frame
 2      we want?
 3                     MR. MILAN:  I'll request the
 4      whole paragraph be read clearly to make sure
 5      it's understood between us and the public so we
 6      understand what we really mean.
 7                     MS. PETERS:  We would suggest
 8      that you consider this at a minimum at the time
 9      that you're putting your budget together for the
10      following fiscal year that you get an analysis
11      of where you are for meeting your financial
12      metrics to date.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I think I would
14      like more than one a year.  I think I'd at least
15      like a six month interval.
16                     MR. ALVEY:  My only -- I think
17      that this is something that we do, you know, the
18      monthly financial reports, the quarterly
19      reports.  I believe this is a function that
20      we're already accomplishing.  I'm really not --
21      I can see why we would vote for this, but we do
22      it as a rule anyway.  So I wouldn't want -- if
23      we pass it, I don't want to give people the idea
24      that we don't do this on a regular basis.
25                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree, David.  I
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 1      just -- I think in the interest of public
 2      discussion and -- that it is a separate item
 3      that -- I would say twice a year, you know,
 4      during budget time and then late -- maybe again
 5      in July that it is a single discussion on the
 6      outcomes and what we have been able to -- to
 7      meet in our financial goals the best
 8      determination.  I know we have a monthly, but I
 9      would still like to see what this process has
10      brought us to.
11                     MR. MILAN:  Well, I take a
12      different approach.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.
14                     MR. MILAN:  What I'm trying to
15      say -- unless you want to read it --
16                     MR. PETTEY:  Go ahead.
17                     MR. MILAN:  Item 11, Discussion
18      of further review of financial performance and
19      progress of the Board towards meeting the
20      financial goal and determination of whether to
21      give a direction to staff, as a part of the
22      ongoing review and evaluation of collection of
23      revenues under the approved rates and operation
24      and capital expenditures, to provide an analysis
25      of whether the financial metrics in the rate
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 1      plan have been met or exceeded to provide a
 2      basis for the Board to consider whether a
 3      downward adjustment to rates may be made in the
 4      future.
 5               We're saying that if it looks better in
 6      '11 and '12, then the staff should take and
 7      adjust -- I want to make it clear that although
 8      we agree to these figures tonight, these
 9      percentages, we have the option, the staff has
10      the option to look at the analysis and review as
11      we promised the intervenors and the public, we
12      will look at these rates.  We may go down to 6
13      next year, okay.  5.  Hope we go down to 0.  But
14      anyway, that's hypothetical, but my point is,
15      that's the purpose of 11.
16                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree.
17                     MR. MILAN:  It should be clear.
18      Do you understand that?
19                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I totally agree.
20                     MR. MILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.
21                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, the pilot
22      should go down.  We know it's going to go down.
23                     MR. EIDSON:  I agree with this.
24      We do look at that monthly, the finance
25      committee does look at the -- where the Board or
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 1      where the utility is on a monthly basis.  And I
 2      don't think there's anybody up here at this
 3      table that had the opportunity to lower the
 4      rates would not hesitate to do that if
 5      everything was sound and stable here at the BPU.
 6                     MR. MILAN:  Well, based on what
 7      we approved in the rate increase, this reflects
 8      this particular set of circumstances, okay.
 9                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So would the
10      discussion be that this is handled yearly in the
11      budget review for the following year so we would
12      know if there was a possibility of a reduction
13      in the rates?
14                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, ask for a
15      timely report so we can decide in advance what
16      we can do, if we can or cannot with --
17                     MR. MILAN:  It gives direction to
18      the staff saying, tell the Board where we are,
19      do we stay status quo, do we have an opportunity
20      based on analysis to reduce or stay where we
21      are.  It's telling the staff what to do here.
22                     MR. ALVEY:  If the direction to
23      the staff is that they have to present proposal
24      to us specifically addressing that rates ought
25      to remain at the level, which has been
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 1      established by the decision tonight, or whether
 2      an adjustment downward, if they are directed
 3      specifically to offer a recommendation, that's
 4      different than just -- I think this doesn't
 5      quite say what we're trying to say.  I think
 6      what it needs to say is staff should be directed
 7      to recommend any rate increase or decrease --
 8                     MR. PETTEY:  Can't increase.
 9                     MR. ALVEY:  I'm sorry.  Any rate
10      decrease from what was established by decisions
11      tonight.  If that's what we're trying to do,
12      then I'm fine with that.
13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  That's the
14      whole basis.
15                     MR. MILAN:  That's what it's
16      trying to say.
17                     MR. ALVEY:  Yeah.  I don't think
18      it says that in the language.
19                     MR. EIDSON:  It could be done
20      when we're working on the budget, yearly budget.
21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Mary.
22                     MR. MILAN:  We have time to agree
23      upon the staff later on.  Move on from that.
24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like to
25      make that in the form of a motion, David?
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 1                     MR. ALVEY:  Sure.  I'll just
 2      change -- the only language I would change there
 3      is to direct the staff to provide an analysis
 4      and a recommend- -- an analysis of whether the
 5      financial metrics in the rate plan have been met
 6      or exceeded and to recommend or not recommend a
 7      downward adjustment to rates to be made in the
 8      future year.
 9                     MR. EIDSON:  Do you want to tie
10      that to the Board?
11                     MR. ALVEY:  Actually, a
12      recommendation.
13                     MR. MILAN:  It means the same.
14      Fine with me.
15                     MR. EIDSON:  Tied to a budget
16      proceeding.
17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
18                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other
19      discussion?  Roll call.
20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
21      Colombel.
22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 12, we're
10      asking -- we're directing Black & Veatch to
11      prepare a final manual based on the rate
12      increases decisions we've just made on the
13      proposed rate.
14                     MR. ALVEY:  So moved.
15                     MR. MILAN:  Second.
16                     MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?
17      Roll call, please.
18                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
19      Colombel.
20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
21                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
22                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
23                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
24                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
25                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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 1                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 2                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 3                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 4                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 5                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 6                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 7                     MR. PETTEY:  13, give direction
 8      to the rate counsel to prepare a written order
 9      for the Board, setting out the decisions,
10      evidentiary basis on the decisions and
11      directions made by the Board.
12                     MR. EIDSON:  So moved.
13                     MR. ALVEY:  Second.
14                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
15                     MR. PETTEY:  Roll call, please.
16                     MS. BOEDING:  Who's the second?
17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I said it.
18                     MR. EIDSON:  Loretta Columbel.
19                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
20      Colombel.
21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
22                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
23                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
24                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
25                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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 1                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
 2                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
 3                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
 4                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.
 5                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
 6                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
 7                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
 8                     MR. PETTEY:  You know, I would
 9      say thank you for everyone for all of the effort
10      that went into the final decision on this.  It's
11      been a trying several months trying to decide
12      what's the best way for the BPU and our
13      customers big and small, and I feel that we have
14      done that this evening.
15               But like we have mentioned earlier, we
16      want to make it very clear if there's any way
17      that these rates can come down in the future
18      years, we definitely want that to happen.
19      They're not written in stone.  Anyone else?
20                     MR. MILAN:  Thank you.  That's a
21      good comment.
22                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other board
23      comments on this?
24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I also want to
25      thank staff, the intervenors, the consultants.
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 1      I know that every one of you have worked long
 2      and hard to bring us testimony, statements,
 3      proof, facts, all of the papers that Mr. Milan
 4      spoke of.  It's not an easy decision.  It's
 5      never an easy decision to increase someone's
 6      bill.  But it's the best decision for our
 7      utility.  And I'm proud to be a part of this
 8      board that made a unanimous decision to keep our
 9      community whole and to keep our utility
10      functioning properly.
11                     MR. MILAN:  I'd like to use an
12      Optimist Club kind of theory which says, Forget
13      the mistakes of the past and press on to greater
14      achievement in the future.  And that's what the
15      Board needs to do.  (Inaudible) tomorrow and
16      move on to serve this community in the best
17      fashion we can.  Thank you.
18                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I'd also like to
19      say thank you to the intervenors for everybody's
20      time and effort on this project.  The hardest
21      thing to do for our board members is to strike a
22      balance to preserve the integrity of our utility
23      and to keep our community moving forward.  And
24      it's a difficult decision and one that I know
25      all of us have deliberated long and hard on.
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 1      And we're trying to do the best for the utility
 2      and for our community.
 3                     MR. ALVEY:  Also, I'd like to say
 4      thanks to everyone who's involved in this,
 5      including our attorneys, our consultants,
 6      Mr. Carson, our consultants from Black & Veatch,
 7      the intervenors, the industrial class customers
 8      and all of the customers of the Board of Public
 9      Utilities.  I would like to remind folks that
10      when we started this process, we committed
11      ourselves to conducting a fair and transparent
12      process.  And I am proud of the way that the
13      management and staff and members of the Board
14      have done that.
15               And, you know, it's -- I believe we're
16      at a critical juncture at the BPU.  I think the
17      evidence is clear.  And what we decide to do
18      from this point on will determine the fate of
19      the Board of Public Utilities.  We have to
20      restore our cash reserves.  We have to restore
21      our debt coverage ratio.  We have to restore our
22      capital operations.  We have to do the necessary
23      improvements, our maintenance.  We have to do
24      these things or there won't be a BPU to talk
25      about.  I'm convinced of that.
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 1               At the same time, I'm painfully aware
 2      of how this affects the bottom line of all of
 3      our residents and all of our industrial
 4      customers.  You know, there's going to be an
 5      impact.  I understand the total BPU bill with
 6      the pilot included does have an effect on the
 7      competitiveness of every business in this city.
 8      And I'm concerned with the impact that this is
 9      going to have on our -- our residential
10      customers, especially those on fixed income or
11      those unemployed.
12               And I would suggest that this rate
13      increase cannot function as the only tool that
14      we use to restore the BPU to its full financial
15      and operational health.  If there's one message
16      that came across loud and clear in this rate
17      hearing process, it's this.  And that's that the
18      BPU must continue to find ways to provide pure
19      power and pure water and at the lowest possible
20      cost.
21               In other words, I think we have been
22      challenged to review every line item to
23      determine what we can do to reduce our costs and
24      therefore reduce the upper pressure on rates.
25      We have an obligation so I believe this board is
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 1      willing to take a good look at our budget each
 2      year to see what we can do to limit proposed
 3      rate increases.
 4               In short, I just think that increased
 5      revenues that we will realize from these rate
 6      increases cannot be looked upon as a pot of gold
 7      that we get to spend freely.  On the contrary,
 8      these increased revenues are an opportunity to
 9      sustain the utility while we work to find ways
10      to reduce costs.  Otherwise, it's been
11      pointless.  And, again, I thank all of those who
12      worked so hard on this process.
13                     MR. PETTEY:  You put it very
14      well, Mr. Alvey.
15                     MR. EIDSON:  It is just -- I'm so
16      proud to be a part of this board and to have sat
17      here and know that we have done our diligence,
18      and I -- there's not much else I can say.
19      Everyone has pretty much summed up all of our
20      feelings.  And, again, thanks to everybody, to
21      the staff, to intervenors, to attorneys and
22      again to you, Your Honor.  That's all I have to
23      say.
24                     MR. PETTEY:  Kathy.
25                     MS. PETERS:  Black & Veatch and I
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 1      will follow your directives.  I recommend to you
 2      that you not close the hearing tonight.  I'd
 3      like to have you have the final approval of the
 4      rate manual and of the order and perhaps take
 5      that up at your next meeting October 20th.
 6                     MR. PETTEY:  Uh-huh.
 7                     MS. PETERS:  And also that will
 8      give Black & Veatch the chance to fill out those
 9      rate schedules based on the decisions that
10      you've made and share those with Mr. Gorman so
11      they can make sure that they're in agreement
12      about all of the numbers based on the approach
13      that you have directed us to follow.
14                     MR. MILAN:  Will that be the
15      final business?
16                     MS. PETERS:  And that will be the
17      final business except for holding open the
18      decision on the on peak demand period, which, as
19      I said, is subject to study for next year or so.
20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So basically,
21      you're asking us to wait for the written
22      documentation?
23                     MS. PETERS:  I am.  I'm
24      suggesting that given that you are to make a
25      final decision within five days of completing a
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 1      hearing and given that you're going to approve
 2      the final rate manual in the order, it's my
 3      suggestion to you that you continue this until
 4      your next meeting so that you can approve the
 5      order and approve the rate manual and then
 6      complete the hearing.
 7                     MR. MILAN:  I want to get some
 8      sleep.  I just want to know when I can get it,
 9      okay?
10                     MS. PETERS:  You can get it
11      tonight.  You've made your decision.  This is
12      housekeeping.  Your final decision is
13      housekeeping, but just so that it's clear that
14      you will make -- you'll approve the order on the
15      20th.  That's our suggestion.
16                     MR. MILAN:  All right.  Thank
17      you.
18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like a
19      motion, Ms. Peters?
20                     MS. PETERS:  No.  I think
21      Mr. Carson can simply --
22                     HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  We'll
23      just based -- upon the Board's apparent assent,
24      we will continue this rate hearing to
25      October 20th at 6:00 p.m.
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 1                     MR. PETTEY:  Very good.
 2                     HEARING OFFICER:  That's the
 3      conclusion of this hearing for today.
 4            (Proceedings concluded at 7:05 p.m.)
 5
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 1                         CERTIFICATE
 2
 3               I, Jean M. Crawford, a Certified
 4      Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that I
 5      appeared at the time and place first
 6      hereinbefore set forth, that I took down in
 7      shorthand the entire proceedings had at said
 8      time and place, and that the foregoing
 9      constitutes a true, correct, and complete
10      transcript of my said shorthand notes.
11
12
13                        _____________________________
14                        JEAN M. CRAWFORD
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 1  (Proceedings commenced at 6:12 p.m.)
 2      HEARING OFFICER: Ladies and
 3  gentlemen, I'm Phillip Carson, the hearing
 4  officer for purposes of the 2010 rate hearing.
 5  And we were last here last Thursday on
 6  September 30th.  Would any attorneys
 7  representing intervenors please announce their
 8  appearances and that of the intervenors.
 9      MR. ZAKOURA: Good evening.
10  James P. Zakoura on behalf of the large volume
11  collector and water users.
12      HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, sir.
13      MR. FLAHERTY: James G. Flaherty,
14  Ottawa, Kansas, appearing on behalf of the
15  intervenor Suburban Water Company.
16      HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.
17      MR. YARNELL: Rick Yarnell.
18      HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
19  Mr. Yarnell.  Ms. Peters.
20      MS. PETERS: Thank you, Your
21  Honor.  And my name is Kathy Peters representing
22  the BPU in this matter.  And I'd like to also
23  let the record reflect that two of the
24  consulting engineers -- three of the consulting
25  engineers from Black & Veatch are present in
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 1  the -- in the audience, Arnold White, Bob Brady
 2  and Craig Brown and that Ed Overcast is present
 3  on the telephone and that Mike Gorman is also
 4  present in the audience representing the large
 5  power group.  And I think that's everyone in the
 6  room who's representing an intervenor, correct?
 7      Thank you very much.  Ladies and
 8  gentlemen, I'd like to go over a few things with
 9  you, and then we will turn this matter over to
10  you.  The hearing to date summary I've given you
11  a few times, I'd like to give it to you again in
12  brief one time so it will catch us up with where
13  we are at this point.
14      As you know, under the Unified
15  Government charter ordinance and the procedures
16  governing the rate process, the BPU has to
17  publish notice of a public hearing for a utility
18  rate increase at least 90 days before the
19  hearing commences.  Notice was published in
20  February.  The public hearing commenced on May
21  3rd.  There were public hearing sessions on May
22  3rd and 4th.  And at that time, the BPU staff
23  and consultants presented staff's
24  recommendations for adjustments to the rates.
25  There were then opportunities for public
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 1  comments at each of those public hearing
 2  sessions.  And the hearing officer then closed
 3  the public portion of the hearing and opened the
 4  technical portion of the hearing, which is still
 5  presently underway.
 6      During the technical portion, there's
 7  technical evidence from the BPU staff and
 8  consultants and from the intervenors if any
 9  parties filed a petition to intervene before the
10  deadline has passed.  You had three timely
11  petitions to intervene.  One from an individual,
12  one from a wholesale water customer, and one
13  from a group of large power customers.  And as
14  you know, all of those intervenors are
15  represented before you this evening.
16      On May 4th, the BPU staff presented its
17  prefiled technical testimony.  Individual
18  intervenor filed its testimony.  The group of
19  large power customers asked for additional time
20  to file their testimony, and this was granted
21  for this -- for this customer and the wholesale
22  water customer.
23      You had -- you resumed the technical
24  portion on June 16th and you had a presentation
25  by the BPU staff and by Jim Zakoura on behalf of
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 1  the large power customer group and by the
 2  individual intervenors.  And this followed a
 3  period where these people had talked to each
 4  other about recommendations that could be agreed
 5  upon to give you for 2010 rate increases.  And
 6  the results of the discussions to date were then
 7  presented to the board.
 8      And on June 16th, you approved the
 9  implementation of rate increases in 2010 that
10  were effective July 1, 2010, as recommended by
11  this group with a 7 percent increase in revenues
12  from electric base rates and an 8 percent
13  increase in revenues from water base rates.  As
14  we told you at that time, adjustments had been
15  made in the energy rate component to back out
16  the known contractual fixed power costs, to take
17  those out of the base rate increase so that you
18  had just the 7 percent in revenues from electric
19  base rates and that those additional ERC costs
20  would not be recovered through the ERC.
21      At that time, you directed that the
22  electric rate increase be implemented on an
23  across the board basis and that the water rate
24  increase be implemented as set out in the water
25  cost of service study which had been the
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 1  recommendation.  You also approved provisional
 2  increases for 2011, '12 and '13 in the
 3  percentages indicated in the cost of service
 4  studies.  And those were 7 percent for electric
 5  each year and for water 8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
 6  percent for 2012 and 7 1/2 percent for 2013.
 7      You set deadlines for the filing of
 8  technical testimony.  You directed that the
 9  intervenors should file their technical
10  testimony by August 16th and that the BPU staff
11  file rebuttal testimony by September 7th.  And
12  you indicated that you expected to make a final
13  decision in late September or early October.
14  And you said you wanted all of the evidence in
15  by the end of September.  That was done.
16      Prior to those filings, you heard from
17  a group of the large power customers.  They
18  asked for the opportunity to address you.  And
19  the hearing was reopened on August 4th, at which
20  time you heard from those large pow customers.
21  And you also I believe had a few people make
22  comments during the public portion of that
23  meeting.  But the comments from the large power
24  customers were part of the rate hearing.
25      Rate hearing was then continued.  And,
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 1  as I said, the intervenors filed their testimony
 2  by September 7th to the extent that they had
 3  technical testimony -- sorry, by August 16th.
 4  They filed their testimony by August 16th.  BPU
 5  staff filed its testimony on August 7th except
 6  for a small amount of testimony -- additional
 7  studies that they requested a few additional
 8  days to file, and that was filed on
 9  September 10th.
10      You subsequently received written
11  comments from Suburban Water Company, the
12  wholesale intervenor.  And on September 30th,
13  last Thursday, you held again another public
14  hearing where you received a presentation for
15  each of the large power group, from the Suburban
16  Water Company, the wholesale customer, and from
17  the BPU staff and its consulting engineers.  And
18  you had the opportunity at that time to ask
19  questions of everyone.
20      And you have also received hard copies
21  of all of the rate proceedings.  You've received
22  hard copies of all of the trial -- sorry, of all
23  of the hearing transcripts.  You've got copies
24  of all of the exhibits that have been filed.
25  You've had the opportunity to review the things
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 1  that were said when you weren't here such as
 2  public comments received on the 3rd and 4th and
 3  other matters.
 4      I thought it would be a good idea
 5  before we go through what your decisions are
 6  though to say something that we haven't yet said
 7  in these proceedings, and that is to refresh
 8  everyone's memory about what the charter
 9  ordinance says you are to do in the way of
10  setting rates.  And I have given you and have
11  given to each of the intervenors a copy of page
12  1 and page 11 of the charter ordinance which was
13  adopted by the Unified Government relating to
14  BPU.  And this basically lifts from the statutes
15  which have governed BPU the rate setting
16  proceedings and requirements and put them in the
17  form of a single utility rather than a separate
18  electric division and a water division.
19      So if you look at page 11, section 20,
20  item A tells you what your responsibilities are.
21  And I'll just read that into the record.
22      The board shall fix reasonable rates
23  for utility services and products furnished to
24  its consumers which, 1, will secure an income
25  sufficient to pay all salaries and wages of all
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 1  officers and employees of any utility.  2, will
 2  cover the cost of all materials and supplies
 3  used in the operation of any utility.  3, will
 4  cover the cost of all repairs of any utility.
 5      4, will cover all miscellaneous
 6  expenses of any utility.  5, will pay
 7  contractual and other financial obligations of
 8  the board or the Unified Government incurred for
 9  the purpose of purchasing, improving or
10  extending any utility, including multi-year
11  obligations directly or indirectly related to
12  the payment of the principal of and interest
13  upon revenue bonds, and will provide a sinking
14  fund sufficient to pay the principal of and the
15  interest on such indebtedness at maturity.  And,
16  6, will cover the cost of all repairs and
17  renewals of any utility and all material used,
18  together with a reasonable allowance for
19  emergency and unforeseen expenses.
20      Some of the evidence that was presented
21  to you on September 30th related solely to KCC
22  regulated utilities.  You are not regulated by
23  the KCC, and those statutes do not govern you.
24  It is section 20 that governs your rate setting
25  requirements.
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 1      Now, you heard from a lot of people
 2  about issues that were before you.  And I'd like
 3  to just summarize what I believe to be the
 4  decisions that are before you.  I have given you
 5  a handout which itemizes what I believe to be
 6  these issues.  And, of course, these are all
 7  policy matters for your consideration.
 8      And I'll go through these and then we
 9  will leave it to you to discuss and make
10  whatever decisions you wish to this evening, or
11  if you wish to delay any decisions to do that as
12  well.  And you can certainly feel free to ask
13  questions of me, of any of the other
14  intervenors' counsel and of any of the
15  intervenors' engineering consultants who are
16  present today by phone or in person.
17      It appears to us that the matters
18  requiring decisions are, first, whether you want
19  to approve a multi-year plan, approving rate
20  increases for 2012 and '13 as well as 2011 or to
21  approve a rate increase for 2011 and to defer
22  decision on 2012 and '13 increases.
23      Second, whether to approve the cost of
24  service and cost allocation methodologies
25  recommended by Black & Veatch in its electric
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 1  and water cost service studies and of course --
 2  or to consider some of the other methodologies
 3  that were presented to you during testimony.
 4      3, a determination of the percentage of
 5  electric base rate increases as of the following
 6  dates, and '12 and '13 would be if the board
 7  approves going forward with a multi year plan.
 8  And, of course, you've been presented a number
 9  of options for your consideration during the
10  testimony that was presented to you.
11      4, approval of the electric base rate
12  increases for the customer classes, based on the
13  overall increase percentages approved by the
14  board.  Now, the BPU staff does have tables for
15  you for the different options the BPU staff
16  presented based on the Black & Veatch
17  methodology.  If you wish to choose a different
18  option or a different methodology, we'd have to
19  come back to you with comparable -- comparable
20  tables.
21      But the overall recommendation is that
22  since you did a 7 percent across the board
23  increase for 2010, as Black & Veatch said,
24  they've recommended modifying and leveling out
25  the amount of the increase over the system
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 1  average.  Rather than front loading it in 2010,
 2  you did a system average in 2010.  And Black &
 3  Veatch's current recommendation to you is that
 4  no customer be increased over 120 percent over
 5  the system average.
 6      And that -- that smooths out that
 7  increase over the four year period rather than
 8  front loading it.  And that was -- that was
 9  presented to you during testimony and on the
10  30th.  But the schedules that the staff has for
11  the different options have that approach of
12  recognizing that you had an across the board
13  increase and that you are not front loading the
14  increases for the customer classes but smoothing
15  them out over the four year period for electric.
16      The fifth decision would be a
17  determination of the percentage of water base
18  rate increases as of the following dates.  And,
19  again, 2012 and '13 would be if the Board
20  approves going forward with a multi year plan.
21      The sixth issue would be the approval
22  of water rates for customer classes, based on
23  the overall increases percentages approved by
24  the Board.  And, again, in the testimony, there
25  were -- there were customer class and size of
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 1  meter tables for the different options presented
 2  by the BPU.  And those will be available for
 3  your review depending on the decision that you
 4  make on the revenue increase amount.  If you
 5  wish some other approach, we would have to come
 6  back to you with other tables.  And the staff
 7  would be prepared to give you those tables once
 8  you make a decision on your revenue increase.
 9  No point in giving you a table until you decide
10  what you want to do with the percentage of the
11  overall revenue increase.
12      Seventh would be approval of an energy
13  rate component rider, either as recommended by
14  BPU staff or modified to reflect the intervenor
15  comments.  And the BPU staff has provided the
16  form of the ERC rider that's recommended by
17  staff.  That's been also provided to the
18  intervenors in the audience.
19      Eight is approval of the environmental
20  surcharge rider, either as recommended by BPU
21  staff or modified to reflect intervenor
22  comments.  And, again, you've been provided the
23  form of the ESC rider recommended by staff as a
24  handout.  I will point out that the production
25  capacity allocation formula percentages
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 1  contained in the ESC rider are based on the
 2  Black & Veatch cost of service study and cost
 3  allocation methodology.  If you wish to change
 4  from the Black & Veatch cost of service
 5  allocation methodology, we would change those
 6  production capacity allocation formulas.
 7      Ninth is something that is a joint
 8  recommendation from all.  A is that you approve
 9  that joint recommendation that no change be made
10  at this time to the on-peak period for the
11  billing demand measurement time and that such
12  on-peak period continue its current time frame,
13      10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., until additional study
14  of this issue can be undertaken.
15      Now, we can't tell you that any
16  recommendation for change would come back to you
17  after that additional study, but it's going to
18  be a year or so.  We don't want to reopen a rate
19  hearing just to make a change in that.  So we're
20  secondly recommending that you hold open in this
21  rate proceeding the issue of that on peak period
22  for the billing determinant measurement time.
23  And that would be subject to further action by
24  you after that further study's received.  So
25  that's the one issue that there's a joint
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 1  recommendation that you hold open.
 2      Tenth is a decision on the rachet to be
 3  used for winter demand building.  And the BPU
 4  staff recommends that a 70 percent rachet
 5  continue to be used for winter demand billing.
 6      And, finally, a discussion of the
 7  future review of financial performance and
 8  progress of the BPU toward meeting the financial
 9  goals and a determination of whether you now
10  wish to give a direction to staff, as a part of
11  that ongoing review and evaluation of collection
12  revenues under whatever rates you approve, and
13  of the operating and capital expenditures that
14  the staff would provide you an analysis of
15  whether the financial metrics in the rate plan
16  have been met or exceeded to give you a basis to
17  consider whether you might have a downward
18  adjustment to rates in a future year.
19      I might point out, that might also tell
20  you that you needed to consider a further rate
21  increase, which would have required a rate
22  hearing.  But at any rate, the question before
23  you is do you want staff to come back to you
24  with this analysis on an ongoing basis as
25  performance comes in.
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 1      And, finally, two housekeeping matters.
 2  And that is on the last page, 12, you should
 3  give a direction to Black & Veatch after you've
 4  made your decisions that they prepare a final
 5  rate manual based on the rate increase decisions
 6  that are made by the Board and the decisions on
 7  the Black & Veatch proposed rate design.  And,
 8  finally, that you give a direction to me once
 9  you've made your decisions to prepare a written
10  order for the Board that you can then sign that
11  would set out your decisions, the basis for the
12  decisions as you've indicated during your
13  proceedings tonight and the directions that are
14  made by the board.  So that's -- that's a
15  summary of where we are.  And with that, we'll
16  turn it over to you.
17      MR. MILAN: Based on the review
18  from counsel on matters to be required in
19  decision, I make a motion to approve the Black &
20  Veatch cost of service study and cost allocation
21  as presented from Black & Veatch.  That's the
22  first option I have before me.
23      MS. COLUMBO: I'll second that
24  motion.
25      MR. PETTEY: Any discussion?
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 1      MR. ALVEY: I just want to
 2  clarify.  So we're working with matter 1.
 3      MS. COLOMBEL: Actually, matter
 4  2, the motion to approve the cost of service and
 5  the cost allocation methodologies recommended by
 6  Black & Veatch in its electric and water cost of
 7  service studies.  I imagine we have to have a
 8  second motion on the multi year --
 9      MS. PETERS: Yes.
10      MS. COLOMBEL: -- so I think --
11  is that correct, Bob, that your motion is for
12  the Black & Veatch study?
13      MR. MILAN: Right.
14      MS. COLOMBEL: And that's what I
15  second.
16      MR. ALVEY: Okay.
17      MR. MILAN: Before we take a roll
18  call vote on that, let me have a little few
19  moments.
20      MR. EIDSON: I can barely hear
21  you, sir.
22      MR. MILAN: I said let me have a
23  few moments please.  This is a difficult
24  decision when we're talking about the
25  responsibility of a financial obligation that
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 1  this Board has under consideration of customers
 2  big and small.  The decision was not an easy one
 3  because what the Board was presented with were
 4  many pieces of documentation.
 5      I have before me the report from the
 6  intervenors I've studied quite well.  I have
 7  recommendation from the staff presented quite
 8  well.  I have charts and diagrams to compare
 9  each of the ratings with other community areas
10  around Kansas City and surrounding territories.
11  I have before me the testimony taken by the
12  court reporter here, very costly, very time
13  consuming.
14      And, finally, I have the final
15  conclusion recommended from Black & Veatch based
16  on my motion to consider the (inaubidle) that
17  we've had with the staff, going over all the
18  options that we have, we have a reasonable
19  increase, so to speak, that best serves the
20  community, our customers, Kansas City, Kansas
21  and Wyandotte County.
22      This document was the final document I
23  received from the consulting engineers, Black &
24  Veatch, which clearly states the risks, the
25  rationale, the purpose of the rate increase that
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 1  we're proposing tonight.  I would like to say to
 2  my board members -- this is my independent
 3  statement, my independent judgment, I'm just
 4  sharing with you some of what 19 years have
 5  taught me.
 6      I think the Board has been very, very
 7  reasonable in the last 19 years in terms of rate
 8  increase.  I think were too small.  I've
 9  expressed that many times.  And we needed to
10  probably have small rate increases from 2006 and
11  before in order to not reach this same point.
12  But under the circumstances, under the
13  circumstances, based on cost allocation, cost of
14  service study and all the other components that
15  go with that rate increase design, this is why I
16  make my comments.  Thank you very much.
17      MR. PETTEY: Do you at this time
18  just want to vote on the electric or do you want
19  to add the cost of service for water also?
20      MS. COLOMBEL: Well, I think in
21  this recommendation, it says that it's electric
22  and water.
23      MR. PETTEY: Okay.  I just wanted
24  to make -- I mean, that's what it was, but the
25  way we talked -- make that understood.  Any
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 1  other discussion?
 2      I guess we give a roll call, please, to
 3  see what happens there.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Yes.  Roll call.
 5  Loretta Colombel.
 6      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
 7      MS. BOEDING: Mary Gonzales.
 8      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
 9      MS. BOEDING: Terry Eidson.
10      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
11      MS. BOEDING: David Alvey.
12      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
13      MS. BOEDING: Robert Milan,
14  Senior.
15      MR. MILAN: Aye.
16      MS. BOEDING: John Pettey.
17      MR. PETTEY: I'll make it
18  unanimous.  Aye.
19      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
20      MR. PETTEY: Thank you.  Rob.
21      MR. MILAN: And we have another
22  item here that probably should be up front, make
23  sure that (inaudible) information.  The issue is
24  making sure that our plan it can be deferred
25  from '12, '13 based on what the recommendations
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 1  made of counsel here.  Do you get that?
 2      MS. COLOMBEL: Are you making a
 3  motion to approve the multi year plan?
 4      MR. MILAN: Right, right.
 5      MS. COLOMBEL: For the rate
 6  increases for 2012 and 2013?
 7      MR. MILAN: Right.
 8      MS. COLOMBEL: As well as this
 9  one -- the present year that we're in?
10      MR. MILAN: Absolutely.
11  Absolutely.
12      MS. COLOMBEL: I'll second your
13  motion.
14      MR. MILAN: Make sure it's clear.
15      MR. ALVEY: I think we say we
16  wish to approve a multi year plan to approve
17  rate increases for 2011, 2012, 2013.
18      MR. MILAN: Precisely.
19      MS. GONZALEZ: And we're talking
20  water and electric.  Is that your intent,
21  Mr. Milan?
22      MR. MILAN: That's correct.
23      MR. EIDSON: And that is based on
24  the Black & Veatch study that was presented to
25  us.
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 1      MR. MILAN: Yes.  Absolutely.
 2      MR. ALVEY: Second.
 3      MR. PETTEY: Loretta already
 4  seconded.
 5      MR. ALVEY: Sorry.
 6      MS. COLOMBEL: That's okay.
 7      MR. PETTEY: Any other
 8  discussion?  Roll call, please.
 9      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.  Loretta
10  Columbel.
11      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
12      MS. BOEDING: Mary Gonzales.
13      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
14      MS. BOEDING: Terry Eidson.
15      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
16      MS. BOEDING: David Alvey.
17      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
18      MS. BOEDING: Robert Milan,
19  Senior.
20      MR. MILAN: Aye.
21      MS. BOEDING: John Pettey.
22      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
24      MS. COLOMBEL: Do we --
25  Mr. Pettey, do we also need an approval on the
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 1  customer classes or do we go now to the energy
 2  rate component and the energy surcharge?
 3      MR. MILAN: That's important.
 4      MS. PETERS: Mrs. Columbel, I
 5  think you should take up a decision on each of
 6  these items in order.
 7      MR. PETTEY: So we were looking
 8  at No. 7.  Now --
 9      MS. PETERS: Actually, I think
10  we're looking at No. 3.
11      MR. PETTEY: Okay.
12      MS. COLOMBEL: And the motion
13  would be that the percentage of the electric
14  base rate increase as the following dates in
15  accordance with the Black & Veatch study?
16      MR. MILAN: You make a motion?
17      MS. COLOMBEL: No.  I'm asking
18  Kathy if that's the proper --
19      MS. PETERS: Excuse me just a
20  second.  I would suggest to you that you just
21  include in your motion the percentages that you
22  wish to increase.  Now, the Black & Veatch study
23  called for on the electric side 7 percent
24  January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012,
25  7 percent January 1, 2013.  And I would ask you,
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 1  is that the import of your motion?
 2      MS. COLOMBEL: Yes.
 3      MR. MILAN: Right.
 4      MR. EIDSON: On what class of
 5  service?
 6      MR. ALVEY: We're not talking
 7  about --
 8      MS. COLOMBEL: We're just on No.
 9  3.
10      MR. EIDSON: I understand that.
11      MR. ALVEY: It's the electric
12  base rate.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: Right.  So that my
14  motion was that it would be the 7 percent in
15  January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012, and
16  7 percent as of January 1, 2013, and that would
17  be the electric only.
18      MR. ALVEY: Base rate, not
19  according to class.
20      MS. COLOMBEL: Yes.  And that is
21  in the form of a motion, please.
22      MR. MILAN: Second the motion.
23      MR. PETTEY: Any other
24  discussion?  Roll call, please.
25      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
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 1  Columbel.
 2      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
 3      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
 4      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
 5      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
 6      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
 7      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 8      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 9      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
10      MR. MILAN: Aye.
11      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
12      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
13      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
14      MR. ALVEY: I think on No. 4 --
15      MS. PETERS: No. 4, we have --
16      MR. ALVEY: An adjustment to the
17  original.
18      MS. PETERS: As I indicated, we
19  had handouts based on what option you chose or
20  if you chose some other one.  And Lori has the
21  Black & Veatch recommendations for the rate
22  increases for the customer classes based on the
23  7 percent overall base rate increase.
24      MR. ALVEY: This is -- and so,
25  Kathy, if I may ask, to be clear, this is with
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 1  there not being an adjustment greater than
 2  120 percent of the average system?
 3      MS. PETERS: I would ask Craig to
 4  answer that question.  Craig Brown.
 5      MR. BROWN: That is correct.  I
 6  believe it's actually -- I think it was
 7  8.5 percent actually in 2011, but it's like
 8  121 percent, approximately 120 percent of the
 9  system average.
10      MR. EIDSON: Craig, I have a
11  question.
12      MR. BROWN: Sure.
13      MR. EIDSON: Why would we not
14  have a rate increase for USD 500 schools?  We're
15  at 0 percent in '11, 0 percent in '12.  I
16  mean --
17      MR. BROWN: The initial reasoning
18  was for -- in our original recommendations, it
19  was recommended they should have 0 percent in
20  the first year and I believe the second year and
21  then increase to 3 percent in '12 and 5 percent
22  I believe in '13, approximately.  When they got
23  a 7 percent across the board in July 2010, it
24  was determined, in collaboration with the staff
25  as well, that they should have 0 percent because
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 1  they weren't going to get up to 7 percent until
 2  about the third year.
 3      MS. COLOMBEL: Yes.  I remember
 4  that discussion.
 5      MR. EIDSON: I'm not so sure I'm
 6  in agreement with that, but at this point, I
 7  don't know what we would do about it.
 8      MS. COLOMBEL: I think --
 9      MR. PETTEY: Well, they had a 7,
10  but it was going to be 0.
11      MS. COLOMBEL: It was going to be
12  a 5 and 3.
13      MR. EIDSON: Everybody got a 7.
14      MR. PETTEY: Yeah, but I mean,
15  they were really going to --
16      MR. BROWN: I can clarify that.
17  They were 0, 3 in 2011 and 5 in 2012 and 7 in
18  2013 was the original plan.
19      MR. PETTEY: Yeah.
20      MR. EIDSON: That's what I'm
21  looking at.
22      MR. BROWN: And approximately 7
23  in 2010 by the time you get a 0 and 3 and a 5,
24  be about the same spot by the end.
25      MR. PETTEY: Okay.
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 1      MR. ALVEY: I make a motion to
 2  approve the electric base rate increases for the
 3  customer classes based on the table presented by
 4  staff.
 5      MS. COLOMBEL: I'll second the
 6  motion.
 7      MR. PETTEY: Roll call pending
 8  any other discussion.  Roll call, please.
 9      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
10  Columbel.
11      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
12      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
13      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
14      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
15      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
16      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
17      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
18      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
19      MR. MILAN: Aye.
20      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
21      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
22      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
23      MR. PETTEY: Okay.  No. 5.
24      MS. COLOMBEL: Do we have a
25  determination for the water percentage?  Just
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 1  another clarification.
 2      MS. PETERS: The cost of service
 3  study indicated that water would be 8 percent in
 4  2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in
 5  2013.
 6      MR. EIDSON: Say that one more
 7  time, Kathy, I'm sorry.
 8      MS. PETERS: The cost of service
 9  study indicated for water an 8 percent increase
10  in 2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012, and 7 1/2
11  percent in 2013.
12      MR. EIDSON: Thank you.
13      MR. MILAN: Those percentages
14  were included in the item No. 2.  She's just
15  verifying what those are.
16      MS. PETERS: No.  We want a
17  separate motion on those.
18      MS. COLOMBEL: But we do need a
19  separate motion.  Are you making a motion?
20      MR. MILAN: Yes.  I make a motion
21  to accept item 4 --
22      MR. EIDSON: 5.
23      MR. MILAN: Item 5 as presented.
24      MR. EIDSON: Second.
25      MR. PETTEY: Any other
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 1  discussion?
 2      MS. PETERS: Again, I would like
 3  to clarify that motion.  You are moving that the
 4  water increase be 8 1/2 percent in 2011 --
 5      MS. GONZALEZ: 8.
 6      MR. EIDSON: 8.
 7      MS. COLOMBEL: 8 percent 2011.
 8      MS. PETERS: Sorry.  Good thing I
 9  clarified that.  8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
10  percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in 2013.
11      MR. MILAN: That's correct.
12      MR. PETTEY: Okay.  Roll call,
13  please.
14      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
15  Colombel.
16      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
17      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
18      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
19      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
20      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
21      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
22      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
24      MR. MILAN: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
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 1      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 3      MS. PETERS: And we have asked
 4  Loretta to hand out a schedule of the water
 5  rates for the customer classes based on that
 6  overall increase.  Again, we had the different
 7  options that have been presented to the Board.
 8  This is the one contained in the original cost
 9  of service report.
10      MS. COLOMBEL: I'll make a motion
11  to approve the water rates for customer classes
12  based on the average increase percentage that
13  has been presented.
14      MS. GONZALEZ: I second.
15      MR. PETTEY: Okay.  Any
16  discussion on that?  Motion by Ms. Columbel,
17  second by Ms. Gonzales to approve as presented
18  to us.  Roll call, please.
19      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
20  Colombel.
21      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
22      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
23      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
24      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
25      MR. EIDSON: Aye.


 (18:43:38)
Page 32


 1      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 2      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 3      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 4      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 5      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 6      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 7      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 8      MR. ALVEY: I'd like to make a
 9  motion for approval of the energy rate component
10  rider as recommended by BPU staff.
11      MS. GONZALEZ: Second.
12      MR. PETTEY: Got a motion by
13  Mr. Alvey and second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
14  the rate.  Any discussion on that?  Let's roll
15  call, please.
16      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
17  Colombel.
18      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
19      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
20      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
21      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
22      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
24      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
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 1      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 3      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 5      MR. PETTEY: Next is the ERC --
 6      MS. PETERS: ESC.
 7      MS. COLOMBEL: Environmental
 8  surcharge rider.
 9      MR. PETTEY: Yeah, I'm sorry.
10      MS. COLOMBEL: Motion to approve
11  the environmental surcharge rider recommended by
12  staff.
13      MS. GONZALEZ: Second.
14      MR. PETTEY: Motion by
15  Ms. Columbel, second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
16  the environmental surcharge rider.  Any
17  discussion?  Roll call, please.
18      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
19  Colombel.
20      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
21      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
22      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
24      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
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 1      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 3      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 5      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 6      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 7      MS. COLOMBEL: I guess I have a
 8  question on No. 9.  Is the recommended --
 9  recommendation by staff and intervenors, is this
10  the one that Lori presented to us last week that
11  we would hold where we are; is that correct?
12      MS. PETERS: Yes, ma'am.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: Okay.  Motion to
14  approve.
15      MR. EIDSON: Second.
16      MR. PETTEY: Motion by
17  Ms. Gonzales, second by Mr. Eidson to approve
18  staff recommendations on the on-peak period.
19  Roll call, please.
20      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
21  Colombel.
22      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
24      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
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 1      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 3      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 5      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 6      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 7      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 8      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 9      MR. PETTEY: No. 10 is the BPU
10  staff recommendation that a 7 percent ratchet
11  continue to be used for winter demand billing.
12      MS. GONZALEZ: I move to approve
13  that we use the 7 percent rachet continuing for
14  winter demand.
15      MS. COLOMBEL: Second.
16      MR. PETTEY: Motion by
17  Ms. Gonzales, second by Ms. Colombel to approve
18  the 7 percent rachet for winter demand billing.
19  Any other discussion?  Roll call, please.
20      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
21  Colombel.
22      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
24      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
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 1      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 3      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 5      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 6      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 7      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 8      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 9      MR. PETTEY: No. 11 is a
10  discussion of further review of the financial
11  performance and progress of the BPU toward
12  meeting our financial goals.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: And I think this
14  is very key, Mr. Pettey.
15      MR. MILAN: This is very
16  important.  This should be explained really
17  clearly.
18      MS. COLOMBEL: And I think
19  Ms. Gonzales has stated this all along that as
20  we go through this process and we do have these
21  increases that we are watched very closely what
22  we're doing with our expenditures and with
23  capital improvements.
24      MR. MILAN: Absolutely.
25      MS. COLOMBEL: So do we need this
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 1  in a form of a motion as to an exact time frame
 2  we want?
 3      MR. MILAN: I'll request the
 4  whole paragraph be read clearly to make sure
 5  it's understood between us and the public so we
 6  understand what we really mean.
 7      MS. PETERS: We would suggest
 8  that you consider this at a minimum at the time
 9  that you're putting your budget together for the
10  following fiscal year that you get an analysis
11  of where you are for meeting your financial
12  metrics to date.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: I think I would
14  like more than one a year.  I think I'd at least
15  like a six month interval.
16      MR. ALVEY: My only -- I think
17  that this is something that we do, you know, the
18  monthly financial reports, the quarterly
19  reports.  I believe this is a function that
20  we're already accomplishing.  I'm really not --
21  I can see why we would vote for this, but we do
22  it as a rule anyway.  So I wouldn't want -- if
23  we pass it, I don't want to give people the idea
24  that we don't do this on a regular basis.
25      MS. COLOMBEL: I agree, David.  I
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 1  just -- I think in the interest of public
 2  discussion and -- that it is a separate item
 3  that -- I would say twice a year, you know,
 4  during budget time and then late -- maybe again
 5  in July that it is a single discussion on the
 6  outcomes and what we have been able to -- to
 7  meet in our financial goals the best
 8  determination.  I know we have a monthly, but I
 9  would still like to see what this process has
10  brought us to.
11      MR. MILAN: Well, I take a
12  different approach.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: Okay.
14      MR. MILAN: What I'm trying to
15  say -- unless you want to read it --
16      MR. PETTEY: Go ahead.
17      MR. MILAN: Item 11, Discussion
18  of further review of financial performance and
19  progress of the Board towards meeting the
20  financial goal and determination of whether to
21  give a direction to staff, as a part of the
22  ongoing review and evaluation of collection of
23  revenues under the approved rates and operation
24  and capital expenditures, to provide an analysis
25  of whether the financial metrics in the rate
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 1  plan have been met or exceeded to provide a
 2  basis for the Board to consider whether a
 3  downward adjustment to rates may be made in the
 4  future.
 5      We're saying that if it looks better in
 6  '11 and '12, then the staff should take and
 7  adjust -- I want to make it clear that although
 8  we agree to these figures tonight, these
 9  percentages, we have the option, the staff has
10  the option to look at the analysis and review as
11  we promised the intervenors and the public, we
12  will look at these rates.  We may go down to 6
13  next year, okay.  5.  Hope we go down to 0.  But
14  anyway, that's hypothetical, but my point is,
15  that's the purpose of 11.
16      MS. COLOMBEL: I agree.
17      MR. MILAN: It should be clear.
18  Do you understand that?
19      MS. COLOMBEL: I totally agree.
20      MR. MILAN: Okay.  Thank you.
21      MR. PETTEY: Well, the pilot
22  should go down.  We know it's going to go down.
23      MR. EIDSON: I agree with this.
24  We do look at that monthly, the finance
25  committee does look at the -- where the Board or
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 1  where the utility is on a monthly basis.  And I
 2  don't think there's anybody up here at this
 3  table that had the opportunity to lower the
 4  rates would not hesitate to do that if
 5  everything was sound and stable here at the BPU.
 6      MR. MILAN: Well, based on what
 7  we approved in the rate increase, this reflects
 8  this particular set of circumstances, okay.
 9      MS. COLOMBEL: So would the
10  discussion be that this is handled yearly in the
11  budget review for the following year so we would
12  know if there was a possibility of a reduction
13  in the rates?
14      MR. PETTEY: Well, ask for a
15  timely report so we can decide in advance what
16  we can do, if we can or cannot with --
17      MR. MILAN: It gives direction to
18  the staff saying, tell the Board where we are,
19  do we stay status quo, do we have an opportunity
20  based on analysis to reduce or stay where we
21  are.  It's telling the staff what to do here.
22      MR. ALVEY: If the direction to
23  the staff is that they have to present proposal
24  to us specifically addressing that rates ought
25  to remain at the level, which has been
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 1  established by the decision tonight, or whether
 2  an adjustment downward, if they are directed
 3  specifically to offer a recommendation, that's
 4  different than just -- I think this doesn't
 5  quite say what we're trying to say.  I think
 6  what it needs to say is staff should be directed
 7  to recommend any rate increase or decrease --
 8      MR. PETTEY: Can't increase.
 9      MR. ALVEY: I'm sorry.  Any rate
10  decrease from what was established by decisions
11  tonight.  If that's what we're trying to do,
12  then I'm fine with that.
13      MS. COLOMBEL: Yes.  That's the
14  whole basis.
15      MR. MILAN: That's what it's
16  trying to say.
17      MR. ALVEY: Yeah.  I don't think
18  it says that in the language.
19      MR. EIDSON: It could be done
20  when we're working on the budget, yearly budget.
21      MS. COLOMBEL: Mary.
22      MR. MILAN: We have time to agree
23  upon the staff later on.  Move on from that.
24      MS. COLOMBEL: Would you like to
25  make that in the form of a motion, David?
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 1      MR. ALVEY: Sure.  I'll just
 2  change -- the only language I would change there
 3  is to direct the staff to provide an analysis
 4  and a recommend- -- an analysis of whether the
 5  financial metrics in the rate plan have been met
 6  or exceeded and to recommend or not recommend a
 7  downward adjustment to rates to be made in the
 8  future year.
 9      MR. EIDSON: Do you want to tie
10  that to the Board?
11      MR. ALVEY: Actually, a
12  recommendation.
13      MR. MILAN: It means the same.
14  Fine with me.
15      MR. EIDSON: Tied to a budget
16  proceeding.
17      MS. COLOMBEL: Second.
18      MR. PETTEY: Any other
19  discussion?  Roll call.
20      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
21  Colombel.
22      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
24      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
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 1      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 3      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 5      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 6      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 7      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 8      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 9      MR. PETTEY: No. 12, we're
10  asking -- we're directing Black & Veatch to
11  prepare a final manual based on the rate
12  increases decisions we've just made on the
13  proposed rate.
14      MR. ALVEY: So moved.
15      MR. MILAN: Second.
16      MR. PETTEY: Any discussion?
17  Roll call, please.
18      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
19  Colombel.
20      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
21      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
22      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
23      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
24      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
25      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
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 1      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 2      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 3      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 4      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 5      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 6      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 7      MR. PETTEY: 13, give direction
 8  to the rate counsel to prepare a written order
 9  for the Board, setting out the decisions,
10  evidentiary basis on the decisions and
11  directions made by the Board.
12      MR. EIDSON: So moved.
13      MR. ALVEY: Second.
14      MS. COLOMBEL: Second.
15      MR. PETTEY: Roll call, please.
16      MS. BOEDING: Who's the second?
17      MS. COLOMBEL: I said it.
18      MR. EIDSON: Loretta Columbel.
19      MS. BOEDING: Roll call.
20  Colombel.
21      MS. COLOMBEL: Aye.
22      MS. BOEDING: Gonzales.
23      MS. GONZALES: Aye.
24      MS. BOEDING: Eidson.
25      MR. EIDSON: Aye.
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 1      MS. BOEDING: Alvey.
 2      MR. ALVEY: Aye.
 3      MS. BOEDING: Milan.
 4      MR. MILAN: Aye.
 5      MS. BOEDING: Pettey.
 6      MR. PETTEY: Aye.
 7      MS. BOEDING: Motion carries.
 8      MR. PETTEY: You know, I would
 9  say thank you for everyone for all of the effort
10  that went into the final decision on this.  It's
11  been a trying several months trying to decide
12  what's the best way for the BPU and our
13  customers big and small, and I feel that we have
14  done that this evening.
15      But like we have mentioned earlier, we
16  want to make it very clear if there's any way
17  that these rates can come down in the future
18  years, we definitely want that to happen.
19  They're not written in stone.  Anyone else?
20      MR. MILAN: Thank you.  That's a
21  good comment.
22      MR. PETTEY: Any other board
23  comments on this?
24      MS. COLOMBEL: I also want to
25  thank staff, the intervenors, the consultants.
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 1  I know that every one of you have worked long
 2  and hard to bring us testimony, statements,
 3  proof, facts, all of the papers that Mr. Milan
 4  spoke of.  It's not an easy decision.  It's
 5  never an easy decision to increase someone's
 6  bill.  But it's the best decision for our
 7  utility.  And I'm proud to be a part of this
 8  board that made a unanimous decision to keep our
 9  community whole and to keep our utility
10  functioning properly.
11      MR. MILAN: I'd like to use an
12  Optimist Club kind of theory which says, Forget
13  the mistakes of the past and press on to greater
14  achievement in the future.  And that's what the
15  Board needs to do.  (Inaudible) tomorrow and
16  move on to serve this community in the best
17  fashion we can.  Thank you.
18      MS. GONZALEZ: I'd also like to
19  say thank you to the intervenors for everybody's
20  time and effort on this project.  The hardest
21  thing to do for our board members is to strike a
22  balance to preserve the integrity of our utility
23  and to keep our community moving forward.  And
24  it's a difficult decision and one that I know
25  all of us have deliberated long and hard on.
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 1  And we're trying to do the best for the utility
 2  and for our community.
 3      MR. ALVEY: Also, I'd like to say
 4  thanks to everyone who's involved in this,
 5  including our attorneys, our consultants,
 6  Mr. Carson, our consultants from Black & Veatch,
 7  the intervenors, the industrial class customers
 8  and all of the customers of the Board of Public
 9  Utilities.  I would like to remind folks that
10  when we started this process, we committed
11  ourselves to conducting a fair and transparent
12  process.  And I am proud of the way that the
13  management and staff and members of the Board
14  have done that.
15      And, you know, it's -- I believe we're
16  at a critical juncture at the BPU.  I think the
17  evidence is clear.  And what we decide to do
18  from this point on will determine the fate of
19  the Board of Public Utilities.  We have to
20  restore our cash reserves.  We have to restore
21  our debt coverage ratio.  We have to restore our
22  capital operations.  We have to do the necessary
23  improvements, our maintenance.  We have to do
24  these things or there won't be a BPU to talk
25  about.  I'm convinced of that.


 (19:00:26-19:01:39)
Page 48


 1      At the same time, I'm painfully aware
 2  of how this affects the bottom line of all of
 3  our residents and all of our industrial
 4  customers.  You know, there's going to be an
 5  impact.  I understand the total BPU bill with
 6  the pilot included does have an effect on the
 7  competitiveness of every business in this city.
 8  And I'm concerned with the impact that this is
 9  going to have on our -- our residential
10  customers, especially those on fixed income or
11  those unemployed.
12      And I would suggest that this rate
13  increase cannot function as the only tool that
14  we use to restore the BPU to its full financial
15  and operational health.  If there's one message
16  that came across loud and clear in this rate
17  hearing process, it's this.  And that's that the
18  BPU must continue to find ways to provide pure
19  power and pure water and at the lowest possible
20  cost.
21      In other words, I think we have been
22  challenged to review every line item to
23  determine what we can do to reduce our costs and
24  therefore reduce the upper pressure on rates.
25  We have an obligation so I believe this board is
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 1  willing to take a good look at our budget each
 2  year to see what we can do to limit proposed
 3  rate increases.
 4      In short, I just think that increased
 5  revenues that we will realize from these rate
 6  increases cannot be looked upon as a pot of gold
 7  that we get to spend freely.  On the contrary,
 8  these increased revenues are an opportunity to
 9  sustain the utility while we work to find ways
10  to reduce costs.  Otherwise, it's been
11  pointless.  And, again, I thank all of those who
12  worked so hard on this process.
13      MR. PETTEY: You put it very
14  well, Mr. Alvey.
15      MR. EIDSON: It is just -- I'm so
16  proud to be a part of this board and to have sat
17  here and know that we have done our diligence,
18  and I -- there's not much else I can say.
19  Everyone has pretty much summed up all of our
20  feelings.  And, again, thanks to everybody, to
21  the staff, to intervenors, to attorneys and
22  again to you, Your Honor.  That's all I have to
23  say.
24      MR. PETTEY: Kathy.
25      MS. PETERS: Black & Veatch and I
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 1  will follow your directives.  I recommend to you
 2  that you not close the hearing tonight.  I'd
 3  like to have you have the final approval of the
 4  rate manual and of the order and perhaps take
 5  that up at your next meeting October 20th.
 6      MR. PETTEY: Uh-huh.
 7      MS. PETERS: And also that will
 8  give Black & Veatch the chance to fill out those
 9  rate schedules based on the decisions that
10  you've made and share those with Mr. Gorman so
11  they can make sure that they're in agreement
12  about all of the numbers based on the approach
13  that you have directed us to follow.
14      MR. MILAN: Will that be the
15  final business?
16      MS. PETERS: And that will be the
17  final business except for holding open the
18  decision on the on peak demand period, which, as
19  I said, is subject to study for next year or so.
20      MS. COLOMBEL: So basically,
21  you're asking us to wait for the written
22  documentation?
23      MS. PETERS: I am.  I'm
24  suggesting that given that you are to make a
25  final decision within five days of completing a
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 1  hearing and given that you're going to approve
 2  the final rate manual in the order, it's my
 3  suggestion to you that you continue this until
 4  your next meeting so that you can approve the
 5  order and approve the rate manual and then
 6  complete the hearing.
 7      MR. MILAN: I want to get some
 8  sleep.  I just want to know when I can get it,
 9  okay?
10      MS. PETERS: You can get it
11  tonight.  You've made your decision.  This is
12  housekeeping.  Your final decision is
13  housekeeping, but just so that it's clear that
14  you will make -- you'll approve the order on the
15  20th.  That's our suggestion.
16      MR. MILAN: All right.  Thank
17  you.
18      MS. COLOMBEL: Would you like a
19  motion, Ms. Peters?
20      MS. PETERS: No.  I think
21  Mr. Carson can simply --
22      HEARING OFFICER: Yeah.  We'll
23  just based -- upon the Board's apparent assent,
24  we will continue this rate hearing to
25  October 20th at 6:00 p.m.
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 1      MR. PETTEY: Very good.
 2      HEARING OFFICER: That's the
 3  conclusion of this hearing for today.
 4  (Proceedings concluded at 7:05 p.m.)
 5  
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17:49:55  1        (Proceedings commenced at 6:12 p.m.)
  


18:12:16  2                  HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and
  


18:12:17  3   gentlemen, I'm Phillip Carson, the hearing
  


18:12:21  4   officer for purposes of the 2010 rate hearing.
  


18:12:29  5   And we were last here last Thursday on
  


18:12:32  6   September 30th.  Would any attorneys
  


18:12:36  7   representing intervenors please announce their
  


18:12:40  8   appearances and that of the intervenors.
  


18:12:45  9                  MR. ZAKOURA:  Good evening.
  


18:12:46 10   James P. Zakoura on behalf of the large volume
  


18:12:49 11   collector and water users.
  


12                  HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, sir.
  


18:12:51 13                  MR. FLAHERTY:  James G. Flaherty,
  


18:12:53 14   Ottawa, Kansas, appearing on behalf of the
  


15   intervenor Suburban Water Company.
  


16                  HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
  


18:13:00 17                  MR. YARNELL:  Rick Yarnell.
  


18:13:00 18                  HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


18:13:01 19   Mr. Yarnell.  Ms. Peters.
  


18:13:03 20                  MS. PETERS:  Thank you, Your
  


18:13:04 21   Honor.  And my name is Kathy Peters representing
  


18:13:07 22   the BPU in this matter.  And I'd like to also
  


18:13:11 23   let the record reflect that two of the
  


18:13:12 24   consulting engineers -- three of the consulting
  


18:13:16 25   engineers from Black & Veatch are present in
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18:13:18  1   the -- in the audience, Arnold White, Bob Brady
  


18:13:22  2   and Craig Brown and that Ed Overcast is present
  


18:13:27  3   on the telephone and that Mike Gorman is also
  


18:13:29  4   present in the audience representing the large
  


18:13:31  5   power group.  And I think that's everyone in the
  


18:13:33  6   room who's representing an intervenor, correct?
  


18:13:38  7            Thank you very much.  Ladies and
  


18:13:39  8   gentlemen, I'd like to go over a few things with
  


18:13:42  9   you, and then we will turn this matter over to
  


18:13:45 10   you.  The hearing to date summary I've given you
  


18:13:50 11   a few times, I'd like to give it to you again in
  


18:13:54 12   brief one time so it will catch us up with where
  


18:13:57 13   we are at this point.
  


18:13:58 14            As you know, under the Unified
  


18:14:00 15   Government charter ordinance and the procedures
  


18:14:02 16   governing the rate process, the BPU has to
  


18:14:05 17   publish notice of a public hearing for a utility
  


18:14:07 18   rate increase at least 90 days before the
  


18:14:09 19   hearing commences.  Notice was published in
  


18:14:11 20   February.  The public hearing commenced on May
  


18:14:13 21   3rd.  There were public hearing sessions on May
  


18:14:16 22   3rd and 4th.  And at that time, the BPU staff
  


18:14:19 23   and consultants presented staff's
  


18:14:21 24   recommendations for adjustments to the rates.
  


18:14:24 25   There were then opportunities for public
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18:14:26  1   comments at each of those public hearing
  


18:14:28  2   sessions.  And the hearing officer then closed
  


18:14:29  3   the public portion of the hearing and opened the
  


18:14:32  4   technical portion of the hearing, which is still
  


18:14:34  5   presently underway.
  


18:14:35  6            During the technical portion, there's
  


18:14:37  7   technical evidence from the BPU staff and
  


18:14:39  8   consultants and from the intervenors if any
  


18:14:43  9   parties filed a petition to intervene before the
  


18:14:46 10   deadline has passed.  You had three timely
  


18:14:50 11   petitions to intervene.  One from an individual,
  


18:14:52 12   one from a wholesale water customer, and one
  


18:14:54 13   from a group of large power customers.  And as
  


18:14:58 14   you know, all of those intervenors are
  


18:14:59 15   represented before you this evening.
  


18:15:01 16            On May 4th, the BPU staff presented its
  


18:15:04 17   prefiled technical testimony.  Individual
  


18:15:06 18   intervenor filed its testimony.  The group of
  


18:15:08 19   large power customers asked for additional time
  


18:15:10 20   to file their testimony, and this was granted
  


18:15:13 21   for this -- for this customer and the wholesale
  


18:15:16 22   water customer.
  


18:15:17 23            You had -- you resumed the technical
  


18:15:21 24   portion on June 16th and you had a presentation
  


18:15:26 25   by the BPU staff and by Jim Zakoura on behalf of
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18:15:30  1   the large power customer group and by the
  


18:15:33  2   individual intervenors.  And this followed a
  


18:15:36  3   period where these people had talked to each
  


18:15:37  4   other about recommendations that could be agreed
  


18:15:40  5   upon to give you for 2010 rate increases.  And
  


18:15:45  6   the results of the discussions to date were then
  


18:15:48  7   presented to the board.
  


18:15:49  8            And on June 16th, you approved the
  


18:15:51  9   implementation of rate increases in 2010 that
  


18:15:55 10   were effective July 1, 2010, as recommended by
  


18:15:58 11   this group with a 7 percent increase in revenues
  


18:16:00 12   from electric base rates and an 8 percent
  


18:16:03 13   increase in revenues from water base rates.  As
  


18:16:06 14   we told you at that time, adjustments had been
  


18:16:09 15   made in the energy rate component to back out
  


18:16:12 16   the known contractual fixed power costs, to take
  


18:16:16 17   those out of the base rate increase so that you
  


18:16:18 18   had just the 7 percent in revenues from electric
  


18:16:21 19   base rates and that those additional ERC costs
  


18:16:25 20   would not be recovered through the ERC.
  


18:16:28 21            At that time, you directed that the
  


18:16:30 22   electric rate increase be implemented on an
  


18:16:33 23   across the board basis and that the water rate
  


18:16:36 24   increase be implemented as set out in the water
  


18:16:39 25   cost of service study which had been the







6


  


18:16:41  1   recommendation.  You also approved provisional
  


18:16:43  2   increases for 2011, '12 and '13 in the
  


18:16:47  3   percentages indicated in the cost of service
  


18:16:50  4   studies.  And those were 7 percent for electric
  


18:16:53  5   each year and for water 8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
  


18:16:58  6   percent for 2012 and 7 1/2 percent for 2013.
  


18:17:02  7            You set deadlines for the filing of
  


18:17:05  8   technical testimony.  You directed that the
  


18:17:07  9   intervenors should file their technical
  


18:17:10 10   testimony by August 16th and that the BPU staff
  


18:17:14 11   file rebuttal testimony by September 7th.  And
  


18:17:16 12   you indicated that you expected to make a final
  


18:17:19 13   decision in late September or early October.
  


18:17:21 14   And you said you wanted all of the evidence in
  


18:17:23 15   by the end of September.  That was done.
  


18:17:27 16            Prior to those filings, you heard from
  


18:17:29 17   a group of the large power customers.  They
  


18:17:32 18   asked for the opportunity to address you.  And
  


18:17:35 19   the hearing was reopened on August 4th, at which
  


18:17:38 20   time you heard from those large pow customers.
  


18:17:43 21   And you also I believe had a few people make
  


18:17:46 22   comments during the public portion of that
  


18:17:49 23   meeting.  But the comments from the large power
  


18:17:51 24   customers were part of the rate hearing.
  


18:17:53 25            Rate hearing was then continued.  And,
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18:17:56  1   as I said, the intervenors filed their testimony
  


18:17:59  2   by September 7th to the extent that they had
  


18:18:03  3   technical testimony -- sorry, by August 16th.
  


18:18:07  4   They filed their testimony by August 16th.  BPU
  


18:18:10  5   staff filed its testimony on August 7th except
  


18:18:13  6   for a small amount of testimony -- additional
  


18:18:15  7   studies that they requested a few additional
  


18:18:18  8   days to file, and that was filed on
  


18:18:20  9   September 10th.
  


18:18:21 10            You subsequently received written
  


18:18:23 11   comments from Suburban Water Company, the
  


18:18:27 12   wholesale intervenor.  And on September 30th,
  


18:18:31 13   last Thursday, you held again another public
  


18:18:34 14   hearing where you received a presentation for
  


18:18:39 15   each of the large power group, from the Suburban
  


18:18:44 16   Water Company, the wholesale customer, and from
  


18:18:46 17   the BPU staff and its consulting engineers.  And
  


18:18:48 18   you had the opportunity at that time to ask
  


18:18:51 19   questions of everyone.
  


18:18:54 20            And you have also received hard copies
  


18:18:56 21   of all of the rate proceedings.  You've received
  


18:18:58 22   hard copies of all of the trial -- sorry, of all
  


18:19:01 23   of the hearing transcripts.  You've got copies
  


18:19:03 24   of all of the exhibits that have been filed.
  


18:19:06 25   You've had the opportunity to review the things
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18:19:08  1   that were said when you weren't here such as
  


18:19:10  2   public comments received on the 3rd and 4th and
  


18:19:14  3   other matters.
  


18:19:15  4            I thought it would be a good idea
  


18:19:17  5   before we go through what your decisions are
  


18:19:19  6   though to say something that we haven't yet said
  


18:19:22  7   in these proceedings, and that is to refresh
  


18:19:25  8   everyone's memory about what the charter
  


18:19:27  9   ordinance says you are to do in the way of
  


18:19:29 10   setting rates.  And I have given you and have
  


18:19:31 11   given to each of the intervenors a copy of page
  


18:19:37 12   1 and page 11 of the charter ordinance which was
  


18:19:39 13   adopted by the Unified Government relating to
  


18:19:41 14   BPU.  And this basically lifts from the statutes
  


18:19:47 15   which have governed BPU the rate setting
  


18:19:49 16   proceedings and requirements and put them in the
  


18:19:53 17   form of a single utility rather than a separate
  


18:19:56 18   electric division and a water division.
  


18:19:58 19            So if you look at page 11, section 20,
  


18:20:01 20   item A tells you what your responsibilities are.
  


18:20:03 21   And I'll just read that into the record.
  


18:20:08 22            The board shall fix reasonable rates
  


18:20:11 23   for utility services and products furnished to
  


18:20:13 24   its consumers which, 1, will secure an income
  


18:20:17 25   sufficient to pay all salaries and wages of all
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18:20:19  1   officers and employees of any utility.  2, will
  


18:20:22  2   cover the cost of all materials and supplies
  


18:20:24  3   used in the operation of any utility.  3, will
  


18:20:27  4   cover the cost of all repairs of any utility.
  


18:20:31  5            4, will cover all miscellaneous
  


18:20:33  6   expenses of any utility.  5, will pay
  


18:20:36  7   contractual and other financial obligations of
  


18:20:38  8   the board or the Unified Government incurred for
  


18:20:40  9   the purpose of purchasing, improving or
  


18:20:43 10   extending any utility, including multi-year
  


18:20:47 11   obligations directly or indirectly related to
  


18:20:49 12   the payment of the principal of and interest
  


18:20:51 13   upon revenue bonds, and will provide a sinking
  


18:20:54 14   fund sufficient to pay the principal of and the
  


18:20:57 15   interest on such indebtedness at maturity.  And,
  


18:21:00 16   6, will cover the cost of all repairs and
  


18:21:02 17   renewals of any utility and all material used,
  


18:21:05 18   together with a reasonable allowance for
  


18:21:08 19   emergency and unforeseen expenses.
  


18:21:10 20            Some of the evidence that was presented
  


18:21:13 21   to you on September 30th related solely to KCC
  


18:21:17 22   regulated utilities.  You are not regulated by
  


18:21:21 23   the KCC, and those statutes do not govern you.
  


18:21:23 24   It is section 20 that governs your rate setting
  


18:21:27 25   requirements.
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18:21:30  1            Now, you heard from a lot of people
  


18:21:32  2   about issues that were before you.  And I'd like
  


18:21:35  3   to just summarize what I believe to be the
  


18:21:38  4   decisions that are before you.  I have given you
  


18:21:44  5   a handout which itemizes what I believe to be
  


18:21:47  6   these issues.  And, of course, these are all
  


18:21:49  7   policy matters for your consideration.
  


18:21:51  8            And I'll go through these and then we
  


18:21:54  9   will leave it to you to discuss and make
  


18:21:56 10   whatever decisions you wish to this evening, or
  


18:21:59 11   if you wish to delay any decisions to do that as
  


18:22:02 12   well.  And you can certainly feel free to ask
  


18:22:04 13   questions of me, of any of the other
  


18:22:07 14   intervenors' counsel and of any of the
  


18:22:08 15   intervenors' engineering consultants who are
  


18:22:11 16   present today by phone or in person.
  


18:22:12 17            It appears to us that the matters
  


18:22:15 18   requiring decisions are, first, whether you want
  


18:22:17 19   to approve a multi-year plan, approving rate
  


18:22:20 20   increases for 2012 and '13 as well as 2011 or to
  


18:22:24 21   approve a rate increase for 2011 and to defer
  


18:22:26 22   decision on 2012 and '13 increases.
  


18:22:30 23            Second, whether to approve the cost of
  


18:22:32 24   service and cost allocation methodologies
  


18:22:35 25   recommended by Black & Veatch in its electric
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18:22:37  1   and water cost service studies and of course --
  


18:22:41  2   or to consider some of the other methodologies
  


18:22:42  3   that were presented to you during testimony.
  


18:22:45  4            3, a determination of the percentage of
  


18:22:47  5   electric base rate increases as of the following
  


18:22:50  6   dates, and '12 and '13 would be if the board
  


18:22:54  7   approves going forward with a multi year plan.
  


18:22:57  8   And, of course, you've been presented a number
  


18:22:59  9   of options for your consideration during the
  


18:23:01 10   testimony that was presented to you.
  


18:23:05 11            4, approval of the electric base rate
  


18:23:08 12   increases for the customer classes, based on the
  


18:23:10 13   overall increase percentages approved by the
  


18:23:13 14   board.  Now, the BPU staff does have tables for
  


18:23:16 15   you for the different options the BPU staff
  


18:23:20 16   presented based on the Black & Veatch
  


18:23:23 17   methodology.  If you wish to choose a different
  


18:23:25 18   option or a different methodology, we'd have to
  


18:23:27 19   come back to you with comparable -- comparable
  


18:23:30 20   tables.
  


18:23:30 21            But the overall recommendation is that
  


18:23:33 22   since you did a 7 percent across the board
  


18:23:36 23   increase for 2010, as Black & Veatch said,
  


18:23:40 24   they've recommended modifying and leveling out
  


18:23:44 25   the amount of the increase over the system







12


  


18:23:47  1   average.  Rather than front loading it in 2010,
  


18:23:50  2   you did a system average in 2010.  And Black &
  


18:23:54  3   Veatch's current recommendation to you is that
  


18:23:55  4   no customer be increased over 120 percent over
  


18:24:00  5   the system average.
  


18:24:01  6            And that -- that smooths out that
  


18:24:03  7   increase over the four year period rather than
  


18:24:05  8   front loading it.  And that was -- that was
  


18:24:08  9   presented to you during testimony and on the
  


18:24:10 10   30th.  But the schedules that the staff has for
  


18:24:13 11   the different options have that approach of
  


18:24:16 12   recognizing that you had an across the board
  


18:24:18 13   increase and that you are not front loading the
  


18:24:21 14   increases for the customer classes but smoothing
  


18:24:22 15   them out over the four year period for electric.
  


18:24:26 16            The fifth decision would be a
  


18:24:27 17   determination of the percentage of water base
  


18:24:30 18   rate increases as of the following dates.  And,
  


18:24:32 19   again, 2012 and '13 would be if the Board
  


18:24:35 20   approves going forward with a multi year plan.
  


18:24:38 21            The sixth issue would be the approval
  


18:24:40 22   of water rates for customer classes, based on
  


18:24:43 23   the overall increases percentages approved by
  


18:24:46 24   the Board.  And, again, in the testimony, there
  


18:24:51 25   were -- there were customer class and size of
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18:24:54  1   meter tables for the different options presented
  


18:24:57  2   by the BPU.  And those will be available for
  


18:25:00  3   your review depending on the decision that you
  


18:25:03  4   make on the revenue increase amount.  If you
  


18:25:06  5   wish some other approach, we would have to come
  


18:25:08  6   back to you with other tables.  And the staff
  


18:25:11  7   would be prepared to give you those tables once
  


18:25:13  8   you make a decision on your revenue increase.
  


18:25:15  9   No point in giving you a table until you decide
  


18:25:17 10   what you want to do with the percentage of the
  


18:25:19 11   overall revenue increase.
  


18:25:21 12            Seventh would be approval of an energy
  


18:25:24 13   rate component rider, either as recommended by
  


18:25:27 14   BPU staff or modified to reflect the intervenor
  


18:25:30 15   comments.  And the BPU staff has provided the
  


18:25:33 16   form of the ERC rider that's recommended by
  


18:25:36 17   staff.  That's been also provided to the
  


18:25:39 18   intervenors in the audience.
  


18:25:41 19            Eight is approval of the environmental
  


18:25:43 20   surcharge rider, either as recommended by BPU
  


18:25:46 21   staff or modified to reflect intervenor
  


18:25:48 22   comments.  And, again, you've been provided the
  


18:25:50 23   form of the ESC rider recommended by staff as a
  


18:25:54 24   handout.  I will point out that the production
  


18:25:56 25   capacity allocation formula percentages
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18:25:59  1   contained in the ESC rider are based on the
  


18:26:03  2   Black & Veatch cost of service study and cost
  


18:26:05  3   allocation methodology.  If you wish to change
  


18:26:08  4   from the Black & Veatch cost of service
  


18:26:10  5   allocation methodology, we would change those
  


18:26:13  6   production capacity allocation formulas.
  


18:26:16  7            Ninth is something that is a joint
  


18:26:19  8   recommendation from all.  A is that you approve
  


18:26:24  9   that joint recommendation that no change be made
  


18:26:27 10   at this time to the on-peak period for the
  


18:26:29 11   billing demand measurement time and that such
  


18:26:31 12   on-peak period continue its current time frame,
  


18:26:35 13   10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., until additional study
  


18:26:36 14   of this issue can be undertaken.
  


18:26:39 15            Now, we can't tell you that any
  


18:26:40 16   recommendation for change would come back to you
  


18:26:42 17   after that additional study, but it's going to
  


18:26:44 18   be a year or so.  We don't want to reopen a rate
  


18:26:47 19   hearing just to make a change in that.  So we're
  


18:26:49 20   secondly recommending that you hold open in this
  


18:26:51 21   rate proceeding the issue of that on peak period
  


18:26:53 22   for the billing determinant measurement time.
  


18:26:56 23   And that would be subject to further action by
  


18:26:58 24   you after that further study's received.  So
  


18:27:01 25   that's the one issue that there's a joint
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18:27:03  1   recommendation that you hold open.
  


18:27:06  2            Tenth is a decision on the rachet to be
  


18:27:07  3   used for winter demand building.  And the BPU
  


18:27:10  4   staff recommends that a 70 percent rachet
  


18:27:12  5   continue to be used for winter demand billing.
  


18:27:15  6            And, finally, a discussion of the
  


18:27:18  7   future review of financial performance and
  


18:27:20  8   progress of the BPU toward meeting the financial
  


18:27:22  9   goals and a determination of whether you now
  


18:27:27 10   wish to give a direction to staff, as a part of
  


18:27:29 11   that ongoing review and evaluation of collection
  


18:27:32 12   revenues under whatever rates you approve, and
  


18:27:34 13   of the operating and capital expenditures that
  


18:27:37 14   the staff would provide you an analysis of
  


18:27:39 15   whether the financial metrics in the rate plan
  


18:27:41 16   have been met or exceeded to give you a basis to
  


18:27:45 17   consider whether you might have a downward
  


18:27:48 18   adjustment to rates in a future year.
  


18:27:49 19            I might point out, that might also tell
  


18:27:51 20   you that you needed to consider a further rate
  


18:27:54 21   increase, which would have required a rate
  


18:27:55 22   hearing.  But at any rate, the question before
  


18:27:57 23   you is do you want staff to come back to you
  


18:28:00 24   with this analysis on an ongoing basis as
  


18:28:04 25   performance comes in.
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18:28:06  1            And, finally, two housekeeping matters.
  


18:28:11  2   And that is on the last page, 12, you should
  


18:28:13  3   give a direction to Black & Veatch after you've
  


18:28:15  4   made your decisions that they prepare a final
  


18:28:17  5   rate manual based on the rate increase decisions
  


18:28:20  6   that are made by the Board and the decisions on
  


18:28:22  7   the Black & Veatch proposed rate design.  And,
  


18:28:25  8   finally, that you give a direction to me once
  


18:28:29  9   you've made your decisions to prepare a written
  


18:28:30 10   order for the Board that you can then sign that
  


18:28:33 11   would set out your decisions, the basis for the
  


18:28:35 12   decisions as you've indicated during your
  


18:28:38 13   proceedings tonight and the directions that are
  


18:28:41 14   made by the board.  So that's -- that's a
  


18:28:43 15   summary of where we are.  And with that, we'll
  


18:28:45 16   turn it over to you.
  


18:28:56 17                  MR. MILAN:  Based on the review
  


18:29:01 18   from counsel on matters to be required in
  


18:29:07 19   decision, I make a motion to approve the Black &
  


18:29:14 20   Veatch cost of service study and cost allocation
  


18:29:17 21   as presented from Black & Veatch.  That's the
  


18:29:22 22   first option I have before me.
  


18:29:25 23                  MS. COLUMBO:  I'll second that
  


18:29:27 24   motion.
  


18:29:29 25                  MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?
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18:29:30  1                  MR. ALVEY:  I just want to
  


18:29:31  2   clarify.  So we're working with matter 1.
  


18:29:35  3                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Actually, matter
  


18:29:36  4   2, the motion to approve the cost of service and
  


18:29:38  5   the cost allocation methodologies recommended by
  


18:29:41  6   Black & Veatch in its electric and water cost of
  


18:29:43  7   service studies.  I imagine we have to have a
  


18:29:46  8   second motion on the multi year --
  


18:29:47  9                  MS. PETERS:  Yes.
  


18:29:48 10                  MS. COLOMBEL:  -- so I think --
  


18:29:49 11   is that correct, Bob, that your motion is for
  


18:29:51 12   the Black & Veatch study?
  


18:29:52 13                  MR. MILAN:  Right.
  


18:29:54 14                  MS. COLOMBEL:  And that's what I
  


18:29:55 15   second.
  


18:29:55 16                  MR. ALVEY:  Okay.
  


18:30:01 17                  MR. MILAN:  Before we take a roll
  


18:30:04 18   call vote on that, let me have a little few
  


18:30:09 19   moments.
  


18:30:10 20                  MR. EIDSON:  I can barely hear
  


18:30:11 21   you, sir.
  


18:30:12 22                  MR. MILAN:  I said let me have a
  


18:30:14 23   few moments please.  This is a difficult
  


18:30:17 24   decision when we're talking about the
  


18:30:23 25   responsibility of a financial obligation that







18


  


18:30:25  1   this Board has under consideration of customers
  


18:30:31  2   big and small.  The decision was not an easy one
  


18:30:37  3   because what the Board was presented with were
  


18:30:41  4   many pieces of documentation.
  


18:30:45  5            I have before me the report from the
  


18:30:51  6   intervenors I've studied quite well.  I have
  


18:30:54  7   recommendation from the staff presented quite
  


18:30:59  8   well.  I have charts and diagrams to compare
  


18:31:04  9   each of the ratings with other community areas
  


18:31:07 10   around Kansas City and surrounding territories.
  


18:31:11 11   I have before me the testimony taken by the
  


18:31:16 12   court reporter here, very costly, very time
  


18:31:20 13   consuming.
  


18:31:22 14            And, finally, I have the final
  


18:31:26 15   conclusion recommended from Black & Veatch based
  


18:31:31 16   on my motion to consider the (inaubidle) that
  


18:31:36 17   we've had with the staff, going over all the
  


18:31:39 18   options that we have, we have a reasonable
  


18:31:43 19   increase, so to speak, that best serves the
  


18:31:47 20   community, our customers, Kansas City, Kansas
  


18:31:50 21   and Wyandotte County.
  


18:31:53 22            This document was the final document I
  


18:31:56 23   received from the consulting engineers, Black &
  


18:32:00 24   Veatch, which clearly states the risks, the
  


18:32:05 25   rationale, the purpose of the rate increase that
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18:32:09  1   we're proposing tonight.  I would like to say to
  


18:32:13  2   my board members -- this is my independent
  


18:32:16  3   statement, my independent judgment, I'm just
  


18:32:20  4   sharing with you some of what 19 years have
  


18:32:23  5   taught me.
  


18:32:24  6            I think the Board has been very, very
  


18:32:27  7   reasonable in the last 19 years in terms of rate
  


18:32:32  8   increase.  I think were too small.  I've
  


18:32:35  9   expressed that many times.  And we needed to
  


18:32:39 10   probably have small rate increases from 2006 and
  


18:32:46 11   before in order to not reach this same point.
  


18:32:49 12   But under the circumstances, under the
  


18:32:51 13   circumstances, based on cost allocation, cost of
  


18:32:55 14   service study and all the other components that
  


18:32:57 15   go with that rate increase design, this is why I
  


18:33:02 16   make my comments.  Thank you very much.
  


18:33:05 17                  MR. PETTEY:  Do you at this time
  


18:33:06 18   just want to vote on the electric or do you want
  


18:33:09 19   to add the cost of service for water also?
  


18:33:12 20                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Well, I think in
  


18:33:13 21   this recommendation, it says that it's electric
  


18:33:16 22   and water.
  


18:33:17 23                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  I just wanted
  


18:33:18 24   to make -- I mean, that's what it was, but the
  


18:33:21 25   way we talked -- make that understood.  Any
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18:33:25  1   other discussion?
  


18:33:30  2            I guess we give a roll call, please, to
  


18:33:33  3   see what happens there.
  


18:33:34  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Yes.  Roll call.
  


18:33:35  5   Loretta Colombel.
  


18:33:37  6                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:33:37  7                  MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.
  


18:33:39  8                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


18:33:39  9                  MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.
  


18:33:40 10                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


18:33:41 11                  MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.
  


18:33:43 12                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:33:43 13                  MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,
  


18:33:45 14   Senior.
  


18:33:45 15                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:33:46 16                  MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.
  


18:33:47 17                  MR. PETTEY:  I'll make it
  


18:33:48 18   unanimous.  Aye.
  


18:33:53 19                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:34:01 20                  MR. PETTEY:  Thank you.  Rob.
  


18:34:02 21                  MR. MILAN:  And we have another
  


18:34:04 22   item here that probably should be up front, make
  


18:34:07 23   sure that (inaudible) information.  The issue is
  


18:34:14 24   making sure that our plan it can be deferred
  


18:34:18 25   from '12, '13 based on what the recommendations
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18:34:23  1   made of counsel here.  Do you get that?
  


18:34:26  2                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Are you making a
  


18:34:27  3   motion to approve the multi year plan?
  


18:34:29  4                  MR. MILAN:  Right, right.
  


18:34:32  5                  MS. COLOMBEL:  For the rate
  


18:34:32  6   increases for 2012 and 2013?
  


18:34:35  7                  MR. MILAN:  Right.
  


18:34:36  8                  MS. COLOMBEL:  As well as this
  


18:34:37  9   one -- the present year that we're in?
  


18:34:39 10                  MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.
  


18:34:40 11   Absolutely.
  


18:34:40 12                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second your
  


18:34:42 13   motion.
  


18:34:42 14                  MR. MILAN:  Make sure it's clear.
  


18:34:44 15                  MR. ALVEY:  I think we say we
  


18:34:47 16   wish to approve a multi year plan to approve
  


18:34:49 17   rate increases for 2011, 2012, 2013.
  


18:34:54 18                  MR. MILAN:  Precisely.
  


18:34:56 19                  MS. GONZALEZ:  And we're talking
  


18:34:58 20   water and electric.  Is that your intent,
  


18:35:00 21   Mr. Milan?
  


18:35:01 22                  MR. MILAN:  That's correct.
  


18:35:04 23                  MR. EIDSON:  And that is based on
  


18:35:06 24   the Black & Veatch study that was presented to
  


18:35:07 25   us.
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18:35:08  1                  MR. MILAN:  Yes.  Absolutely.
  


18:35:09  2                  MR. ALVEY:  Second.
  


18:35:12  3                  MR. PETTEY:  Loretta already
  


18:35:14  4   seconded.
  


18:35:16  5                  MR. ALVEY:  Sorry.
  


18:35:17  6                  MS. COLOMBEL:  That's okay.
  


18:35:18  7                  MR. PETTEY:  Any other
  


18:35:19  8   discussion?  Roll call, please.
  


18:35:21  9                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.  Loretta
  


18:35:23 10   Columbel.
  


18:35:23 11                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:35:24 12                  MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.
  


18:35:25 13                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


18:35:25 14                  MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.
  


18:35:27 15                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


18:35:27 16                  MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.
  


18:35:28 17                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:35:28 18                  MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,
  


19   Senior.
  


18:35:30 20                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:35:30 21                  MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.
  


18:35:31 22                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:35:31 23                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:35:36 24                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we --
  


18:35:38 25   Mr. Pettey, do we also need an approval on the
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18:35:40  1   customer classes or do we go now to the energy
  


18:35:43  2   rate component and the energy surcharge?
  


18:35:47  3                  MR. MILAN:  That's important.
  


18:35:49  4                  MS. PETERS:  Mrs. Columbel, I
  


18:35:50  5   think you should take up a decision on each of
  


18:35:53  6   these items in order.
  


18:35:55  7                  MR. PETTEY:  So we were looking
  


18:35:56  8   at No. 7.  Now --
  


18:35:57  9                  MS. PETERS:  Actually, I think
  


18:35:58 10   we're looking at No. 3.
  


18:36:01 11                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.
  


18:36:04 12                  MS. COLOMBEL:  And the motion
  


18:36:05 13   would be that the percentage of the electric
  


18:36:08 14   base rate increase as the following dates in
  


18:36:13 15   accordance with the Black & Veatch study?
  


18:36:17 16                  MR. MILAN:  You make a motion?
  


18:36:19 17                  MS. COLOMBEL:  No.  I'm asking
  


18:36:20 18   Kathy if that's the proper --
  


18:36:24 19                  MS. PETERS:  Excuse me just a
  


18:36:26 20   second.  I would suggest to you that you just
  


18:36:31 21   include in your motion the percentages that you
  


18:36:33 22   wish to increase.  Now, the Black & Veatch study
  


18:36:37 23   called for on the electric side 7 percent
  


18:36:41 24   January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012,
  


18:36:45 25   7 percent January 1, 2013.  And I would ask you,







24


  


18:36:48  1   is that the import of your motion?
  


18:36:50  2                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.
  


18:36:52  3                  MR. MILAN:  Right.
  


18:36:55  4                  MR. EIDSON:  On what class of
  


18:36:56  5   service?
  


18:36:56  6                  MR. ALVEY:  We're not talking
  


18:36:58  7   about --
  


18:36:58  8                  MS. COLOMBEL:  We're just on No.
  


18:37:00  9   3.
  


18:37:00 10                  MR. EIDSON:  I understand that.
  


18:37:00 11                  MR. ALVEY:  It's the electric
  


18:37:02 12   base rate.
  


18:37:02 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Right.  So that my
  


18:37:04 14   motion was that it would be the 7 percent in
  


18:37:07 15   January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012, and
  


18:37:11 16   7 percent as of January 1, 2013, and that would
  


18:37:15 17   be the electric only.
  


18:37:18 18                  MR. ALVEY:  Base rate, not
  


18:37:19 19   according to class.
  


18:37:20 20                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  And that is
  


18:37:24 21   in the form of a motion, please.
  


18:37:25 22                  MR. MILAN:  Second the motion.
  


18:37:29 23                  MR. PETTEY:  Any other
  


18:37:30 24   discussion?  Roll call, please.
  


18:37:33 25                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
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18:37:34  1   Columbel.
  


18:37:36  2                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:37:37  3                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:37:37  4                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


 5                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:37:38  6                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


18:37:39  7                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


18:37:40  8                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:37:41  9                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:37:42 10                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:37:42 11                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:37:43 12                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:37:44 13                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:37:50 14                  MR. ALVEY:  I think on No. 4 --
  


18:37:52 15                  MS. PETERS:  No. 4, we have --
  


18:37:54 16                  MR. ALVEY:  An adjustment to the
  


18:37:55 17   original.
  


18:37:56 18                  MS. PETERS:  As I indicated, we
  


18:37:57 19   had handouts based on what option you chose or
  


18:38:01 20   if you chose some other one.  And Lori has the
  


18:38:05 21   Black & Veatch recommendations for the rate
  


18:38:08 22   increases for the customer classes based on the
  


18:38:12 23   7 percent overall base rate increase.
  


18:38:40 24                  MR. ALVEY:  This is -- and so,
  


18:38:48 25   Kathy, if I may ask, to be clear, this is with
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18:38:56  1   there not being an adjustment greater than
  


18:38:58  2   120 percent of the average system?
  


18:39:01  3                  MS. PETERS:  I would ask Craig to
  


18:39:03  4   answer that question.  Craig Brown.
  


18:39:15  5                  MR. BROWN:  That is correct.  I
  


18:39:17  6   believe it's actually -- I think it was
  


18:39:22  7   8.5 percent actually in 2011, but it's like
  


18:39:26  8   121 percent, approximately 120 percent of the
  


18:39:29  9   system average.
  


18:39:33 10                  MR. EIDSON:  Craig, I have a
  


11   question.
  


18:39:36 12                  MR. BROWN:  Sure.
  


18:39:36 13                  MR. EIDSON:  Why would we not
  


18:39:38 14   have a rate increase for USD 500 schools?  We're
  


18:39:41 15   at 0 percent in '11, 0 percent in '12.  I
  


18:39:46 16   mean --
  


18:39:46 17                  MR. BROWN:  The initial reasoning
  


18:39:48 18   was for -- in our original recommendations, it
  


18:39:51 19   was recommended they should have 0 percent in
  


18:39:53 20   the first year and I believe the second year and
  


18:39:57 21   then increase to 3 percent in '12 and 5 percent
  


18:40:01 22   I believe in '13, approximately.  When they got
  


18:40:05 23   a 7 percent across the board in July 2010, it
  


18:40:10 24   was determined, in collaboration with the staff
  


18:40:12 25   as well, that they should have 0 percent because
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18:40:14  1   they weren't going to get up to 7 percent until
  


18:40:17  2   about the third year.
  


18:40:20  3                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  I remember
  


18:40:22  4   that discussion.
  


18:40:25  5                  MR. EIDSON:  I'm not so sure I'm
  


18:40:27  6   in agreement with that, but at this point, I
  


18:40:40  7   don't know what we would do about it.
  


18:40:42  8                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I think --
  


18:40:43  9                  MR. PETTEY:  Well, they had a 7,
  


18:40:45 10   but it was going to be 0.
  


18:40:47 11                  MS. COLOMBEL:  It was going to be
  


18:40:48 12   a 5 and 3.
  


18:40:50 13                  MR. EIDSON:  Everybody got a 7.
  


18:40:51 14                  MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, but I mean,
  


18:40:52 15   they were really going to --
  


18:40:53 16                  MR. BROWN:  I can clarify that.
  


18:40:56 17   They were 0, 3 in 2011 and 5 in 2012 and 7 in
  


18:41:00 18   2013 was the original plan.
  


18:41:01 19                  MR. PETTEY:  Yeah.
  


18:41:02 20                  MR. EIDSON:  That's what I'm
  


18:41:03 21   looking at.
  


18:41:04 22                  MR. BROWN:  And approximately 7
  


18:41:05 23   in 2010 by the time you get a 0 and 3 and a 5,
  


18:41:09 24   be about the same spot by the end.
  


18:41:17 25                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.
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18:41:18  1                  MR. ALVEY:  I make a motion to
  


18:41:20  2   approve the electric base rate increases for the
  


18:41:22  3   customer classes based on the table presented by
  


18:41:28  4   staff.
  


18:41:30  5                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second the
  


18:41:31  6   motion.
  


18:41:34  7                  MR. PETTEY:  Roll call pending
  


18:41:37  8   any other discussion.  Roll call, please.
  


18:41:40  9                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


18:41:42 10   Columbel.
  


18:41:43 11                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:41:45 12                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


13                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


18:41:45 14                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:41:46 15                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


18:41:47 16                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


18:41:47 17                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:41:49 18                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:41:50 19                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:41:50 20                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:41:51 21                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:41:52 22                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:41:55 23                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  No. 5.
  


18:42:00 24                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we have a
  


18:42:01 25   determination for the water percentage?  Just
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18:42:04  1   another clarification.
  


18:42:05  2                  MS. PETERS:  The cost of service
  


18:42:06  3   study indicated that water would be 8 percent in
  


18:42:10  4   2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in
  


18:42:14  5   2013.
  


18:42:19  6                  MR. EIDSON:  Say that one more
  


18:42:20  7   time, Kathy, I'm sorry.
  


18:42:21  8                  MS. PETERS:  The cost of service
  


18:42:22  9   study indicated for water an 8 percent increase
  


18:42:25 10   in 2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012, and 7 1/2
  


18:42:29 11   percent in 2013.
  


18:42:34 12                  MR. EIDSON:  Thank you.
  


18:42:37 13                  MR. MILAN:  Those percentages
  


18:42:40 14   were included in the item No. 2.  She's just
  


18:42:43 15   verifying what those are.
  


18:42:44 16                  MS. PETERS:  No.  We want a
  


18:42:46 17   separate motion on those.
  


18:42:47 18                  MS. COLOMBEL:  But we do need a
  


18:42:49 19   separate motion.  Are you making a motion?
  


18:42:51 20                  MR. MILAN:  Yes.  I make a motion
  


18:42:53 21   to accept item 4 --
  


18:42:56 22                  MR. EIDSON:  5.
  


18:42:56 23                  MR. MILAN:  Item 5 as presented.
  


18:42:58 24                  MR. EIDSON:  Second.
  


18:43:00 25                  MR. PETTEY:  Any other







30


  


18:43:00  1   discussion?
  


18:43:01  2                  MS. PETERS:  Again, I would like
  


18:43:02  3   to clarify that motion.  You are moving that the
  


18:43:05  4   water increase be 8 1/2 percent in 2011 --
  


18:43:08  5                  MS. GONZALEZ:  8.
  


18:43:09  6                  MR. EIDSON:  8.
  


18:43:10  7                  MS. COLOMBEL:  8 percent 2011.
  


18:43:12  8                  MS. PETERS:  Sorry.  Good thing I
  


18:43:13  9   clarified that.  8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2
  


18:43:17 10   percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in 2013.
  


18:43:21 11                  MR. MILAN:  That's correct.
  


18:43:23 12                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Roll call,
  


18:43:30 13   please.
  


18:43:30 14                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


15   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 16                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 17                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 18                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


19                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 20                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


21                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


22                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38 23                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39 24                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40 25                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
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18:43:41  1                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  2                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:43:42  3                  MS. PETERS:  And we have asked
  


18:43:45  4   Loretta to hand out a schedule of the water
  


18:43:48  5   rates for the customer classes based on that
  


18:43:50  6   overall increase.  Again, we had the different
  


18:43:52  7   options that have been presented to the Board.
  


18:43:55  8   This is the one contained in the original cost
  


18:43:57  9   of service report.
  


18:44:40 10                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll make a motion
  


18:44:41 11   to approve the water rates for customer classes
  


18:44:45 12   based on the average increase percentage that
  


18:44:54 13   has been presented.
  


18:44:57 14                  MS. GONZALEZ:  I second.
  


18:45:00 15                  MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Any
  


18:45:02 16   discussion on that?  Motion by Ms. Columbel,
  


18:45:17 17   second by Ms. Gonzales to approve as presented
  


18:45:19 18   to us.  Roll call, please.
  


18:45:23 19                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


18:45:24 20   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 21                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 22                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 23                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


24                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 25                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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 1                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


 2                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  3                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  4                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  5                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  6                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  7                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:45:40  8                  MR. ALVEY:  I'd like to make a
  


18:45:41  9   motion for approval of the energy rate component
  


18:45:43 10   rider as recommended by BPU staff.
  


18:45:47 11                  MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.
  


18:45:51 12                  MR. PETTEY:  Got a motion by
  


18:45:52 13   Mr. Alvey and second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
  


18:45:56 14   the rate.  Any discussion on that?  Let's roll
  


18:46:09 15   call, please.
  


18:46:09 16                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


18:46:10 17   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 18                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 19                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 20                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


21                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 22                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


23                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


24                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38 25                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.







33


  


18:43:39  1                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  2                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  3                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:46:23  5                  MR. PETTEY:  Next is the ERC --
  


18:46:26  6                  MS. PETERS:  ESC.
  


18:46:28  7                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Environmental
  


18:46:29  8   surcharge rider.
  


18:46:31  9                  MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, I'm sorry.
  


18:46:34 10                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Motion to approve
  


18:46:35 11   the environmental surcharge rider recommended by
  


18:46:40 12   staff.
  


18:46:43 13                  MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.
  


18:46:45 14                  MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
  


18:46:46 15   Ms. Columbel, second by Ms. Gonzales to approve
  


18:46:50 16   the environmental surcharge rider.  Any
  


18:46:53 17   discussion?  Roll call, please.
  


18:46:59 18                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


18:47:00 19   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 20                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 21                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 22                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


23                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 24                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


25                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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 1                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  2                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  3                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  5                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  6                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:47:13  7                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I guess I have a
  


18:47:14  8   question on No. 9.  Is the recommended --
  


18:47:22  9   recommendation by staff and intervenors, is this
  


18:47:26 10   the one that Lori presented to us last week that
  


18:47:28 11   we would hold where we are; is that correct?
  


18:47:30 12                  MS. PETERS:  Yes, ma'am.
  


18:47:33 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.  Motion to
  


18:47:34 14   approve.
  


18:47:36 15                  MR. EIDSON:  Second.
  


18:47:37 16                  MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
  


18:47:41 17   Ms. Gonzales, second by Mr. Eidson to approve
  


18:47:45 18   staff recommendations on the on-peak period.
  


18:47:50 19   Roll call, please.
  


18:47:51 20                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


21   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 22                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 23                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 24                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


25                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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18:43:37  1                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


 2                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


 3                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  5                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  6                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  7                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  8                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:48:06  9                  MR. PETTEY:  No. 10 is the BPU
  


18:48:08 10   staff recommendation that a 7 percent ratchet
  


18:48:11 11   continue to be used for winter demand billing.
  


18:48:17 12                  MS. GONZALEZ:  I move to approve
  


18:48:19 13   that we use the 7 percent rachet continuing for
  


18:48:22 14   winter demand.
  


18:48:23 15                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
  


18:48:24 16                  MR. PETTEY:  Motion by
  


18:48:26 17   Ms. Gonzales, second by Ms. Colombel to approve
  


18:48:28 18   the 7 percent rachet for winter demand billing.
  


18:48:32 19   Any other discussion?  Roll call, please.
  


18:48:36 20                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


18:48:37 21   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 22                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 23                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 24                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


25                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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18:43:37  1                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


 2                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


 3                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  5                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  6                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  7                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  8                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:48:49  9                  MR. PETTEY:  No. 11 is a
  


18:48:52 10   discussion of further review of the financial
  


18:48:55 11   performance and progress of the BPU toward
  


18:48:58 12   meeting our financial goals.
  


18:49:00 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think this
  


18:49:01 14   is very key, Mr. Pettey.
  


18:49:04 15                  MR. MILAN:  This is very
  


18:49:05 16   important.  This should be explained really
  


17   clearly.
  


18:49:06 18                  MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think
  


18:49:07 19   Ms. Gonzales has stated this all along that as
  


18:49:09 20   we go through this process and we do have these
  


18:49:12 21   increases that we are watched very closely what
  


18:49:16 22   we're doing with our expenditures and with
  


18:49:19 23   capital improvements.
  


18:49:21 24                  MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.
  


18:49:21 25                  MS. COLOMBEL:  So do we need this
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18:49:23  1   in a form of a motion as to an exact time frame
  


18:49:27  2   we want?
  


18:49:28  3                  MR. MILAN:  I'll request the
  


18:49:30  4   whole paragraph be read clearly to make sure
  


18:49:33  5   it's understood between us and the public so we
  


18:49:37  6   understand what we really mean.
  


18:49:38  7                  MS. PETERS:  We would suggest
  


18:49:40  8   that you consider this at a minimum at the time
  


18:49:42  9   that you're putting your budget together for the
  


18:49:45 10   following fiscal year that you get an analysis
  


18:49:48 11   of where you are for meeting your financial
  


18:49:51 12   metrics to date.
  


18:49:52 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I think I would
  


18:49:53 14   like more than one a year.  I think I'd at least
  


18:49:55 15   like a six month interval.
  


18:49:58 16                  MR. ALVEY:  My only -- I think
  


18:50:01 17   that this is something that we do, you know, the
  


18:50:04 18   monthly financial reports, the quarterly
  


18:50:07 19   reports.  I believe this is a function that
  


18:50:09 20   we're already accomplishing.  I'm really not --
  


18:50:14 21   I can see why we would vote for this, but we do
  


18:50:17 22   it as a rule anyway.  So I wouldn't want -- if
  


18:50:24 23   we pass it, I don't want to give people the idea
  


18:50:26 24   that we don't do this on a regular basis.
  


18:50:28 25                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree, David.  I
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18:50:30  1   just -- I think in the interest of public
  


18:50:35  2   discussion and -- that it is a separate item
  


18:50:39  3   that -- I would say twice a year, you know,
  


18:50:45  4   during budget time and then late -- maybe again
  


18:50:47  5   in July that it is a single discussion on the
  


18:50:51  6   outcomes and what we have been able to -- to
  


18:50:59  7   meet in our financial goals the best
  


18:51:01  8   determination.  I know we have a monthly, but I
  


18:51:04  9   would still like to see what this process has
  


18:51:06 10   brought us to.
  


18:51:07 11                  MR. MILAN:  Well, I take a
  


18:51:09 12   different approach.
  


18:51:09 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.
  


18:51:10 14                  MR. MILAN:  What I'm trying to
  


18:51:13 15   say -- unless you want to read it --
  


16                  MR. PETTEY:  Go ahead.
  


18:51:18 17                  MR. MILAN:  Item 11, Discussion
  


18:51:18 18   of further review of financial performance and
  


18:51:23 19   progress of the Board towards meeting the
  


18:51:23 20   financial goal and determination of whether to
  


18:51:26 21   give a direction to staff, as a part of the
  


18:51:30 22   ongoing review and evaluation of collection of
  


18:51:32 23   revenues under the approved rates and operation
  


18:51:36 24   and capital expenditures, to provide an analysis
  


18:51:39 25   of whether the financial metrics in the rate
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18:51:42  1   plan have been met or exceeded to provide a
  


18:51:45  2   basis for the Board to consider whether a
  


18:51:50  3   downward adjustment to rates may be made in the
  


18:51:54  4   future.
  


18:51:55  5            We're saying that if it looks better in
  


18:51:58  6   '11 and '12, then the staff should take and
  


18:52:01  7   adjust -- I want to make it clear that although
  


18:52:04  8   we agree to these figures tonight, these
  


18:52:06  9   percentages, we have the option, the staff has
  


18:52:10 10   the option to look at the analysis and review as
  


18:52:12 11   we promised the intervenors and the public, we
  


18:52:15 12   will look at these rates.  We may go down to 6
  


18:52:18 13   next year, okay.  5.  Hope we go down to 0.  But
  


18:52:22 14   anyway, that's hypothetical, but my point is,
  


18:52:24 15   that's the purpose of 11.
  


18:52:26 16                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree.
  


18:52:27 17                  MR. MILAN:  It should be clear.
  


18:52:29 18   Do you understand that?
  


18:52:29 19                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I totally agree.
  


18:52:30 20                  MR. MILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


18:52:32 21                  MR. PETTEY:  Well, the pilot
  


18:52:33 22   should go down.  We know it's going to go down.
  


18:52:36 23                  MR. EIDSON:  I agree with this.
  


18:52:37 24   We do look at that monthly, the finance
  


18:52:40 25   committee does look at the -- where the Board or
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18:52:43  1   where the utility is on a monthly basis.  And I
  


18:52:47  2   don't think there's anybody up here at this
  


18:52:49  3   table that had the opportunity to lower the
  


18:52:51  4   rates would not hesitate to do that if
  


18:52:54  5   everything was sound and stable here at the BPU.
  


18:52:58  6                  MR. MILAN:  Well, based on what
  


18:52:59  7   we approved in the rate increase, this reflects
  


18:53:02  8   this particular set of circumstances, okay.
  


18:53:08  9                  MS. COLOMBEL:  So would the
  


18:53:09 10   discussion be that this is handled yearly in the
  


18:53:13 11   budget review for the following year so we would
  


18:53:15 12   know if there was a possibility of a reduction
  


18:53:19 13   in the rates?
  


18:53:22 14                  MR. PETTEY:  Well, ask for a
  


18:53:24 15   timely report so we can decide in advance what
  


18:53:27 16   we can do, if we can or cannot with --
  


18:53:32 17                  MR. MILAN:  It gives direction to
  


18:53:33 18   the staff saying, tell the Board where we are,
  


18:53:38 19   do we stay status quo, do we have an opportunity
  


18:53:40 20   based on analysis to reduce or stay where we
  


18:53:44 21   are.  It's telling the staff what to do here.
  


18:53:47 22                  MR. ALVEY:  If the direction to
  


18:53:48 23   the staff is that they have to present proposal
  


18:53:51 24   to us specifically addressing that rates ought
  


18:53:55 25   to remain at the level, which has been
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18:53:58  1   established by the decision tonight, or whether
  


18:54:03  2   an adjustment downward, if they are directed
  


18:54:06  3   specifically to offer a recommendation, that's
  


18:54:09  4   different than just -- I think this doesn't
  


18:54:12  5   quite say what we're trying to say.  I think
  


18:54:14  6   what it needs to say is staff should be directed
  


18:54:17  7   to recommend any rate increase or decrease --
  


18:54:26  8                  MR. PETTEY:  Can't increase.
  


18:54:26  9                  MR. ALVEY:  I'm sorry.  Any rate
  


18:54:29 10   decrease from what was established by decisions
  


18:54:33 11   tonight.  If that's what we're trying to do,
  


18:54:34 12   then I'm fine with that.
  


18:54:35 13                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  That's the
  


18:54:36 14   whole basis.
  


18:54:37 15                  MR. MILAN:  That's what it's
  


18:54:39 16   trying to say.
  


18:54:40 17                  MR. ALVEY:  Yeah.  I don't think
  


18:54:41 18   it says that in the language.
  


18:54:43 19                  MR. EIDSON:  It could be done
  


18:54:44 20   when we're working on the budget, yearly budget.
  


18:54:47 21                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Mary.
  


18:54:48 22                  MR. MILAN:  We have time to agree
  


18:54:51 23   upon the staff later on.  Move on from that.
  


18:54:54 24                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like to
  


18:54:55 25   make that in the form of a motion, David?
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18:54:57  1                  MR. ALVEY:  Sure.  I'll just
  


18:54:58  2   change -- the only language I would change there
  


18:54:59  3   is to direct the staff to provide an analysis
  


18:55:02  4   and a recommend- -- an analysis of whether the
  


18:55:06  5   financial metrics in the rate plan have been met
  


18:55:08  6   or exceeded and to recommend or not recommend a
  


18:55:12  7   downward adjustment to rates to be made in the
  


18:55:15  8   future year.
  


18:55:18  9                  MR. EIDSON:  Do you want to tie
  


18:55:20 10   that to the Board?
  


18:55:22 11                  MR. ALVEY:  Actually, a
  


18:55:23 12   recommendation.
  


18:55:26 13                  MR. MILAN:  It means the same.
  


18:55:27 14   Fine with me.
  


18:55:28 15                  MR. EIDSON:  Tied to a budget
  


18:55:30 16   proceeding.
  


18:55:30 17                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
  


18:55:33 18                  MR. PETTEY:  Any other
  


18:55:36 19   discussion?  Roll call.
  


18:55:37 20                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


21   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 22                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 23                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 24                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


25                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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18:43:37  1                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


 2                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


 3                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  5                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  6                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  7                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  8                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:55:51  9                  MR. PETTEY:  No. 12, we're
  


18:55:52 10   asking -- we're directing Black & Veatch to
  


18:55:54 11   prepare a final manual based on the rate
  


18:55:57 12   increases decisions we've just made on the
  


18:56:01 13   proposed rate.
  


18:56:04 14                  MR. ALVEY:  So moved.
  


18:56:06 15                  MR. MILAN:  Second.
  


18:56:08 16                  MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?
  


18:56:12 17   Roll call, please.
  


18:56:13 18                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


19   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 20                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 21                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 22                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


23                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 24                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
  


25                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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 1                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  2                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  3                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  4                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  5                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  6                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:56:24  7                  MR. PETTEY:  13, give direction
  


18:56:24  8   to the rate counsel to prepare a written order
  


18:56:28  9   for the Board, setting out the decisions,
  


18:56:33 10   evidentiary basis on the decisions and
  


18:56:35 11   directions made by the Board.
  


18:56:36 12                  MR. EIDSON:  So moved.
  


18:56:37 13                  MR. ALVEY:  Second.
  


18:56:38 14                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.
  


18:56:40 15                  MR. PETTEY:  Roll call, please.
  


18:56:41 16                  MS. BOEDING:  Who's the second?
  


18:56:43 17                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I said it.
  


18:56:45 18                  MR. EIDSON:  Loretta Columbel.
  


18:56:47 19                  MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
  


20   Colombel.
  


18:43:33 21                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.
  


18:43:34 22                  MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.
  


18:43:36 23                  MS. GONZALES:  Aye.
  


24                  MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
  


18:43:37 25                  MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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 1                  MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
  


 2                  MR. ALVEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:38  3                  MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
  


18:43:39  4                  MR. MILAN:  Aye.
  


18:43:40  5                  MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
  


18:43:41  6                  MR. PETTEY:  Aye.
  


18:43:41  7                  MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.
  


18:57:02  8                  MR. PETTEY:  You know, I would
  


18:57:02  9   say thank you for everyone for all of the effort
  


18:57:07 10   that went into the final decision on this.  It's
  


18:57:12 11   been a trying several months trying to decide
  


18:57:15 12   what's the best way for the BPU and our
  


18:57:17 13   customers big and small, and I feel that we have
  


18:57:20 14   done that this evening.
  


18:57:22 15            But like we have mentioned earlier, we
  


18:57:24 16   want to make it very clear if there's any way
  


18:57:27 17   that these rates can come down in the future
  


18:57:29 18   years, we definitely want that to happen.
  


18:57:32 19   They're not written in stone.  Anyone else?
  


18:57:38 20                  MR. MILAN:  Thank you.  That's a
  


18:57:40 21   good comment.
  


18:57:43 22                  MR. PETTEY:  Any other board
  


18:57:44 23   comments on this?
  


18:57:46 24                  MS. COLOMBEL:  I also want to
  


18:57:47 25   thank staff, the intervenors, the consultants.
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18:57:51  1   I know that every one of you have worked long
  


18:57:53  2   and hard to bring us testimony, statements,
  


18:58:02  3   proof, facts, all of the papers that Mr. Milan
  


18:58:05  4   spoke of.  It's not an easy decision.  It's
  


18:58:08  5   never an easy decision to increase someone's
  


18:58:10  6   bill.  But it's the best decision for our
  


18:58:14  7   utility.  And I'm proud to be a part of this
  


18:58:18  8   board that made a unanimous decision to keep our
  


18:58:22  9   community whole and to keep our utility
  


18:58:25 10   functioning properly.
  


18:58:27 11                  MR. MILAN:  I'd like to use an
  


18:58:32 12   Optimist Club kind of theory which says, Forget
  


18:58:34 13   the mistakes of the past and press on to greater
  


18:58:37 14   achievement in the future.  And that's what the
  


18:58:41 15   Board needs to do.  (Inaudible) tomorrow and
  


18:58:44 16   move on to serve this community in the best
  


18:58:48 17   fashion we can.  Thank you.
  


18:58:51 18                  MS. GONZALEZ:  I'd also like to
  


18:58:52 19   say thank you to the intervenors for everybody's
  


18:58:58 20   time and effort on this project.  The hardest
  


18:59:01 21   thing to do for our board members is to strike a
  


18:59:03 22   balance to preserve the integrity of our utility
  


18:59:06 23   and to keep our community moving forward.  And
  


18:59:08 24   it's a difficult decision and one that I know
  


18:59:12 25   all of us have deliberated long and hard on.
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18:59:15  1   And we're trying to do the best for the utility
  


18:59:18  2   and for our community.
  


18:59:20  3                  MR. ALVEY:  Also, I'd like to say
  


18:59:23  4   thanks to everyone who's involved in this,
  


18:59:25  5   including our attorneys, our consultants,
  


18:59:28  6   Mr. Carson, our consultants from Black & Veatch,
  


18:59:32  7   the intervenors, the industrial class customers
  


18:59:36  8   and all of the customers of the Board of Public
  


18:59:39  9   Utilities.  I would like to remind folks that
  


18:59:41 10   when we started this process, we committed
  


18:59:43 11   ourselves to conducting a fair and transparent
  


18:59:47 12   process.  And I am proud of the way that the
  


18:59:49 13   management and staff and members of the Board
  


18:59:52 14   have done that.
  


18:59:55 15            And, you know, it's -- I believe we're
  


18:59:58 16   at a critical juncture at the BPU.  I think the
  


19:00:01 17   evidence is clear.  And what we decide to do
  


19:00:04 18   from this point on will determine the fate of
  


19:00:06 19   the Board of Public Utilities.  We have to
  


19:00:08 20   restore our cash reserves.  We have to restore
  


19:00:12 21   our debt coverage ratio.  We have to restore our
  


19:00:14 22   capital operations.  We have to do the necessary
  


19:00:18 23   improvements, our maintenance.  We have to do
  


19:00:21 24   these things or there won't be a BPU to talk
  


19:00:23 25   about.  I'm convinced of that.
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19:00:26  1            At the same time, I'm painfully aware
  


19:00:28  2   of how this affects the bottom line of all of
  


19:00:31  3   our residents and all of our industrial
  


19:00:34  4   customers.  You know, there's going to be an
  


19:00:38  5   impact.  I understand the total BPU bill with
  


19:00:42  6   the pilot included does have an effect on the
  


19:00:45  7   competitiveness of every business in this city.
  


19:00:48  8   And I'm concerned with the impact that this is
  


19:00:51  9   going to have on our -- our residential
  


19:00:54 10   customers, especially those on fixed income or
  


19:00:57 11   those unemployed.
  


19:00:59 12            And I would suggest that this rate
  


19:01:01 13   increase cannot function as the only tool that
  


19:01:05 14   we use to restore the BPU to its full financial
  


19:01:09 15   and operational health.  If there's one message
  


19:01:13 16   that came across loud and clear in this rate
  


19:01:15 17   hearing process, it's this.  And that's that the
  


19:01:18 18   BPU must continue to find ways to provide pure
  


19:01:23 19   power and pure water and at the lowest possible
  


19:01:26 20   cost.
  


19:01:28 21            In other words, I think we have been
  


19:01:30 22   challenged to review every line item to
  


19:01:33 23   determine what we can do to reduce our costs and
  


19:01:36 24   therefore reduce the upper pressure on rates.
  


19:01:39 25   We have an obligation so I believe this board is
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19:01:44  1   willing to take a good look at our budget each
  


19:01:46  2   year to see what we can do to limit proposed
  


19:01:49  3   rate increases.
  


19:01:50  4            In short, I just think that increased
  


19:01:52  5   revenues that we will realize from these rate
  


19:01:54  6   increases cannot be looked upon as a pot of gold
  


19:01:57  7   that we get to spend freely.  On the contrary,
  


19:02:01  8   these increased revenues are an opportunity to
  


19:02:04  9   sustain the utility while we work to find ways
  


19:02:07 10   to reduce costs.  Otherwise, it's been
  


19:02:13 11   pointless.  And, again, I thank all of those who
  


19:02:16 12   worked so hard on this process.
  


19:02:21 13                  MR. PETTEY:  You put it very
  


19:02:23 14   well, Mr. Alvey.
  


19:02:24 15                  MR. EIDSON:  It is just -- I'm so
  


19:02:25 16   proud to be a part of this board and to have sat
  


19:02:29 17   here and know that we have done our diligence,
  


19:02:33 18   and I -- there's not much else I can say.
  


19:02:36 19   Everyone has pretty much summed up all of our
  


19:02:39 20   feelings.  And, again, thanks to everybody, to
  


19:02:41 21   the staff, to intervenors, to attorneys and
  


19:02:44 22   again to you, Your Honor.  That's all I have to
  


19:02:49 23   say.
  


19:02:50 24                  MR. PETTEY:  Kathy.
  


19:02:52 25                  MS. PETERS:  Black & Veatch and I
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19:02:57  1   will follow your directives.  I recommend to you
  


19:03:00  2   that you not close the hearing tonight.  I'd
  


19:03:03  3   like to have you have the final approval of the
  


19:03:04  4   rate manual and of the order and perhaps take
  


19:03:07  5   that up at your next meeting October 20th.
  


19:03:10  6                  MR. PETTEY:  Uh-huh.
  


19:03:11  7                  MS. PETERS:  And also that will
  


19:03:12  8   give Black & Veatch the chance to fill out those
  


19:03:15  9   rate schedules based on the decisions that
  


19:03:17 10   you've made and share those with Mr. Gorman so
  


19:03:22 11   they can make sure that they're in agreement
  


19:03:24 12   about all of the numbers based on the approach
  


19:03:26 13   that you have directed us to follow.
  


19:03:29 14                  MR. MILAN:  Will that be the
  


19:03:31 15   final business?
  


19:03:31 16                  MS. PETERS:  And that will be the
  


19:03:33 17   final business except for holding open the
  


19:03:35 18   decision on the on peak demand period, which, as
  


19:03:40 19   I said, is subject to study for next year or so.
  


19:03:50 20                  MS. COLOMBEL:  So basically,
  


19:03:52 21   you're asking us to wait for the written
  


19:03:54 22   documentation?
  


19:03:55 23                  MS. PETERS:  I am.  I'm
  


19:03:56 24   suggesting that given that you are to make a
  


19:03:58 25   final decision within five days of completing a
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19:04:02  1   hearing and given that you're going to approve
  


19:04:05  2   the final rate manual in the order, it's my
  


19:04:07  3   suggestion to you that you continue this until
  


19:04:10  4   your next meeting so that you can approve the
  


19:04:12  5   order and approve the rate manual and then
  


19:04:14  6   complete the hearing.
  


19:04:16  7                  MR. MILAN:  I want to get some
  


19:04:17  8   sleep.  I just want to know when I can get it,
  


19:04:20  9   okay?
  


19:04:21 10                  MS. PETERS:  You can get it
  


19:04:23 11   tonight.  You've made your decision.  This is
  


19:04:24 12   housekeeping.  Your final decision is
  


19:04:26 13   housekeeping, but just so that it's clear that
  


19:04:28 14   you will make -- you'll approve the order on the
  


19:04:30 15   20th.  That's our suggestion.
  


19:04:32 16                  MR. MILAN:  All right.  Thank
  


19:04:33 17   you.
  


19:04:40 18                  MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like a
  


19:04:42 19   motion, Ms. Peters?
  


19:04:43 20                  MS. PETERS:  No.  I think
  


19:04:44 21   Mr. Carson can simply --
  


19:04:45 22                  HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  We'll
  


19:04:46 23   just based -- upon the Board's apparent assent,
  


19:04:49 24   we will continue this rate hearing to
  


19:04:52 25   October 20th at 6:00 p.m.
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19:04:56  1                  MR. PETTEY:  Very good.
  


19:05:00  2                  HEARING OFFICER:  That's the
  


19:05:00  3   conclusion of this hearing for today.
  


 4         (Proceedings concluded at 7:05 p.m.)
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 17:49:55  1           (Proceedings commenced at 6:12 p.m.)



 18:12:16  2                     HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and



 18:12:17  3      gentlemen, I'm Phillip Carson, the hearing



 18:12:21  4      officer for purposes of the 2010 rate hearing.



 18:12:29  5      And we were last here last Thursday on



 18:12:32  6      September 30th.  Would any attorneys



 18:12:36  7      representing intervenors please announce their



 18:12:40  8      appearances and that of the intervenors.



 18:12:45  9                     MR. ZAKOURA:  Good evening.



 18:12:46 10      James P. Zakoura on behalf of the large volume



 18:12:49 11      collector and water users.



          12                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, sir.



 18:12:51 13                     MR. FLAHERTY:  James G. Flaherty,



 18:12:53 14      Ottawa, Kansas, appearing on behalf of the



          15      intervenor Suburban Water Company.



          16                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



 18:13:00 17                     MR. YARNELL:  Rick Yarnell.



 18:13:00 18                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



 18:13:01 19      Mr. Yarnell.  Ms. Peters.



 18:13:03 20                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you, Your



 18:13:04 21      Honor.  And my name is Kathy Peters representing



 18:13:07 22      the BPU in this matter.  And I'd like to also



 18:13:11 23      let the record reflect that two of the



 18:13:12 24      consulting engineers -- three of the consulting



 18:13:16 25      engineers from Black & Veatch are present in
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 18:13:18  1      the -- in the audience, Arnold White, Bob Brady



 18:13:22  2      and Craig Brown and that Ed Overcast is present



 18:13:27  3      on the telephone and that Mike Gorman is also



 18:13:29  4      present in the audience representing the large



 18:13:31  5      power group.  And I think that's everyone in the



 18:13:33  6      room who's representing an intervenor, correct?



 18:13:38  7               Thank you very much.  Ladies and



 18:13:39  8      gentlemen, I'd like to go over a few things with



 18:13:42  9      you, and then we will turn this matter over to



 18:13:45 10      you.  The hearing to date summary I've given you



 18:13:50 11      a few times, I'd like to give it to you again in



 18:13:54 12      brief one time so it will catch us up with where



 18:13:57 13      we are at this point.



 18:13:58 14               As you know, under the Unified



 18:14:00 15      Government charter ordinance and the procedures



 18:14:02 16      governing the rate process, the BPU has to



 18:14:05 17      publish notice of a public hearing for a utility



 18:14:07 18      rate increase at least 90 days before the



 18:14:09 19      hearing commences.  Notice was published in



 18:14:11 20      February.  The public hearing commenced on May



 18:14:13 21      3rd.  There were public hearing sessions on May



 18:14:16 22      3rd and 4th.  And at that time, the BPU staff



 18:14:19 23      and consultants presented staff's



 18:14:21 24      recommendations for adjustments to the rates.



 18:14:24 25      There were then opportunities for public
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 18:14:26  1      comments at each of those public hearing



 18:14:28  2      sessions.  And the hearing officer then closed



 18:14:29  3      the public portion of the hearing and opened the



 18:14:32  4      technical portion of the hearing, which is still



 18:14:34  5      presently underway.



 18:14:35  6               During the technical portion, there's



 18:14:37  7      technical evidence from the BPU staff and



 18:14:39  8      consultants and from the intervenors if any



 18:14:43  9      parties filed a petition to intervene before the



 18:14:46 10      deadline has passed.  You had three timely



 18:14:50 11      petitions to intervene.  One from an individual,



 18:14:52 12      one from a wholesale water customer, and one



 18:14:54 13      from a group of large power customers.  And as



 18:14:58 14      you know, all of those intervenors are



 18:14:59 15      represented before you this evening.



 18:15:01 16               On May 4th, the BPU staff presented its



 18:15:04 17      prefiled technical testimony.  Individual



 18:15:06 18      intervenor filed its testimony.  The group of



 18:15:08 19      large power customers asked for additional time



 18:15:10 20      to file their testimony, and this was granted



 18:15:13 21      for this -- for this customer and the wholesale



 18:15:16 22      water customer.



 18:15:17 23               You had -- you resumed the technical



 18:15:21 24      portion on June 16th and you had a presentation



 18:15:26 25      by the BPU staff and by Jim Zakoura on behalf of
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 18:15:30  1      the large power customer group and by the



 18:15:33  2      individual intervenors.  And this followed a



 18:15:36  3      period where these people had talked to each



 18:15:37  4      other about recommendations that could be agreed



 18:15:40  5      upon to give you for 2010 rate increases.  And



 18:15:45  6      the results of the discussions to date were then



 18:15:48  7      presented to the board.



 18:15:49  8               And on June 16th, you approved the



 18:15:51  9      implementation of rate increases in 2010 that



 18:15:55 10      were effective July 1, 2010, as recommended by



 18:15:58 11      this group with a 7 percent increase in revenues



 18:16:00 12      from electric base rates and an 8 percent



 18:16:03 13      increase in revenues from water base rates.  As



 18:16:06 14      we told you at that time, adjustments had been



 18:16:09 15      made in the energy rate component to back out



 18:16:12 16      the known contractual fixed power costs, to take



 18:16:16 17      those out of the base rate increase so that you



 18:16:18 18      had just the 7 percent in revenues from electric



 18:16:21 19      base rates and that those additional ERC costs



 18:16:25 20      would not be recovered through the ERC.



 18:16:28 21               At that time, you directed that the



 18:16:30 22      electric rate increase be implemented on an



 18:16:33 23      across the board basis and that the water rate



 18:16:36 24      increase be implemented as set out in the water



 18:16:39 25      cost of service study which had been the
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 18:16:41  1      recommendation.  You also approved provisional



 18:16:43  2      increases for 2011, '12 and '13 in the



 18:16:47  3      percentages indicated in the cost of service



 18:16:50  4      studies.  And those were 7 percent for electric



 18:16:53  5      each year and for water 8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2



 18:16:58  6      percent for 2012 and 7 1/2 percent for 2013.



 18:17:02  7               You set deadlines for the filing of



 18:17:05  8      technical testimony.  You directed that the



 18:17:07  9      intervenors should file their technical



 18:17:10 10      testimony by August 16th and that the BPU staff



 18:17:14 11      file rebuttal testimony by September 7th.  And



 18:17:16 12      you indicated that you expected to make a final



 18:17:19 13      decision in late September or early October.



 18:17:21 14      And you said you wanted all of the evidence in



 18:17:23 15      by the end of September.  That was done.



 18:17:27 16               Prior to those filings, you heard from



 18:17:29 17      a group of the large power customers.  They



 18:17:32 18      asked for the opportunity to address you.  And



 18:17:35 19      the hearing was reopened on August 4th, at which



 18:17:38 20      time you heard from those large pow customers.



 18:17:43 21      And you also I believe had a few people make



 18:17:46 22      comments during the public portion of that



 18:17:49 23      meeting.  But the comments from the large power



 18:17:51 24      customers were part of the rate hearing.



 18:17:53 25               Rate hearing was then continued.  And,
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 18:17:56  1      as I said, the intervenors filed their testimony



 18:17:59  2      by September 7th to the extent that they had



 18:18:03  3      technical testimony -- sorry, by August 16th.



 18:18:07  4      They filed their testimony by August 16th.  BPU



 18:18:10  5      staff filed its testimony on August 7th except



 18:18:13  6      for a small amount of testimony -- additional



 18:18:15  7      studies that they requested a few additional



 18:18:18  8      days to file, and that was filed on



 18:18:20  9      September 10th.



 18:18:21 10               You subsequently received written



 18:18:23 11      comments from Suburban Water Company, the



 18:18:27 12      wholesale intervenor.  And on September 30th,



 18:18:31 13      last Thursday, you held again another public



 18:18:34 14      hearing where you received a presentation for



 18:18:39 15      each of the large power group, from the Suburban



 18:18:44 16      Water Company, the wholesale customer, and from



 18:18:46 17      the BPU staff and its consulting engineers.  And



 18:18:48 18      you had the opportunity at that time to ask



 18:18:51 19      questions of everyone.



 18:18:54 20               And you have also received hard copies



 18:18:56 21      of all of the rate proceedings.  You've received



 18:18:58 22      hard copies of all of the trial -- sorry, of all



 18:19:01 23      of the hearing transcripts.  You've got copies



 18:19:03 24      of all of the exhibits that have been filed.



 18:19:06 25      You've had the opportunity to review the things
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 18:19:08  1      that were said when you weren't here such as



 18:19:10  2      public comments received on the 3rd and 4th and



 18:19:14  3      other matters.



 18:19:15  4               I thought it would be a good idea



 18:19:17  5      before we go through what your decisions are



 18:19:19  6      though to say something that we haven't yet said



 18:19:22  7      in these proceedings, and that is to refresh



 18:19:25  8      everyone's memory about what the charter



 18:19:27  9      ordinance says you are to do in the way of



 18:19:29 10      setting rates.  And I have given you and have



 18:19:31 11      given to each of the intervenors a copy of page



 18:19:37 12      1 and page 11 of the charter ordinance which was



 18:19:39 13      adopted by the Unified Government relating to



 18:19:41 14      BPU.  And this basically lifts from the statutes



 18:19:47 15      which have governed BPU the rate setting



 18:19:49 16      proceedings and requirements and put them in the



 18:19:53 17      form of a single utility rather than a separate



 18:19:56 18      electric division and a water division.



 18:19:58 19               So if you look at page 11, section 20,



 18:20:01 20      item A tells you what your responsibilities are.



 18:20:03 21      And I'll just read that into the record.



 18:20:08 22               The board shall fix reasonable rates



 18:20:11 23      for utility services and products furnished to



 18:20:13 24      its consumers which, 1, will secure an income



 18:20:17 25      sufficient to pay all salaries and wages of all
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 18:20:19  1      officers and employees of any utility.  2, will



 18:20:22  2      cover the cost of all materials and supplies



 18:20:24  3      used in the operation of any utility.  3, will



 18:20:27  4      cover the cost of all repairs of any utility.



 18:20:31  5               4, will cover all miscellaneous



 18:20:33  6      expenses of any utility.  5, will pay



 18:20:36  7      contractual and other financial obligations of



 18:20:38  8      the board or the Unified Government incurred for



 18:20:40  9      the purpose of purchasing, improving or



 18:20:43 10      extending any utility, including multi-year



 18:20:47 11      obligations directly or indirectly related to



 18:20:49 12      the payment of the principal of and interest



 18:20:51 13      upon revenue bonds, and will provide a sinking



 18:20:54 14      fund sufficient to pay the principal of and the



 18:20:57 15      interest on such indebtedness at maturity.  And,



 18:21:00 16      6, will cover the cost of all repairs and



 18:21:02 17      renewals of any utility and all material used,



 18:21:05 18      together with a reasonable allowance for



 18:21:08 19      emergency and unforeseen expenses.



 18:21:10 20               Some of the evidence that was presented



 18:21:13 21      to you on September 30th related solely to KCC



 18:21:17 22      regulated utilities.  You are not regulated by



 18:21:21 23      the KCC, and those statutes do not govern you.



 18:21:23 24      It is section 20 that governs your rate setting



 18:21:27 25      requirements.
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 18:21:30  1               Now, you heard from a lot of people



 18:21:32  2      about issues that were before you.  And I'd like



 18:21:35  3      to just summarize what I believe to be the



 18:21:38  4      decisions that are before you.  I have given you



 18:21:44  5      a handout which itemizes what I believe to be



 18:21:47  6      these issues.  And, of course, these are all



 18:21:49  7      policy matters for your consideration.



 18:21:51  8               And I'll go through these and then we



 18:21:54  9      will leave it to you to discuss and make



 18:21:56 10      whatever decisions you wish to this evening, or



 18:21:59 11      if you wish to delay any decisions to do that as



 18:22:02 12      well.  And you can certainly feel free to ask



 18:22:04 13      questions of me, of any of the other



 18:22:07 14      intervenors' counsel and of any of the



 18:22:08 15      intervenors' engineering consultants who are



 18:22:11 16      present today by phone or in person.



 18:22:12 17               It appears to us that the matters



 18:22:15 18      requiring decisions are, first, whether you want



 18:22:17 19      to approve a multi-year plan, approving rate



 18:22:20 20      increases for 2012 and '13 as well as 2011 or to



 18:22:24 21      approve a rate increase for 2011 and to defer



 18:22:26 22      decision on 2012 and '13 increases.



 18:22:30 23               Second, whether to approve the cost of



 18:22:32 24      service and cost allocation methodologies



 18:22:35 25      recommended by Black & Veatch in its electric
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 18:22:37  1      and water cost service studies and of course --



 18:22:41  2      or to consider some of the other methodologies



 18:22:42  3      that were presented to you during testimony.



 18:22:45  4               3, a determination of the percentage of



 18:22:47  5      electric base rate increases as of the following



 18:22:50  6      dates, and '12 and '13 would be if the board



 18:22:54  7      approves going forward with a multi year plan.



 18:22:57  8      And, of course, you've been presented a number



 18:22:59  9      of options for your consideration during the



 18:23:01 10      testimony that was presented to you.



 18:23:05 11               4, approval of the electric base rate



 18:23:08 12      increases for the customer classes, based on the



 18:23:10 13      overall increase percentages approved by the



 18:23:13 14      board.  Now, the BPU staff does have tables for



 18:23:16 15      you for the different options the BPU staff



 18:23:20 16      presented based on the Black & Veatch



 18:23:23 17      methodology.  If you wish to choose a different



 18:23:25 18      option or a different methodology, we'd have to



 18:23:27 19      come back to you with comparable -- comparable



 18:23:30 20      tables.



 18:23:30 21               But the overall recommendation is that



 18:23:33 22      since you did a 7 percent across the board



 18:23:36 23      increase for 2010, as Black & Veatch said,



 18:23:40 24      they've recommended modifying and leveling out



 18:23:44 25      the amount of the increase over the system
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 18:23:47  1      average.  Rather than front loading it in 2010,



 18:23:50  2      you did a system average in 2010.  And Black &



 18:23:54  3      Veatch's current recommendation to you is that



 18:23:55  4      no customer be increased over 120 percent over



 18:24:00  5      the system average.



 18:24:01  6               And that -- that smooths out that



 18:24:03  7      increase over the four year period rather than



 18:24:05  8      front loading it.  And that was -- that was



 18:24:08  9      presented to you during testimony and on the



 18:24:10 10      30th.  But the schedules that the staff has for



 18:24:13 11      the different options have that approach of



 18:24:16 12      recognizing that you had an across the board



 18:24:18 13      increase and that you are not front loading the



 18:24:21 14      increases for the customer classes but smoothing



 18:24:22 15      them out over the four year period for electric.



 18:24:26 16               The fifth decision would be a



 18:24:27 17      determination of the percentage of water base



 18:24:30 18      rate increases as of the following dates.  And,



 18:24:32 19      again, 2012 and '13 would be if the Board



 18:24:35 20      approves going forward with a multi year plan.



 18:24:38 21               The sixth issue would be the approval



 18:24:40 22      of water rates for customer classes, based on



 18:24:43 23      the overall increases percentages approved by



 18:24:46 24      the Board.  And, again, in the testimony, there



 18:24:51 25      were -- there were customer class and size of

�

                                                                 13







 18:24:54  1      meter tables for the different options presented



 18:24:57  2      by the BPU.  And those will be available for



 18:25:00  3      your review depending on the decision that you



 18:25:03  4      make on the revenue increase amount.  If you



 18:25:06  5      wish some other approach, we would have to come



 18:25:08  6      back to you with other tables.  And the staff



 18:25:11  7      would be prepared to give you those tables once



 18:25:13  8      you make a decision on your revenue increase.



 18:25:15  9      No point in giving you a table until you decide



 18:25:17 10      what you want to do with the percentage of the



 18:25:19 11      overall revenue increase.



 18:25:21 12               Seventh would be approval of an energy



 18:25:24 13      rate component rider, either as recommended by



 18:25:27 14      BPU staff or modified to reflect the intervenor



 18:25:30 15      comments.  And the BPU staff has provided the



 18:25:33 16      form of the ERC rider that's recommended by



 18:25:36 17      staff.  That's been also provided to the



 18:25:39 18      intervenors in the audience.



 18:25:41 19               Eight is approval of the environmental



 18:25:43 20      surcharge rider, either as recommended by BPU



 18:25:46 21      staff or modified to reflect intervenor



 18:25:48 22      comments.  And, again, you've been provided the



 18:25:50 23      form of the ESC rider recommended by staff as a



 18:25:54 24      handout.  I will point out that the production



 18:25:56 25      capacity allocation formula percentages
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 18:25:59  1      contained in the ESC rider are based on the



 18:26:03  2      Black & Veatch cost of service study and cost



 18:26:05  3      allocation methodology.  If you wish to change



 18:26:08  4      from the Black & Veatch cost of service



 18:26:10  5      allocation methodology, we would change those



 18:26:13  6      production capacity allocation formulas.



 18:26:16  7               Ninth is something that is a joint



 18:26:19  8      recommendation from all.  A is that you approve



 18:26:24  9      that joint recommendation that no change be made



 18:26:27 10      at this time to the on-peak period for the



 18:26:29 11      billing demand measurement time and that such



 18:26:31 12      on-peak period continue its current time frame,



 18:26:35 13      10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., until additional study



 18:26:36 14      of this issue can be undertaken.



 18:26:39 15               Now, we can't tell you that any



 18:26:40 16      recommendation for change would come back to you



 18:26:42 17      after that additional study, but it's going to



 18:26:44 18      be a year or so.  We don't want to reopen a rate



 18:26:47 19      hearing just to make a change in that.  So we're



 18:26:49 20      secondly recommending that you hold open in this



 18:26:51 21      rate proceeding the issue of that on peak period



 18:26:53 22      for the billing determinant measurement time.



 18:26:56 23      And that would be subject to further action by



 18:26:58 24      you after that further study's received.  So



 18:27:01 25      that's the one issue that there's a joint
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 18:27:03  1      recommendation that you hold open.



 18:27:06  2               Tenth is a decision on the rachet to be



 18:27:07  3      used for winter demand building.  And the BPU



 18:27:10  4      staff recommends that a 70 percent rachet



 18:27:12  5      continue to be used for winter demand billing.



 18:27:15  6               And, finally, a discussion of the



 18:27:18  7      future review of financial performance and



 18:27:20  8      progress of the BPU toward meeting the financial



 18:27:22  9      goals and a determination of whether you now



 18:27:27 10      wish to give a direction to staff, as a part of



 18:27:29 11      that ongoing review and evaluation of collection



 18:27:32 12      revenues under whatever rates you approve, and



 18:27:34 13      of the operating and capital expenditures that



 18:27:37 14      the staff would provide you an analysis of



 18:27:39 15      whether the financial metrics in the rate plan



 18:27:41 16      have been met or exceeded to give you a basis to



 18:27:45 17      consider whether you might have a downward



 18:27:48 18      adjustment to rates in a future year.



 18:27:49 19               I might point out, that might also tell



 18:27:51 20      you that you needed to consider a further rate



 18:27:54 21      increase, which would have required a rate



 18:27:55 22      hearing.  But at any rate, the question before



 18:27:57 23      you is do you want staff to come back to you



 18:28:00 24      with this analysis on an ongoing basis as



 18:28:04 25      performance comes in.
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 18:28:06  1               And, finally, two housekeeping matters.



 18:28:11  2      And that is on the last page, 12, you should



 18:28:13  3      give a direction to Black & Veatch after you've



 18:28:15  4      made your decisions that they prepare a final



 18:28:17  5      rate manual based on the rate increase decisions



 18:28:20  6      that are made by the Board and the decisions on



 18:28:22  7      the Black & Veatch proposed rate design.  And,



 18:28:25  8      finally, that you give a direction to me once



 18:28:29  9      you've made your decisions to prepare a written



 18:28:30 10      order for the Board that you can then sign that



 18:28:33 11      would set out your decisions, the basis for the



 18:28:35 12      decisions as you've indicated during your



 18:28:38 13      proceedings tonight and the directions that are



 18:28:41 14      made by the board.  So that's -- that's a



 18:28:43 15      summary of where we are.  And with that, we'll



 18:28:45 16      turn it over to you.



 18:28:56 17                     MR. MILAN:  Based on the review



 18:29:01 18      from counsel on matters to be required in



 18:29:07 19      decision, I make a motion to approve the Black &



 18:29:14 20      Veatch cost of service study and cost allocation



 18:29:17 21      as presented from Black & Veatch.  That's the



 18:29:22 22      first option I have before me.



 18:29:25 23                     MS. COLUMBO:  I'll second that



 18:29:27 24      motion.



 18:29:29 25                     MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?
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 18:29:30  1                     MR. ALVEY:  I just want to



 18:29:31  2      clarify.  So we're working with matter 1.



 18:29:35  3                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Actually, matter



 18:29:36  4      2, the motion to approve the cost of service and



 18:29:38  5      the cost allocation methodologies recommended by



 18:29:41  6      Black & Veatch in its electric and water cost of



 18:29:43  7      service studies.  I imagine we have to have a



 18:29:46  8      second motion on the multi year --



 18:29:47  9                     MS. PETERS:  Yes.



 18:29:48 10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  -- so I think --



 18:29:49 11      is that correct, Bob, that your motion is for



 18:29:51 12      the Black & Veatch study?



 18:29:52 13                     MR. MILAN:  Right.



 18:29:54 14                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And that's what I



 18:29:55 15      second.



 18:29:55 16                     MR. ALVEY:  Okay.



 18:30:01 17                     MR. MILAN:  Before we take a roll



 18:30:04 18      call vote on that, let me have a little few



 18:30:09 19      moments.



 18:30:10 20                     MR. EIDSON:  I can barely hear



 18:30:11 21      you, sir.



 18:30:12 22                     MR. MILAN:  I said let me have a



 18:30:14 23      few moments please.  This is a difficult



 18:30:17 24      decision when we're talking about the



 18:30:23 25      responsibility of a financial obligation that

�

                                                                 18







 18:30:25  1      this Board has under consideration of customers



 18:30:31  2      big and small.  The decision was not an easy one



 18:30:37  3      because what the Board was presented with were



 18:30:41  4      many pieces of documentation.



 18:30:45  5               I have before me the report from the



 18:30:51  6      intervenors I've studied quite well.  I have



 18:30:54  7      recommendation from the staff presented quite



 18:30:59  8      well.  I have charts and diagrams to compare



 18:31:04  9      each of the ratings with other community areas



 18:31:07 10      around Kansas City and surrounding territories.



 18:31:11 11      I have before me the testimony taken by the



 18:31:16 12      court reporter here, very costly, very time



 18:31:20 13      consuming.



 18:31:22 14               And, finally, I have the final



 18:31:26 15      conclusion recommended from Black & Veatch based



 18:31:31 16      on my motion to consider the (inaubidle) that



 18:31:36 17      we've had with the staff, going over all the



 18:31:39 18      options that we have, we have a reasonable



 18:31:43 19      increase, so to speak, that best serves the



 18:31:47 20      community, our customers, Kansas City, Kansas



 18:31:50 21      and Wyandotte County.



 18:31:53 22               This document was the final document I



 18:31:56 23      received from the consulting engineers, Black &



 18:32:00 24      Veatch, which clearly states the risks, the



 18:32:05 25      rationale, the purpose of the rate increase that
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 18:32:09  1      we're proposing tonight.  I would like to say to



 18:32:13  2      my board members -- this is my independent



 18:32:16  3      statement, my independent judgment, I'm just



 18:32:20  4      sharing with you some of what 19 years have



 18:32:23  5      taught me.



 18:32:24  6               I think the Board has been very, very



 18:32:27  7      reasonable in the last 19 years in terms of rate



 18:32:32  8      increase.  I think were too small.  I've



 18:32:35  9      expressed that many times.  And we needed to



 18:32:39 10      probably have small rate increases from 2006 and



 18:32:46 11      before in order to not reach this same point.



 18:32:49 12      But under the circumstances, under the



 18:32:51 13      circumstances, based on cost allocation, cost of



 18:32:55 14      service study and all the other components that



 18:32:57 15      go with that rate increase design, this is why I



 18:33:02 16      make my comments.  Thank you very much.



 18:33:05 17                     MR. PETTEY:  Do you at this time



 18:33:06 18      just want to vote on the electric or do you want



 18:33:09 19      to add the cost of service for water also?



 18:33:12 20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Well, I think in



 18:33:13 21      this recommendation, it says that it's electric



 18:33:16 22      and water.



 18:33:17 23                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  I just wanted



 18:33:18 24      to make -- I mean, that's what it was, but the



 18:33:21 25      way we talked -- make that understood.  Any
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 18:33:25  1      other discussion?



 18:33:30  2               I guess we give a roll call, please, to



 18:33:33  3      see what happens there.



 18:33:34  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Yes.  Roll call.



 18:33:35  5      Loretta Colombel.



 18:33:37  6                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:33:37  7                     MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.



 18:33:39  8                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



 18:33:39  9                     MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.



 18:33:40 10                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



 18:33:41 11                     MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.



 18:33:43 12                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:33:43 13                     MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,



 18:33:45 14      Senior.



 18:33:45 15                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:33:46 16                     MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.



 18:33:47 17                     MR. PETTEY:  I'll make it



 18:33:48 18      unanimous.  Aye.



 18:33:53 19                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:34:01 20                     MR. PETTEY:  Thank you.  Rob.



 18:34:02 21                     MR. MILAN:  And we have another



 18:34:04 22      item here that probably should be up front, make



 18:34:07 23      sure that (inaudible) information.  The issue is



 18:34:14 24      making sure that our plan it can be deferred



 18:34:18 25      from '12, '13 based on what the recommendations
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 18:34:23  1      made of counsel here.  Do you get that?



 18:34:26  2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Are you making a



 18:34:27  3      motion to approve the multi year plan?



 18:34:29  4                     MR. MILAN:  Right, right.



 18:34:32  5                     MS. COLOMBEL:  For the rate



 18:34:32  6      increases for 2012 and 2013?



 18:34:35  7                     MR. MILAN:  Right.



 18:34:36  8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  As well as this



 18:34:37  9      one -- the present year that we're in?



 18:34:39 10                     MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.



 18:34:40 11      Absolutely.



 18:34:40 12                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second your



 18:34:42 13      motion.



 18:34:42 14                     MR. MILAN:  Make sure it's clear.



 18:34:44 15                     MR. ALVEY:  I think we say we



 18:34:47 16      wish to approve a multi year plan to approve



 18:34:49 17      rate increases for 2011, 2012, 2013.



 18:34:54 18                     MR. MILAN:  Precisely.



 18:34:56 19                     MS. GONZALEZ:  And we're talking



 18:34:58 20      water and electric.  Is that your intent,



 18:35:00 21      Mr. Milan?



 18:35:01 22                     MR. MILAN:  That's correct.



 18:35:04 23                     MR. EIDSON:  And that is based on



 18:35:06 24      the Black & Veatch study that was presented to



 18:35:07 25      us.
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 18:35:08  1                     MR. MILAN:  Yes.  Absolutely.



 18:35:09  2                     MR. ALVEY:  Second.



 18:35:12  3                     MR. PETTEY:  Loretta already



 18:35:14  4      seconded.



 18:35:16  5                     MR. ALVEY:  Sorry.



 18:35:17  6                     MS. COLOMBEL:  That's okay.



 18:35:18  7                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other



 18:35:19  8      discussion?  Roll call, please.



 18:35:21  9                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.  Loretta



 18:35:23 10      Columbel.



 18:35:23 11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:35:24 12                     MS. BOEDING:  Mary Gonzales.



 18:35:25 13                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



 18:35:25 14                     MS. BOEDING:  Terry Eidson.



 18:35:27 15                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



 18:35:27 16                     MS. BOEDING:  David Alvey.



 18:35:28 17                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:35:28 18                     MS. BOEDING:  Robert Milan,



          19      Senior.



 18:35:30 20                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:35:30 21                     MS. BOEDING:  John Pettey.



 18:35:31 22                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:35:31 23                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:35:36 24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we --



 18:35:38 25      Mr. Pettey, do we also need an approval on the
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 18:35:40  1      customer classes or do we go now to the energy



 18:35:43  2      rate component and the energy surcharge?



 18:35:47  3                     MR. MILAN:  That's important.



 18:35:49  4                     MS. PETERS:  Mrs. Columbel, I



 18:35:50  5      think you should take up a decision on each of



 18:35:53  6      these items in order.



 18:35:55  7                     MR. PETTEY:  So we were looking



 18:35:56  8      at No. 7.  Now --



 18:35:57  9                     MS. PETERS:  Actually, I think



 18:35:58 10      we're looking at No. 3.



 18:36:01 11                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.



 18:36:04 12                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And the motion



 18:36:05 13      would be that the percentage of the electric



 18:36:08 14      base rate increase as the following dates in



 18:36:13 15      accordance with the Black & Veatch study?



 18:36:17 16                     MR. MILAN:  You make a motion?



 18:36:19 17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  No.  I'm asking



 18:36:20 18      Kathy if that's the proper --



 18:36:24 19                     MS. PETERS:  Excuse me just a



 18:36:26 20      second.  I would suggest to you that you just



 18:36:31 21      include in your motion the percentages that you



 18:36:33 22      wish to increase.  Now, the Black & Veatch study



 18:36:37 23      called for on the electric side 7 percent



 18:36:41 24      January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012,



 18:36:45 25      7 percent January 1, 2013.  And I would ask you,
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 18:36:48  1      is that the import of your motion?



 18:36:50  2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.



 18:36:52  3                     MR. MILAN:  Right.



 18:36:55  4                     MR. EIDSON:  On what class of



 18:36:56  5      service?



 18:36:56  6                     MR. ALVEY:  We're not talking



 18:36:58  7      about --



 18:36:58  8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  We're just on No.



 18:37:00  9      3.



 18:37:00 10                     MR. EIDSON:  I understand that.



 18:37:00 11                     MR. ALVEY:  It's the electric



 18:37:02 12      base rate.



 18:37:02 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Right.  So that my



 18:37:04 14      motion was that it would be the 7 percent in



 18:37:07 15      January 1, 2011, 7 percent January 1, 2012, and



 18:37:11 16      7 percent as of January 1, 2013, and that would



 18:37:15 17      be the electric only.



 18:37:18 18                     MR. ALVEY:  Base rate, not



 18:37:19 19      according to class.



 18:37:20 20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  And that is



 18:37:24 21      in the form of a motion, please.



 18:37:25 22                     MR. MILAN:  Second the motion.



 18:37:29 23                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other



 18:37:30 24      discussion?  Roll call, please.



 18:37:33 25                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.
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 18:37:34  1      Columbel.



 18:37:36  2                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:37:37  3                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:37:37  4                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



           5                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:37:38  6                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



 18:37:39  7                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



 18:37:40  8                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:37:41  9                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:37:42 10                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:37:42 11                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:37:43 12                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:37:44 13                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:37:50 14                     MR. ALVEY:  I think on No. 4 --



 18:37:52 15                     MS. PETERS:  No. 4, we have --



 18:37:54 16                     MR. ALVEY:  An adjustment to the



 18:37:55 17      original.



 18:37:56 18                     MS. PETERS:  As I indicated, we



 18:37:57 19      had handouts based on what option you chose or



 18:38:01 20      if you chose some other one.  And Lori has the



 18:38:05 21      Black & Veatch recommendations for the rate



 18:38:08 22      increases for the customer classes based on the



 18:38:12 23      7 percent overall base rate increase.



 18:38:40 24                     MR. ALVEY:  This is -- and so,



 18:38:48 25      Kathy, if I may ask, to be clear, this is with
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 18:38:56  1      there not being an adjustment greater than



 18:38:58  2      120 percent of the average system?



 18:39:01  3                     MS. PETERS:  I would ask Craig to



 18:39:03  4      answer that question.  Craig Brown.



 18:39:15  5                     MR. BROWN:  That is correct.  I



 18:39:17  6      believe it's actually -- I think it was



 18:39:22  7      8.5 percent actually in 2011, but it's like



 18:39:26  8      121 percent, approximately 120 percent of the



 18:39:29  9      system average.



 18:39:33 10                     MR. EIDSON:  Craig, I have a



          11      question.



 18:39:36 12                     MR. BROWN:  Sure.



 18:39:36 13                     MR. EIDSON:  Why would we not



 18:39:38 14      have a rate increase for USD 500 schools?  We're



 18:39:41 15      at 0 percent in '11, 0 percent in '12.  I



 18:39:46 16      mean --



 18:39:46 17                     MR. BROWN:  The initial reasoning



 18:39:48 18      was for -- in our original recommendations, it



 18:39:51 19      was recommended they should have 0 percent in



 18:39:53 20      the first year and I believe the second year and



 18:39:57 21      then increase to 3 percent in '12 and 5 percent



 18:40:01 22      I believe in '13, approximately.  When they got



 18:40:05 23      a 7 percent across the board in July 2010, it



 18:40:10 24      was determined, in collaboration with the staff



 18:40:12 25      as well, that they should have 0 percent because
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 18:40:14  1      they weren't going to get up to 7 percent until



 18:40:17  2      about the third year.



 18:40:20  3                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  I remember



 18:40:22  4      that discussion.



 18:40:25  5                     MR. EIDSON:  I'm not so sure I'm



 18:40:27  6      in agreement with that, but at this point, I



 18:40:40  7      don't know what we would do about it.



 18:40:42  8                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I think --



 18:40:43  9                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, they had a 7,



 18:40:45 10      but it was going to be 0.



 18:40:47 11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  It was going to be



 18:40:48 12      a 5 and 3.



 18:40:50 13                     MR. EIDSON:  Everybody got a 7.



 18:40:51 14                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, but I mean,



 18:40:52 15      they were really going to --



 18:40:53 16                     MR. BROWN:  I can clarify that.



 18:40:56 17      They were 0, 3 in 2011 and 5 in 2012 and 7 in



 18:41:00 18      2013 was the original plan.



 18:41:01 19                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah.



 18:41:02 20                     MR. EIDSON:  That's what I'm



 18:41:03 21      looking at.



 18:41:04 22                     MR. BROWN:  And approximately 7



 18:41:05 23      in 2010 by the time you get a 0 and 3 and a 5,



 18:41:09 24      be about the same spot by the end.



 18:41:17 25                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.
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 18:41:18  1                     MR. ALVEY:  I make a motion to



 18:41:20  2      approve the electric base rate increases for the



 18:41:22  3      customer classes based on the table presented by



 18:41:28  4      staff.



 18:41:30  5                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll second the



 18:41:31  6      motion.



 18:41:34  7                     MR. PETTEY:  Roll call pending



 18:41:37  8      any other discussion.  Roll call, please.



 18:41:40  9                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



 18:41:42 10      Columbel.



 18:41:43 11                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:41:45 12                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



          13                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



 18:41:45 14                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:41:46 15                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



 18:41:47 16                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



 18:41:47 17                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:41:49 18                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:41:50 19                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:41:50 20                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:41:51 21                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:41:52 22                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:41:55 23                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  No. 5.



 18:42:00 24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Do we have a



 18:42:01 25      determination for the water percentage?  Just
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 18:42:04  1      another clarification.



 18:42:05  2                     MS. PETERS:  The cost of service



 18:42:06  3      study indicated that water would be 8 percent in



 18:42:10  4      2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in



 18:42:14  5      2013.



 18:42:19  6                     MR. EIDSON:  Say that one more



 18:42:20  7      time, Kathy, I'm sorry.



 18:42:21  8                     MS. PETERS:  The cost of service



 18:42:22  9      study indicated for water an 8 percent increase



 18:42:25 10      in 2011, 7 1/2 percent in 2012, and 7 1/2



 18:42:29 11      percent in 2013.



 18:42:34 12                     MR. EIDSON:  Thank you.



 18:42:37 13                     MR. MILAN:  Those percentages



 18:42:40 14      were included in the item No. 2.  She's just



 18:42:43 15      verifying what those are.



 18:42:44 16                     MS. PETERS:  No.  We want a



 18:42:46 17      separate motion on those.



 18:42:47 18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  But we do need a



 18:42:49 19      separate motion.  Are you making a motion?



 18:42:51 20                     MR. MILAN:  Yes.  I make a motion



 18:42:53 21      to accept item 4 --



 18:42:56 22                     MR. EIDSON:  5.



 18:42:56 23                     MR. MILAN:  Item 5 as presented.



 18:42:58 24                     MR. EIDSON:  Second.



 18:43:00 25                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other
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 18:43:00  1      discussion?



 18:43:01  2                     MS. PETERS:  Again, I would like



 18:43:02  3      to clarify that motion.  You are moving that the



 18:43:05  4      water increase be 8 1/2 percent in 2011 --



 18:43:08  5                     MS. GONZALEZ:  8.



 18:43:09  6                     MR. EIDSON:  8.



 18:43:10  7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  8 percent 2011.



 18:43:12  8                     MS. PETERS:  Sorry.  Good thing I



 18:43:13  9      clarified that.  8 percent in 2011, 7 1/2



 18:43:17 10      percent in 2012 and 7 1/2 percent in 2013.



 18:43:21 11                     MR. MILAN:  That's correct.



 18:43:23 12                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Roll call,



 18:43:30 13      please.



 18:43:30 14                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



          15      Colombel.



 18:43:33 16                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 17                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 18                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          19                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 20                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



          21                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



          22                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38 23                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39 24                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40 25                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.
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 18:43:41  1                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  2                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:43:42  3                     MS. PETERS:  And we have asked



 18:43:45  4      Loretta to hand out a schedule of the water



 18:43:48  5      rates for the customer classes based on that



 18:43:50  6      overall increase.  Again, we had the different



 18:43:52  7      options that have been presented to the Board.



 18:43:55  8      This is the one contained in the original cost



 18:43:57  9      of service report.



 18:44:40 10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I'll make a motion



 18:44:41 11      to approve the water rates for customer classes



 18:44:45 12      based on the average increase percentage that



 18:44:54 13      has been presented.



 18:44:57 14                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I second.



 18:45:00 15                     MR. PETTEY:  Okay.  Any



 18:45:02 16      discussion on that?  Motion by Ms. Columbel,



 18:45:17 17      second by Ms. Gonzales to approve as presented



 18:45:19 18      to us.  Roll call, please.



 18:45:23 19                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



 18:45:24 20      Colombel.



 18:43:33 21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 22                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 23                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          24                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 25                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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           1                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



           2                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  3                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  4                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  5                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  6                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  7                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:45:40  8                     MR. ALVEY:  I'd like to make a



 18:45:41  9      motion for approval of the energy rate component



 18:45:43 10      rider as recommended by BPU staff.



 18:45:47 11                     MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.



 18:45:51 12                     MR. PETTEY:  Got a motion by



 18:45:52 13      Mr. Alvey and second by Ms. Gonzales to approve



 18:45:56 14      the rate.  Any discussion on that?  Let's roll



 18:46:09 15      call, please.



 18:46:09 16                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



 18:46:10 17      Colombel.



 18:43:33 18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 19                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 20                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          21                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 22                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



          23                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



          24                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38 25                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.
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 18:43:39  1                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  2                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  3                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:46:23  5                     MR. PETTEY:  Next is the ERC --



 18:46:26  6                     MS. PETERS:  ESC.



 18:46:28  7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Environmental



 18:46:29  8      surcharge rider.



 18:46:31  9                     MR. PETTEY:  Yeah, I'm sorry.



 18:46:34 10                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Motion to approve



 18:46:35 11      the environmental surcharge rider recommended by



 18:46:40 12      staff.



 18:46:43 13                     MS. GONZALEZ:  Second.



 18:46:45 14                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by



 18:46:46 15      Ms. Columbel, second by Ms. Gonzales to approve



 18:46:50 16      the environmental surcharge rider.  Any



 18:46:53 17      discussion?  Roll call, please.



 18:46:59 18                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



 18:47:00 19      Colombel.



 18:43:33 20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 21                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 22                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          23                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 24                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



          25                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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           1                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  2                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  3                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  5                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  6                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:47:13  7                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I guess I have a



 18:47:14  8      question on No. 9.  Is the recommended --



 18:47:22  9      recommendation by staff and intervenors, is this



 18:47:26 10      the one that Lori presented to us last week that



 18:47:28 11      we would hold where we are; is that correct?



 18:47:30 12                     MS. PETERS:  Yes, ma'am.



 18:47:33 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.  Motion to



 18:47:34 14      approve.



 18:47:36 15                     MR. EIDSON:  Second.



 18:47:37 16                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by



 18:47:41 17      Ms. Gonzales, second by Mr. Eidson to approve



 18:47:45 18      staff recommendations on the on-peak period.



 18:47:50 19      Roll call, please.



 18:47:51 20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



          21      Colombel.



 18:43:33 22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 18:43:37  1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



           2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



           3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:48:06  9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 10 is the BPU



 18:48:08 10      staff recommendation that a 7 percent ratchet



 18:48:11 11      continue to be used for winter demand billing.



 18:48:17 12                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I move to approve



 18:48:19 13      that we use the 7 percent rachet continuing for



 18:48:22 14      winter demand.



 18:48:23 15                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.



 18:48:24 16                     MR. PETTEY:  Motion by



 18:48:26 17      Ms. Gonzales, second by Ms. Colombel to approve



 18:48:28 18      the 7 percent rachet for winter demand billing.



 18:48:32 19      Any other discussion?  Roll call, please.



 18:48:36 20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



 18:48:37 21      Colombel.



 18:43:33 22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 18:43:37  1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



           2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



           3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:48:49  9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 11 is a



 18:48:52 10      discussion of further review of the financial



 18:48:55 11      performance and progress of the BPU toward



 18:48:58 12      meeting our financial goals.



 18:49:00 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think this



 18:49:01 14      is very key, Mr. Pettey.



 18:49:04 15                     MR. MILAN:  This is very



 18:49:05 16      important.  This should be explained really



          17      clearly.



 18:49:06 18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  And I think



 18:49:07 19      Ms. Gonzales has stated this all along that as



 18:49:09 20      we go through this process and we do have these



 18:49:12 21      increases that we are watched very closely what



 18:49:16 22      we're doing with our expenditures and with



 18:49:19 23      capital improvements.



 18:49:21 24                     MR. MILAN:  Absolutely.



 18:49:21 25                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So do we need this
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 18:49:23  1      in a form of a motion as to an exact time frame



 18:49:27  2      we want?



 18:49:28  3                     MR. MILAN:  I'll request the



 18:49:30  4      whole paragraph be read clearly to make sure



 18:49:33  5      it's understood between us and the public so we



 18:49:37  6      understand what we really mean.



 18:49:38  7                     MS. PETERS:  We would suggest



 18:49:40  8      that you consider this at a minimum at the time



 18:49:42  9      that you're putting your budget together for the



 18:49:45 10      following fiscal year that you get an analysis



 18:49:48 11      of where you are for meeting your financial



 18:49:51 12      metrics to date.



 18:49:52 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I think I would



 18:49:53 14      like more than one a year.  I think I'd at least



 18:49:55 15      like a six month interval.



 18:49:58 16                     MR. ALVEY:  My only -- I think



 18:50:01 17      that this is something that we do, you know, the



 18:50:04 18      monthly financial reports, the quarterly



 18:50:07 19      reports.  I believe this is a function that



 18:50:09 20      we're already accomplishing.  I'm really not --



 18:50:14 21      I can see why we would vote for this, but we do



 18:50:17 22      it as a rule anyway.  So I wouldn't want -- if



 18:50:24 23      we pass it, I don't want to give people the idea



 18:50:26 24      that we don't do this on a regular basis.



 18:50:28 25                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree, David.  I
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 18:50:30  1      just -- I think in the interest of public



 18:50:35  2      discussion and -- that it is a separate item



 18:50:39  3      that -- I would say twice a year, you know,



 18:50:45  4      during budget time and then late -- maybe again



 18:50:47  5      in July that it is a single discussion on the



 18:50:51  6      outcomes and what we have been able to -- to



 18:50:59  7      meet in our financial goals the best



 18:51:01  8      determination.  I know we have a monthly, but I



 18:51:04  9      would still like to see what this process has



 18:51:06 10      brought us to.



 18:51:07 11                     MR. MILAN:  Well, I take a



 18:51:09 12      different approach.



 18:51:09 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Okay.



 18:51:10 14                     MR. MILAN:  What I'm trying to



 18:51:13 15      say -- unless you want to read it --



          16                     MR. PETTEY:  Go ahead.



 18:51:18 17                     MR. MILAN:  Item 11, Discussion



 18:51:18 18      of further review of financial performance and



 18:51:23 19      progress of the Board towards meeting the



 18:51:23 20      financial goal and determination of whether to



 18:51:26 21      give a direction to staff, as a part of the



 18:51:30 22      ongoing review and evaluation of collection of



 18:51:32 23      revenues under the approved rates and operation



 18:51:36 24      and capital expenditures, to provide an analysis



 18:51:39 25      of whether the financial metrics in the rate
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 18:51:42  1      plan have been met or exceeded to provide a



 18:51:45  2      basis for the Board to consider whether a



 18:51:50  3      downward adjustment to rates may be made in the



 18:51:54  4      future.



 18:51:55  5               We're saying that if it looks better in



 18:51:58  6      '11 and '12, then the staff should take and



 18:52:01  7      adjust -- I want to make it clear that although



 18:52:04  8      we agree to these figures tonight, these



 18:52:06  9      percentages, we have the option, the staff has



 18:52:10 10      the option to look at the analysis and review as



 18:52:12 11      we promised the intervenors and the public, we



 18:52:15 12      will look at these rates.  We may go down to 6



 18:52:18 13      next year, okay.  5.  Hope we go down to 0.  But



 18:52:22 14      anyway, that's hypothetical, but my point is,



 18:52:24 15      that's the purpose of 11.



 18:52:26 16                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I agree.



 18:52:27 17                     MR. MILAN:  It should be clear.



 18:52:29 18      Do you understand that?



 18:52:29 19                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I totally agree.



 18:52:30 20                     MR. MILAN:  Okay.  Thank you.



 18:52:32 21                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, the pilot



 18:52:33 22      should go down.  We know it's going to go down.



 18:52:36 23                     MR. EIDSON:  I agree with this.



 18:52:37 24      We do look at that monthly, the finance



 18:52:40 25      committee does look at the -- where the Board or
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 18:52:43  1      where the utility is on a monthly basis.  And I



 18:52:47  2      don't think there's anybody up here at this



 18:52:49  3      table that had the opportunity to lower the



 18:52:51  4      rates would not hesitate to do that if



 18:52:54  5      everything was sound and stable here at the BPU.



 18:52:58  6                     MR. MILAN:  Well, based on what



 18:52:59  7      we approved in the rate increase, this reflects



 18:53:02  8      this particular set of circumstances, okay.



 18:53:08  9                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So would the



 18:53:09 10      discussion be that this is handled yearly in the



 18:53:13 11      budget review for the following year so we would



 18:53:15 12      know if there was a possibility of a reduction



 18:53:19 13      in the rates?



 18:53:22 14                     MR. PETTEY:  Well, ask for a



 18:53:24 15      timely report so we can decide in advance what



 18:53:27 16      we can do, if we can or cannot with --



 18:53:32 17                     MR. MILAN:  It gives direction to



 18:53:33 18      the staff saying, tell the Board where we are,



 18:53:38 19      do we stay status quo, do we have an opportunity



 18:53:40 20      based on analysis to reduce or stay where we



 18:53:44 21      are.  It's telling the staff what to do here.



 18:53:47 22                     MR. ALVEY:  If the direction to



 18:53:48 23      the staff is that they have to present proposal



 18:53:51 24      to us specifically addressing that rates ought



 18:53:55 25      to remain at the level, which has been
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 18:53:58  1      established by the decision tonight, or whether



 18:54:03  2      an adjustment downward, if they are directed



 18:54:06  3      specifically to offer a recommendation, that's



 18:54:09  4      different than just -- I think this doesn't



 18:54:12  5      quite say what we're trying to say.  I think



 18:54:14  6      what it needs to say is staff should be directed



 18:54:17  7      to recommend any rate increase or decrease --



 18:54:26  8                     MR. PETTEY:  Can't increase.



 18:54:26  9                     MR. ALVEY:  I'm sorry.  Any rate



 18:54:29 10      decrease from what was established by decisions



 18:54:33 11      tonight.  If that's what we're trying to do,



 18:54:34 12      then I'm fine with that.



 18:54:35 13                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Yes.  That's the



 18:54:36 14      whole basis.



 18:54:37 15                     MR. MILAN:  That's what it's



 18:54:39 16      trying to say.



 18:54:40 17                     MR. ALVEY:  Yeah.  I don't think



 18:54:41 18      it says that in the language.



 18:54:43 19                     MR. EIDSON:  It could be done



 18:54:44 20      when we're working on the budget, yearly budget.



 18:54:47 21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Mary.



 18:54:48 22                     MR. MILAN:  We have time to agree



 18:54:51 23      upon the staff later on.  Move on from that.



 18:54:54 24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like to



 18:54:55 25      make that in the form of a motion, David?
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 18:54:57  1                     MR. ALVEY:  Sure.  I'll just



 18:54:58  2      change -- the only language I would change there



 18:54:59  3      is to direct the staff to provide an analysis



 18:55:02  4      and a recommend- -- an analysis of whether the



 18:55:06  5      financial metrics in the rate plan have been met



 18:55:08  6      or exceeded and to recommend or not recommend a



 18:55:12  7      downward adjustment to rates to be made in the



 18:55:15  8      future year.



 18:55:18  9                     MR. EIDSON:  Do you want to tie



 18:55:20 10      that to the Board?



 18:55:22 11                     MR. ALVEY:  Actually, a



 18:55:23 12      recommendation.



 18:55:26 13                     MR. MILAN:  It means the same.



 18:55:27 14      Fine with me.



 18:55:28 15                     MR. EIDSON:  Tied to a budget



 18:55:30 16      proceeding.



 18:55:30 17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.



 18:55:33 18                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other



 18:55:36 19      discussion?  Roll call.



 18:55:37 20                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



          21      Colombel.



 18:43:33 22                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 23                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 24                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          25                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.
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 18:43:37  1                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



           2                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



           3                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  5                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  6                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  7                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  8                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:55:51  9                     MR. PETTEY:  No. 12, we're



 18:55:52 10      asking -- we're directing Black & Veatch to



 18:55:54 11      prepare a final manual based on the rate



 18:55:57 12      increases decisions we've just made on the



 18:56:01 13      proposed rate.



 18:56:04 14                     MR. ALVEY:  So moved.



 18:56:06 15                     MR. MILAN:  Second.



 18:56:08 16                     MR. PETTEY:  Any discussion?



 18:56:12 17      Roll call, please.



 18:56:13 18                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



          19      Colombel.



 18:43:33 20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 21                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 22                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          23                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 24                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.



          25                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.
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           1                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  2                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  3                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  4                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  5                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  6                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:56:24  7                     MR. PETTEY:  13, give direction



 18:56:24  8      to the rate counsel to prepare a written order



 18:56:28  9      for the Board, setting out the decisions,



 18:56:33 10      evidentiary basis on the decisions and



 18:56:35 11      directions made by the Board.



 18:56:36 12                     MR. EIDSON:  So moved.



 18:56:37 13                     MR. ALVEY:  Second.



 18:56:38 14                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Second.



 18:56:40 15                     MR. PETTEY:  Roll call, please.



 18:56:41 16                     MS. BOEDING:  Who's the second?



 18:56:43 17                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I said it.



 18:56:45 18                     MR. EIDSON:  Loretta Columbel.



 18:56:47 19                     MS. BOEDING:  Roll call.



          20      Colombel.



 18:43:33 21                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Aye.



 18:43:34 22                     MS. BOEDING:  Gonzales.



 18:43:36 23                     MS. GONZALES:  Aye.



          24                     MS. BOEDING:  Eidson.



 18:43:37 25                     MR. EIDSON:  Aye.
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           1                     MS. BOEDING:  Alvey.



           2                     MR. ALVEY:  Aye.



 18:43:38  3                     MS. BOEDING:  Milan.



 18:43:39  4                     MR. MILAN:  Aye.



 18:43:40  5                     MS. BOEDING:  Pettey.



 18:43:41  6                     MR. PETTEY:  Aye.



 18:43:41  7                     MS. BOEDING:  Motion carries.



 18:57:02  8                     MR. PETTEY:  You know, I would



 18:57:02  9      say thank you for everyone for all of the effort



 18:57:07 10      that went into the final decision on this.  It's



 18:57:12 11      been a trying several months trying to decide



 18:57:15 12      what's the best way for the BPU and our



 18:57:17 13      customers big and small, and I feel that we have



 18:57:20 14      done that this evening.



 18:57:22 15               But like we have mentioned earlier, we



 18:57:24 16      want to make it very clear if there's any way



 18:57:27 17      that these rates can come down in the future



 18:57:29 18      years, we definitely want that to happen.



 18:57:32 19      They're not written in stone.  Anyone else?



 18:57:38 20                     MR. MILAN:  Thank you.  That's a



 18:57:40 21      good comment.



 18:57:43 22                     MR. PETTEY:  Any other board



 18:57:44 23      comments on this?



 18:57:46 24                     MS. COLOMBEL:  I also want to



 18:57:47 25      thank staff, the intervenors, the consultants.
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 18:57:51  1      I know that every one of you have worked long



 18:57:53  2      and hard to bring us testimony, statements,



 18:58:02  3      proof, facts, all of the papers that Mr. Milan



 18:58:05  4      spoke of.  It's not an easy decision.  It's



 18:58:08  5      never an easy decision to increase someone's



 18:58:10  6      bill.  But it's the best decision for our



 18:58:14  7      utility.  And I'm proud to be a part of this



 18:58:18  8      board that made a unanimous decision to keep our



 18:58:22  9      community whole and to keep our utility



 18:58:25 10      functioning properly.



 18:58:27 11                     MR. MILAN:  I'd like to use an



 18:58:32 12      Optimist Club kind of theory which says, Forget



 18:58:34 13      the mistakes of the past and press on to greater



 18:58:37 14      achievement in the future.  And that's what the



 18:58:41 15      Board needs to do.  (Inaudible) tomorrow and



 18:58:44 16      move on to serve this community in the best



 18:58:48 17      fashion we can.  Thank you.



 18:58:51 18                     MS. GONZALEZ:  I'd also like to



 18:58:52 19      say thank you to the intervenors for everybody's



 18:58:58 20      time and effort on this project.  The hardest



 18:59:01 21      thing to do for our board members is to strike a



 18:59:03 22      balance to preserve the integrity of our utility



 18:59:06 23      and to keep our community moving forward.  And



 18:59:08 24      it's a difficult decision and one that I know



 18:59:12 25      all of us have deliberated long and hard on.
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 18:59:15  1      And we're trying to do the best for the utility



 18:59:18  2      and for our community.



 18:59:20  3                     MR. ALVEY:  Also, I'd like to say



 18:59:23  4      thanks to everyone who's involved in this,



 18:59:25  5      including our attorneys, our consultants,



 18:59:28  6      Mr. Carson, our consultants from Black & Veatch,



 18:59:32  7      the intervenors, the industrial class customers



 18:59:36  8      and all of the customers of the Board of Public



 18:59:39  9      Utilities.  I would like to remind folks that



 18:59:41 10      when we started this process, we committed



 18:59:43 11      ourselves to conducting a fair and transparent



 18:59:47 12      process.  And I am proud of the way that the



 18:59:49 13      management and staff and members of the Board



 18:59:52 14      have done that.



 18:59:55 15               And, you know, it's -- I believe we're



 18:59:58 16      at a critical juncture at the BPU.  I think the



 19:00:01 17      evidence is clear.  And what we decide to do



 19:00:04 18      from this point on will determine the fate of



 19:00:06 19      the Board of Public Utilities.  We have to



 19:00:08 20      restore our cash reserves.  We have to restore



 19:00:12 21      our debt coverage ratio.  We have to restore our



 19:00:14 22      capital operations.  We have to do the necessary



 19:00:18 23      improvements, our maintenance.  We have to do



 19:00:21 24      these things or there won't be a BPU to talk



 19:00:23 25      about.  I'm convinced of that.
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 19:00:26  1               At the same time, I'm painfully aware



 19:00:28  2      of how this affects the bottom line of all of



 19:00:31  3      our residents and all of our industrial



 19:00:34  4      customers.  You know, there's going to be an



 19:00:38  5      impact.  I understand the total BPU bill with



 19:00:42  6      the pilot included does have an effect on the



 19:00:45  7      competitiveness of every business in this city.



 19:00:48  8      And I'm concerned with the impact that this is



 19:00:51  9      going to have on our -- our residential



 19:00:54 10      customers, especially those on fixed income or



 19:00:57 11      those unemployed.



 19:00:59 12               And I would suggest that this rate



 19:01:01 13      increase cannot function as the only tool that



 19:01:05 14      we use to restore the BPU to its full financial



 19:01:09 15      and operational health.  If there's one message



 19:01:13 16      that came across loud and clear in this rate



 19:01:15 17      hearing process, it's this.  And that's that the



 19:01:18 18      BPU must continue to find ways to provide pure



 19:01:23 19      power and pure water and at the lowest possible



 19:01:26 20      cost.



 19:01:28 21               In other words, I think we have been



 19:01:30 22      challenged to review every line item to



 19:01:33 23      determine what we can do to reduce our costs and



 19:01:36 24      therefore reduce the upper pressure on rates.



 19:01:39 25      We have an obligation so I believe this board is
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 19:01:44  1      willing to take a good look at our budget each



 19:01:46  2      year to see what we can do to limit proposed



 19:01:49  3      rate increases.



 19:01:50  4               In short, I just think that increased



 19:01:52  5      revenues that we will realize from these rate



 19:01:54  6      increases cannot be looked upon as a pot of gold



 19:01:57  7      that we get to spend freely.  On the contrary,



 19:02:01  8      these increased revenues are an opportunity to



 19:02:04  9      sustain the utility while we work to find ways



 19:02:07 10      to reduce costs.  Otherwise, it's been



 19:02:13 11      pointless.  And, again, I thank all of those who



 19:02:16 12      worked so hard on this process.



 19:02:21 13                     MR. PETTEY:  You put it very



 19:02:23 14      well, Mr. Alvey.



 19:02:24 15                     MR. EIDSON:  It is just -- I'm so



 19:02:25 16      proud to be a part of this board and to have sat



 19:02:29 17      here and know that we have done our diligence,



 19:02:33 18      and I -- there's not much else I can say.



 19:02:36 19      Everyone has pretty much summed up all of our



 19:02:39 20      feelings.  And, again, thanks to everybody, to



 19:02:41 21      the staff, to intervenors, to attorneys and



 19:02:44 22      again to you, Your Honor.  That's all I have to



 19:02:49 23      say.



 19:02:50 24                     MR. PETTEY:  Kathy.



 19:02:52 25                     MS. PETERS:  Black & Veatch and I
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 19:02:57  1      will follow your directives.  I recommend to you



 19:03:00  2      that you not close the hearing tonight.  I'd



 19:03:03  3      like to have you have the final approval of the



 19:03:04  4      rate manual and of the order and perhaps take



 19:03:07  5      that up at your next meeting October 20th.



 19:03:10  6                     MR. PETTEY:  Uh-huh.



 19:03:11  7                     MS. PETERS:  And also that will



 19:03:12  8      give Black & Veatch the chance to fill out those



 19:03:15  9      rate schedules based on the decisions that



 19:03:17 10      you've made and share those with Mr. Gorman so



 19:03:22 11      they can make sure that they're in agreement



 19:03:24 12      about all of the numbers based on the approach



 19:03:26 13      that you have directed us to follow.



 19:03:29 14                     MR. MILAN:  Will that be the



 19:03:31 15      final business?



 19:03:31 16                     MS. PETERS:  And that will be the



 19:03:33 17      final business except for holding open the



 19:03:35 18      decision on the on peak demand period, which, as



 19:03:40 19      I said, is subject to study for next year or so.



 19:03:50 20                     MS. COLOMBEL:  So basically,



 19:03:52 21      you're asking us to wait for the written



 19:03:54 22      documentation?



 19:03:55 23                     MS. PETERS:  I am.  I'm



 19:03:56 24      suggesting that given that you are to make a



 19:03:58 25      final decision within five days of completing a
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 19:04:02  1      hearing and given that you're going to approve



 19:04:05  2      the final rate manual in the order, it's my



 19:04:07  3      suggestion to you that you continue this until



 19:04:10  4      your next meeting so that you can approve the



 19:04:12  5      order and approve the rate manual and then



 19:04:14  6      complete the hearing.



 19:04:16  7                     MR. MILAN:  I want to get some



 19:04:17  8      sleep.  I just want to know when I can get it,



 19:04:20  9      okay?



 19:04:21 10                     MS. PETERS:  You can get it



 19:04:23 11      tonight.  You've made your decision.  This is



 19:04:24 12      housekeeping.  Your final decision is



 19:04:26 13      housekeeping, but just so that it's clear that



 19:04:28 14      you will make -- you'll approve the order on the



 19:04:30 15      20th.  That's our suggestion.



 19:04:32 16                     MR. MILAN:  All right.  Thank



 19:04:33 17      you.



 19:04:40 18                     MS. COLOMBEL:  Would you like a



 19:04:42 19      motion, Ms. Peters?



 19:04:43 20                     MS. PETERS:  No.  I think



 19:04:44 21      Mr. Carson can simply --



 19:04:45 22                     HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah.  We'll



 19:04:46 23      just based -- upon the Board's apparent assent,



 19:04:49 24      we will continue this rate hearing to



 19:04:52 25      October 20th at 6:00 p.m.
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 19:04:56  1                     MR. PETTEY:  Very good.



 19:05:00  2                     HEARING OFFICER:  That's the



 19:05:00  3      conclusion of this hearing for today.



           4            (Proceedings concluded at 7:05 p.m.)
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